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Board of Directors

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ip Chi Shing (Chairman)
Mr. Tong Wui Tung (term of directorship will last
until the conclusion of 2018 annual general meeting)
Mr. Wong Kong Chi*
Mr. Ku Yuen Fun*
Mr. Ng Siu Ping*

* Independent Non-executive Directors

Executive Directors
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin
(Deputy Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Yuk (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ho Sai Hou (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu
(resigned from the duty with effect from 1 January 2018)

Senior Leadership Team
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin
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Mr. Ip Kwan
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu

(resigned from the duty with effect from 1 January 2018)
Mr. Fung Ping Kwong

(resigned from the duty with effect from 1 January 2018)
Ms. Yau Ching Man

(resigned from the duty with effect from 1 January 2018)
Ms. Tse Yik Chu

(appointed with effect from 1 January 2017)



BEREES

EESEE(ZBREXR)

EEREE(BEFEHEZ_ZT-N\FE

BRBFARGHERL)
HESEE
RiaFrRE

YWEESS
SR RAE (EERER)
BB

(BEFEEHE_Z-N\FE

BERBFRNGERL)
EEERE
mESEE

ZERERRKRZEZE

NEME
5

B BED

B« BERY @ 1T
(BEBRLEH )
BB EE T N\R

AEES—B=+HR

=r
=

[AEH

Corporate Information
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Mr. Wong Kong Chi (Chairman of the committee)
Mr. Tong Wui Tung (term of directorship will last until
the conclusion of 2018 annual general meeting)
Mr. Ku Yuen Fun
Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Ng Siu Ping (Chairman of the committee)

Mr. Tong Wui Tung
(term of directorship will last until the conclusion of
2018 annual general meeting)

Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun

Health, Safety and Environment

Committee

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun (Chairman of the committee)
Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Company Secretary
Mr. Ho Sai Hou

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(Certified Public Accountants)

35/F., One Pacific Place

88 Queensway, Hong Kong
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X & Chairman

Mr. Ip Chi Shing

| am pleased to present to all shareholders the annual results of the
Group for the year 2017. In the year, due to the potent economies
of scale effect and strong sales growth in the solvents business,
the Group's sales revenue grew 20% year-on-year to reach the
HK$10 billion mark again, a feat that was last accomplished in
2014. Sales volume was also a historical high of almost 1.28 million
metric tons, a growth of 7% from the year before. However, profit
attributable to owners of the Company could not grow in line
with sales and stood at only HK$171 million, a level comparable
to that of last year. This was because the performance of the
other three core businesses had fallen far short of expectations,
and at the same time almost HK$100 million in investments and
prudent provisions and accruals were set aside for the installation
or revamp of equipment and facilities by the Group's various
plants in response to the ever-escalating tightening in safety and
environmental standards imposed on the chemical industry in the
mainland. In the course of developing its business, the Group
continued to uphold the principle of prudent financial management
and made sustained efforts in carrying out strict credit controls
and improving asset quality. Consequently, even though increase
in sales revenue was substantial, gearing ratio only edged up
slightly by 0.7 percentage point and was kept at a reasonable and
controllable level of 51.1%. The Board of Directors was cautiously
optimistic of the Group's business prospects and would continue
the Group's long-term dividend policy of actively rewarding
shareholders, therefore proposed to declare a final dividend of
HK10 cents per share. Together with the paid out interim dividend,
the total dividend for the full year was HK15 cents per share,
the same as in the previous year. It is my deepest wish that,
after balancing the capital need for development and meeting
shareholder expectations, we could, in the coming year, break away
from the stagnant dividend growth of the past few years.
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Chairman’s Statement — Review and Prospects

Review

The overall business environment last year was basically sound.
Economies in different regions of the world had, in general,
emerged from a slump and demand was revived. Conditions in
the mainland were also encouraging as the political situation was
stable and efforts in reducing overcapacity and in transforming
and upgrading industries had produced significant effects. With
internal consumption accounting for an ever-larger share of the
GDP, economic growth in the mainland met expected targets
under much healthier circumstances. Yet, for the chemical
industry as a whole and to the Group specifically, the business
environment last year offered more challenges than opportunities.
The strict implementation of various new national measures
imposed on the industry had heaped a heavy burden on operating
costs; raw material prices had been rising relentlessly throughout
the year and, for some, the magnitude of such increase had
not been seen for many years. Moreover, it was common in the
industry that product prices lagged behind the rise of costs, which
was difficult to be transferred entirely to customers due to cut-
throat competition. Among the Group's core businesses, there
were causes for joy, but there were also notes of disappointment;
some were struggling because sales had slowed down and gross
profit margin had fallen, but there were some which could make
full use of opportunities from expanded production capacity to
achieve bigger economies of scale and become stronger and more
competitive. Such a stark contrast in business performance was a
first for the Group; it was a lesson for management at different
levels to learn and it served as a reminder to spur us on as well.
With determination, we have set the objective that we will turn
the situation around within the coming year and convert all
challenges into greater opportunities.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT + YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Outlook

It is expected that the coming year will be one clouded with a
slew of uncertainties, including possible geopolitical shocks in
and around the Korean peninsula, the South China Sea and the
Taiwan Strait. Also, with escalating American protectionism, the
risk of Sino-American trade conflicts taking place has greatly
multiplied. However, | believe that even if these scenarios occur,
they will not have too much impact on the recovery of the
global economy or on the steady and healthy growth of China’s
economy. In the mid- to long-term, high-level state development
initiatives such as the Belt and Road and the Guangdong-Hong
Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area will definitely bring new business
opportunities to China itself and to all participants. To help seize
pre-emptive opportunities, the Group has acquired in early 2018
“Camel” — a coatings brand which was founded 85 years ago and
now viewed in high esteem in Hong Kong, Macau and Southern
China cities. This will also be the spearhead of the Group’s
quickened efforts in expanding its core businesses in the Greater
Bay Area.

The Group’s mid-term objective is to achieve a major
breakthrough in its business by 2021 when it celebrates the 50th
anniversary of its founding and the 30th anniversary of its public
listing. To achieve this objective, it will conscientiously implement
a series of planned measures and do arduous preparations to
lay solid foundation for future success. The coming year will be
a pivotal year, and we have already streamlined organisation
structures and stepped up decision-making processes at all
levels — from the Board of Directors and Senior Leadership Team
to management in all subsidiaries. Specifically, in response to
changes in the market consumption patterns and in competitors,
as well as the state’s ever-tightening regulatory control over the
industry, the Group has set up a department, through assisting
management to review long-term business strategy and exploring
merger and acquisitions opportunities, to drive expansion or
improve current businesses and develop new related businesses,
with its sight set on business segments that are environmentally
friendly, end-users and services oriented, hence bringing the
Group's overall business to a new level.
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Chairman’s Statement — Review and Prospects

Outlook (Continued)

In conclusion, | am full of determination and expectation on
business prospects in the coming year and, as usual, take it upon
myself to do my best to create better return for our shareholders.
| would like to take this opportunity to extend my heartfelt
gratitude to all employees of the Group for their hard work
and dedication, to stakeholders for their unfailing support and
guidance, to the Board of Directors for its leadership and to the
management team for its unity, determination and unremitting
efforts on changes.

Note of Appreciation

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu has resigned from his duty as an Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 January 2018 but
will continue to serve as General Manager of the inks group.
On behalf of the Board, | would like to express our gratitude to
Mr. Kwong for his contribution when he served as an Executive
Director. We are fully confident that in future, under Mr. Kwong's
focused leadership, the inks business will scale new heights.

IP CHI SHING
CHAIRMAN
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Report of the Co-Chief Executive Officers
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Key aspects of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2017 are as follows:

1. Total sales revenue once again broke the HK$10 billion mark
to close to HK$10.3 billion. Total product sales tonnage
reached a new record high of almost 1.28 million metric
tons,

2. The solvents business grew strongly with sales revenue
surging by 35%. Gross profit margin maintained at a
double-digit level. Operating profit rose substantially by
16%;

3. Hampered by rising raw material prices and lagging product
prices, the gross profit margins of the coatings and inks
businesses fell by 7 percentage points and 5 percentage
points respectively, leading to a corresponding drop of 69%
and 45% in operating profit;

4.  The lubricants business was likewise trammelled by increases
in raw material prices. As the business was still undergoing
transformation, sales revenue dropped in concert with
gross profit margin, and an operating loss was once again
recorded;
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5. In the review period, provision for fixed assets’ accelerated
depreciation was HK$59 million. As the mainland’s safety
and environmental policies became increasingly stringent,
plants of the Group had to invest heavily in revamping
facilities and had to make provisions for equipment that
would likely be affected,;

6. The fair values of investment properties, Yip's Chemical
Building and the Qingpu plant in Shanghai, increased by a
total of HK$44 million;

7. The totality of the above factors resulted in a net profit of
HK$171 million for the Group, which was only up slightly
compared with the previous year:

8. Benefited from the foreign exchange control measures
adopted last year, fluctuations in the renminbi exchange rate
shall no longer have any material impact on the Group's
profit or loss in future; and

9. As a result of continued prudent financial management, the
gearing ratio was only slightly up by 0.7 percentage point to
51.1% despite a significant increase in operating funds to
cater to continuous business development.

The review and outlook of the Group's four business segments
are as follows:

Solvents

The hefty increase in sales revenue this year was attributable
mainly to the almost doubling in export sales, testifying once
again that the quality and overall competitiveness of the solvents
business is recognised by domestic and overseas users. As a
result of the mainland’s ever-tightening safety and environmental
policies, many chemical enterprises had invariably seen a cutback
or even a partial halt in production. Though we had invested
heavily in coping with new requirements, a slight reduction in
production capacity was inevitable.

With appreciable volume and profitability, the operating profit of
almost HK$400 million for the review year was the highest since
the business was founded.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT + YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Solvents (Continued)

Observing the regulatory trend on safety and environmental
issues, the management made prudent planning of the
production scales of the Southern and Eastern China plants and
decided to make provisions of HK$59 million for the fixed assets
affected. As a result, the operating profit for the solvents business
could not rise in lockstep with sales revenue.

Having dealt with the safety and environmental regulation issues
and the market competition issues, the management is now much
more confident with the overall competitiveness of the solvents
business. Capacity expansion projects currently planned include:

1. Installing additional production capacity of 450,000 metric
tons acetates and 100,000 metric tons butyl acrylate on a
previously reserved land lot situated in Taixing plant. The
project will commence after the Chinese New Year and is
expected to be completed for production by the end of
2018.

2. Working with Jiangmen Municipal People’s Government to
look for a new plot in a chemical park for developing new
products.

3.  Exploring mainland harbour sites which are ready for
development. This is the first step for possible investment,
capacity expansion or diversification into upstream products.

The management believes that, in the next one to two years,
sales revenue of the solvents business will grow markedly and, if
we pursue the above goals, the business will be propelled to new
heights.
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Coatings

Supply constraint of raw materials in the mainland has led to
price escalation and the prices stayed at a high level throughout
the year. As the entire industry is experiencing transformation
impacted by ‘supply-side reform” and intense competition, cost
transfer to the market is to be done delicately. Overall sales
revenue was at similar level though gross profit recorded a 24%
reduction, leading to a decline of operating profit to HK$8.3
million, a 69% drop year on year.

For the optimization project of supply chain, external consultant
has completed its phase one involvement in November 2017,
with an early success recorded in structural cost reduction. In
complement to internal cost reduction measures, unit operating
cost has moved down by 7% in the year, though overall benefit is
yet to be realized.

In addition to soaring raw material prices, considerable
investment in volatile organic compound (“VOC") treatment
facilities would be necessary in coming years to meet ever-
tightening environmental standards. The coatings business has
already recorded a HK$11 million capex outlay for the installation
in our Jinshan plant last year, and is expected to reach HK$24
million when completed. All these challenges posed in the market
have also led to potential consolidation opportunities where the
Group succeeded in acquiring the coating business and assets
of DGL Camel in China (inclusive of Hong Kong and Macau)
in early 2018. The Group believes that the acquired brands
“Camel” and "“Aquapro” would create synergies in such areas
as manufacturing, technology, distribution and marketing with
current coatings business, bringing positive contribution to the
Group.
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Inks

Throughout the year, performance of the inks business was
hampered by sustained high raw material prices. While sales
revenue managed to catch up to close to that of previous year,
gross profit recorded a drop of 20% to HK$273 million. Overall
operating profit stood at HK$55 million, a 45% reduction year-

on-year.

Focus on quality customers was placed with great emphasis amid
the continuous high raw material prices; it has led to considerable
improvement of the offset ink business in the reporting year. Also,
gravure water-based ink gained an early foothold, with total sales
tonnage increased by nearly four times and stable supplies to
more than 10 clients established. The two initiatives generated
positive momentum to the inks business.

Meanwhile, the supply chain optimization project initiated by
coatings business will also be gradually implemented in inks
business, with the aim to lower operating cost and enhance
competitiveness.

As similar challenges of high raw material prices and investment
in meeting higher environmental standards also apply to inks
business where market consolidation opportunities would appear,
the Group would actively look into potential consolidation in the
coming year.

Lubricants

Throughout the year, more stringent environmental regulations
pushed backyard garages selling relatively lower tier lubricants
out of the market. Sales to this traditional segment has recorded
a considerable setback in the year. This, in conjunction with the
increase of raw material prices and marketing investment into
transforming the business, has led to an operating loss of HK$8.4
million for the lubricants business.

Nevertheless, the Group is positive to its future performance given
the lubricants business has adopted the correct strategic move
to transform its business to selling higher tier Hercules lubricants
to different segments in recent years, including reasonable
marketing expenses in above and below the line promotion.
Lubricants business also made its first step in integrating services
with products by setting foot in automobile maintenance market.
It opened four automobile maintenance chains to provide fast
and standardized lubricant replacement services in Dongguan, the

headquarters of the business, by the end of 2017.
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Outlook

“Supply-side reform” and more stringent environmental policies
would continue to pose challenges in upstream raw material
prices and downstream customer demands in the industry. In
response to such challenges, the Group is determined to deepen
our business transformation by driving quality sales and growth
and structurally lowering our cost of operations; we will also
grasp consolidation opportunities through initiatives of merger,
acquisition and divestment of business with no growth potential.

The Group will, on one hand, devote resources orderly to meet
environmental standards while making efforts on the reduction of
structural costs at all Group and subsidiary levels. This will secure
the Group’s position amidst a turbulent competitive environment
before it strides forward again. On the other hand, to better pave
the foundation for new long-term growth, the Group will make
bold attempts to explore and roll out related businesses which are
environmentally friendly, end-users oriented and services oriented.

Though the journey would not be a smooth ride, we are
confident that with the right strategies and the sense of urgency
to turnaround those underperforming businesses earnestly, overall
performance would be able to track on a much healthier platform
in the years to come.

YIP TSZ HIN WONG YUK
CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CO-CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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The Group's headquarters in Wanchai, The Group’s R&D Centre in Zhangjiang,
Hong Kong (with effect from 1 May 2017) Shanghai
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The solvents plant in Taixing, Jiangsu The solvents plant in Jiangmen, Guangdong
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The coatings plant in Jinshan, | The coatings plant in Chengdu, ( The coatings plant in Huizhou,
Shanghai ‘ Sichuan ‘ Guangdong
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The inks plant in Zhongshan, The inks plant in Tongxiang, The inks plant in Cangzhou,
Guangdong Zhejiang Hebei
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Group’s Headquarters and Plants
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Distribution network covers all provinces in China
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Business Profiles — Solvents
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Solvents form the largest part of the Group’s core businesses
and the Group is the world'’s largest acetate solvents producer. A
major turn of event took place in 1993 when Handsome Chemical
Development Limited, a Group subsidiary, set sight on the
opportunities made available from the reform and liberalization
in China and formed a joint venture with Jiangmen Qisheng
Chemical Development Company Limited. By capitalizing on the
advantages of a sino-foreign joint venture and by complementing
each other, the two partners were able to achieve over 20 years
of dazzling performance.

The Group produces mainly eco-friendly industrial organic
solvents. These include ethyl acetate, normal butyl acetate, propyl
acetate, mixed butyl acetate, ethanol and butyl acrylate which are
extensively used in industries in coatings, tannery, medicine and
adhesives. The solvents division has established production bases
in Southern and Eastern China. The production line of acetate
solvents in Taixing, Jiangsu has been running smoothly since its
commencement of operation in 2015. The business maintains a
huge sales force and operates a sales network that covers the
whole of China and reaches overseas. By operating mainly on a
direct-sales basis, it manages not only in ensuring thorough and
satisfactory services, but also in affording its sales team a better
understanding of customer needs — a vital edge of the business.

Customers have always been the Group's main concern and the
pre- and post-sales customer-oriented services of the solvents
business have, over the years, won the trust and support of
customers. We cooperate with world-class chemical companies in
sourcing for raw materials of superior and stable quality as a way
to guarantee product quality.

Presented with China’s huge market demand, Yip's Chemical
grasps full advantage of the opportunity not only by expanding
its acetate solvents capacity to ensure its competitive edge in the
industry, but also by developing new related products that offer
synergic effects in order to expand product portfolio.
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Business Profiles — Coatings

The Bauhinia Coatings Group (“the coatings group”) officially
commenced operation in 2015 and its business scope covers
architectural coatings, industrial coatings and resins in the
mainland.

Architectural Coatings

The architectural coatings products include inner and outer
emulsion wall paints and wood paints. The coatings group
strives to be the leader in China’s household paints market. With
sales outlets covering China’s large and medium-sized cities as
well as the majority of townships, the coatings group has won
favourable comments and goodwill from innumerable users. In
the sector of architecture and construction, professional products
and exceptional services of the coatings group have gained the
confidence of many well-known property developers. With long
term strategic partnership forged with many of these developers,
projects using the coatings group’s architectural paints can now
be found across the country.

With the growing environmental awareness and health
consciousness of consumers, the coatings group has been staying
innovative in order to provide consumers with a safe, healthy
and refreshing home environment. To this end, it has rolled out a
number of new eco-friendly products and developed a range of
advanced environmental technologies. In order that it can meet
the needs of rapid business development in future, the coatings
group has set up a production base in Jinshan Fine Chemical
Industrial Park in Shanghai. This production base has an annual
capacity to produce around 200,000 metric tons of coatings,
complementary solvents and associated products.
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Industrial Coatings

Industrial coatings consist of a range of products, including
coatings for furniture and plastic, as well as anti-corrosive
coatings. The industrial paints of the coatings group have been
maintaining rapid growth over the years. Its superb product
quality and professional services have succeeded in eliciting a
high degree of trust from new and old customers alike. Industrial
coatings laboratory is an accredited laboratory recognised by
China National Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment
("CNAS"). As such, it can offer testing services upon customer
requests. It can also issue various types of testing reports on
customer products that have the same validity as those issued
by China Commodity Inspection Bureau. This serves not only to
provide solid guarantee on product quality, but also substantially
expand the room for cooperation between the coatings group
and the end-users or using entities of a host of international
brands.

Resins

The coatings group also produces resins, so that vertical
integration with the production of finished coating products can
be made. This will provide more competitive raw materials and
will further raise product quality. It is specialized in six groups of
products, including alkyd resins, acrylic resins, PU hardeners, UV
resins, amino resins and water-based resins, with the flexibility to
develop coating resins in accordance to customers’ requirements.

Yip's Chemical acquired coatings brands, namely “Camel”,
“Aquapro” and "VIVA” in early 2018, and their respective
architectural and industrial coatings businesses in Mainland China,
Hong Kong and Macau. The Group believes that the acquisition
would help gain a significant foothold in Hong Kong's coatings
market and will create synergy effect with the current businesses
of the coatings group on areas such as manufacturing, technology,
distribution and marketing, building solid foundation for the
development of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area.
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Business Profiles — Inks

Yip's Chemical’s inks business was started in 1998. By now it
is China’s largest supplier of inks under the Bauhinia Variegata
brand and one of the top 20 ink enterprises globally. Plastic
printing inks and paper printing inks for use in food, drinks and
gift packaging and paper printing are the main Bauhinia Variegata
products. With manufacturing bases in strategic locations
throughout Southern, Eastern and Northern China, these
products are sold over a countrywide sales network. In 2013, the
company launched postprinting materials to support the Group's
business integration.

In order to fulfill clean production principle, Bauhinia Variegata
takes the lead in establishing separate aromatic-free production
plant and introducing fully piped manufacturing mode. The
Bauhinia Variegata production system is not only equipped with
the most advanced automatic controls, but is also one of the
few in China linked to an Enterprise Resources Planning system.
In addition, in its effort to protect employee health and the
environment, Bauhinia Variegata has also become one of the first
companies in the China’s inks industry in adopting a hazardous
substance process management system.

Bauhinia Variegata is a staunch advocate of environmental
protection and is leading the industry in both environmentally
friendly products and green technologies. Not only named as
“Outstanding Eco-friendly Ink Manufacturer”, it successfully
develops water-based inks with low volatile organic compounds
(VOCQ) and its FD series of eco-friendly soy offset printing inks has
also won a “Green Technology Award” on the basis of its highly
effective environmental properties and clean operation practices.
In addition, equipped with a laboratory that has been certified by
CNAS, Bauhinia Variegata provides a professional product testing
service.
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The Group has been producing lubricants since 1992 and is
now supplying a complete range of automotive, industrial and
specialty lubricants under the Hercules and Pacoil brand names.

The Hercules lubricants consist of range of automotive and
industrial lubrication products including engine oils and
antifreezes. The lubricating oil Hercules developed specifically for
use in methanol fuel engines has successfully been recognised
as a key achievement by the National High-tech R&D Programme
(the “863 Programme”). The high performance Pacoil specialty
lubricants are mainly used in umpteen industries including metal
processing, automobiles, home appliances and electronics. With
a countrywide sales network, Pacoil is one of the competitive
specialty lubricant brands in China.

With endeavor to be a prominent player of automotive
aftermarket industry, lubricants business put its emphasis
on Hercules lubricants in recent years and carried out brand

revitalization. In early 2018, it has opened four chain stores to
provide fast and standardized lubricant replacement services in
Dongguan, where the headquarters of the business is located.
This enables expansion of value chain thus to develop a business
model which is service and end-user oriented.
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Research and Development

Yip's Chemical always strives to raise the quality of its various
products and is relentless in developing new ones, so much so
that product research and development (R&D) is regarded as
one of the mainstays of the Group’s future expansion. As early
as 2011, it had set up an R&D Centre in Shanghai Zhangjiang
Hi-tech Park (the “Centre”).
team of professionals and an array of advanced trial production
equipment and precise testing instruments. Through stringent
scientific management, the Centre ensures the reliability and

The Centre now boasts an elite

quality of new products.

The Group’s R&D personnel are active in developing innovative
products to further enhance the long-term competitiveness of
the Group. As of year-end of 2017, the Centre and the technical
departments of all subsidiaries have been granted 170 patents by
China’s State Intellectual Property Office. In addition, the Centre
was recognised as “Shanghai Patent Pilot Enterprise” ( £ /& &)
TYER BB %) by Shanghai Intellectual Property Administration
(BT ERD) in 2016. The Centre has been recognised as
a “Little Giant Science and Technology Incubation Enterprise” (%}
F/PNEAEE®E), “National High-tech Enterprise” (IR A & ¥
Ffi %), “Pudong New Area Enterprise R&D Institution” (Ji 5
i@ E ) and “Shanghai Patent Pilot Enterprise” ( £/
MEMTIER B ) since its establishment, all highlighting the
technological strength and competitive advantage of the Centre.

As market homogenisation increases, the development of new
products that meet market needs would be vital to the survival
and future expansion of an enterprise. The Group is fully
confident that the Centre will become a renowned R&D base in
chemical technology in mainland, through which better synergies
will be created for existing businesses.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT + YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

27



—Z—tf[Ek 2017 ANNUAL REVIEW

B
=

T FHBEMER

Five Year Financial Summary

BETZA=t+-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December
“B-t§ "R _“T-5fF _"T-MmF “%-=F
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
TR ThER ThER ThER ThER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

£ Results
BEE Revenue 10,280,001 8,555,646 8,584,225 10,255,839 9,876,033
HES (TH) Sales volume (‘000 metric tons) 1,277 1,191 1015 974 907
BB R Profit before taxation 390,955 391,912 162,034 371,248 391,457
in Taxation (136,269) (148,744) (74,643) (100,280) (79,736
REEER Profit for the year 254,686 243,168 87,391 270,968 311,721
R R Attributable to
NG Owners of the Company 170,560 169,343 47847 223,182 250,622
¥rRER Non-controlling interests 84,126 73,825 39,544 47786 61,099
254,686 23168 87,391 270,968 311,721
SRER Per share data
FREFEL) Earnings per share (HK cents)
% - Basic 30.2 300 85 397 446
-£% - Diluted 30.2 300 85 396 444
SR8 (FEL)* Dividend per share (HK cents)* 15.0 15.0 145 250 250
* “T-RFZERREBAERBIREASEL * Dividend per share in 2015 included special dividend HK4.5 cents per
share.
Bt & Financial ratios
THAEERGE Return on average total assets 2.2% 23% 0.6% 2.7% 33%
THRRESERE Return on average
shareholders’ funds 6.2% 6.6% 1.7% 75% 8.8%
W+=B=+-H
As at 31 December
“E-t§ 55 CZE-Rf CZET-QmE <%=
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
TEx TEL FEL FEL FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BERERE Assets and Liabilities
BEAE Total assets 8,068,146 7,137,356 7,439,067 8,282,435 8,128,500
BEEE Total liabilities (4,516,968)  (4,132,368)  (4,394,868)  (4,881,739)  (4,720,088)
3,551,178 3,004,988 3,044,199 3,400,696 3,408,412
RRAARREGER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 2978917 2529249 2,594,459 2,951,008 2,973,042
FERER Non-controlling interests 572,261 475,739 449,740 449,688 435,370

FROTEEURRASLE

28 ER{CIRBERQF - —F

3,551,178 3,004,988 3,044,199 3,400,696 3,408,412

Net bank borrowings to
shareholders’ funds 51% 50% 54% 58% 47%

—tFEFR
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Analysis of Revenue and Segment Results for the Past Five Years

EHER Revenue
BEt-A=t-RLEE
For the year ended 31 December
ZE-tE —T-RF “T-RfF “E-[E “E-=F
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
TEx TEL TER TER FEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AE Solvents 7,046,878 5,225,315 5,006,792 6,204,174 5,697,296
ER Coatings 1,649,626 1,696,080 1,890,989 2,140,393 2,182,575
ik Inks 1,409,738 1,431,869 1,492,634 1,666,183 1,754,440
HRH Lubricants 293,227 327,957 348,388 431,837 463,831
RHBHE Elimination (119,468) (125,575) (154,578) (186,748) (222,109)
ek Total 10,280,001 8,555,646 8,584,225 10,255,839 9,876,033
% *%ﬁ (BB#T) Revenue kswition)
BE+-_A=+—8LtEE For the Year ended 31 December
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Analysis of Revenue and Segment Results for the Past Five Years

ERERDEEBZDLEIN

palk ¥ Segment Result
BZt-A=t-RLEE
For the year ended 31 December
“E-tE —E-RF “Z-nF —2-mE “Z-=F
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
T TER TER TER TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AE Solvents 393,338 339,892 135,596 238,405 271,537
g Coatings 8,291 26,666 60,922 47,095 55,580
ik Inks 54,984 100,380 68,857 55,826 75,845
pbchi Lubricants (8,405) 1,677 (25,519) (2,934) 9,996
RHEHE Elimination (197) (99) 353 180 6,780
fek Total 448,011 468,516 240,209 338,572 419,738
DEEE sann Segment Result exswmition
HEe+_-_A=+—HILt&FE For the Year ended 31 December
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group's gearing ratio (measured
by net bank borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable
to owners of the Company) was 51.1% (31 December 2016:
50.4%). The mild 0.7 percentage point increase in gearing ratio
was a result of an increase in net bank borrowings of the Group
for funding the purchase of its new Hong Kong headquarters
in Wan Chai, meeting the need for more working capital to
support sales growth and also from the rise in receipts of
bankers' acceptances (i.e. bills receivables), offset by the increase
in equity attributable to owners due to a 7.8% appreciation
of the Renminbi ("RMB"”) for the year. As mentioned in the
interim report, although the RMB continued to appreciate in
2017, the Group had remained prudent in managing foreign
exchange exposure and minimised the impact of RMB fluctuation
on its results. As for operating cash flow, the Group recorded
a net cash inflow of HK$65,583,000 (2016: net cash inflow of
HK$376,800,000). The decrease in operating cash inflow was
mainly attributable to the stagnant payables and accruals as well
as increase in bills receivables (mostly from solvents business
which recorded a 35% increase in sales revenue for the year).
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the gross bank borrowings of
the Group amounted to HK$2,468,405,000 (31 December
2016: HK$2,246,319,000). After deduction of short-
term bank deposits, bank balances and cash amounting to
HK$946,074,000 (31 December 2016: HK$971,103,000), net
bank borrowings amounted to HK$1,522,331,000 (31 December
2016: HK$1,275,216,000). Out of the gross bank borrowings,
HK$1,208,148,000 (31 December 2016: HK$789,848,000)
were short-term loans repayable within one year. Such loans
were denominated in two currencies, HK$1,136,214,000 in
Hong Kong Dollar and HK$71,934,000 in RMB (31 December
2016: HK$789,848,000 in Hong Kong Dollar). Long-term loans
repayable after one year amounted to HK$1,260,257,000
(31 December 2016: HK$1,456,471,000), and they were all
denominated in Hong Kong Dollar (31 December 2016: all
in Hong Kong Dollar). The short-term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash were denominated in the following currencies,
HK$72,706,000 in Hong Kong Dollar, HK$720,158,000 in RMB,
HK$152,734,000 in US Dollar, HK$476,000 in other currencies
(31 December 2016: HK$173,722,000 in Hong Kong Dollar,
HK$582,928,000 in RMB, HK$214,447,000 in US Dollar and
HK$6,000 in other currencies).
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To refinance previous mid-to-long-term loans which are due for
repayment, the Group obtained bilateral long-term (three to four
years) loans of HK$710,000,000 in 2017. As at 31 December
2017, mid-to long-term loans (including portions repayable
within one year of HK$852,214,000) accounted for 86% of the
total bank loans. Since some of the borrowings of the Group
carry interest at floating rates, borrowing costs are subject to
interest rate fluctuation. During the year, the US Federal Reserve
raised federal interest rate three times and started to reduce its
balance sheet. The one-month Hong Kong Dollar HIBOR rate
during the year was thus more volatile and went on a rising
trend. To mitigate the impact of interest rate fluctuation on the
Group's financing costs, the Group, from time to time, makes
arrangements with banks such as interest rate swaps to fix the
interest rate of some of its bilateral mid-to-long-term loans and
to hedge against the risk of such fluctuations. As at 31 December
2017, the Group's loans under fixed rate arrangement made
up 50% and 56% of its total and non-current bank borrowings
respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, a total of 19 banks in Hong Kong and
Mainland China granted banking facilities of HK$5,775,096,000
to the Group, providing it with sufficient funds to meet present
working capital and expansion requirements. Of these banking
facilities, 64%, 34% and 2% were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar, RMB and US Dollar respectively. As explained in previous
reports, the Group has been expanding its RMB loan portfolio to
address exposure to potential RMB exchange rate fluctuation and
impact from interest rate rise in Hong Kong. As at 31 December
2017, the Group’'s RMB revolving loan facilities increased to
RMB620,000,000 (31 December 2016: RMB570,000,000) and
several drawdowns in the total amount of RMB60,000,000 had
been made. Expecting fluctuation of RMB exchange rate to
prevail in the future, the Group has reduced its surplus fund in
the mainland and increased its RMB revolving loan facilities to
meet funding needs from time to time. The Group also works
closely with its major banks to set up cross-border RMB cash pool
to facilitate management of capital flow between Hong Kong
and the mainland. The Group will continue to strike an optimal
balance between lowering borrowing costs and minimising
currency exposure by structuring a favorable combination of Hong
Kong Dollar, US Dollar, RMB or other foreign currency bank loans
in Hong Kong and the mainland.
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The Asset Corporate Awards 2017 — Gold Award for
Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance
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Hong Kong Productivity Council
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The 8th Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate
Citizenship Award — Corporate Citizenship Logo and
Special Mention (Enterprise)

BEEIT¥pe

Federation of Hong Kong Industries
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The 5th Industry Cares Recognitions Scheme —
Outstanding Caring Award and

Most Innovative Award (SME Group)

EEMERBEHS
The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
105 Plus [ R EBE] 125

“10 Years Plus Caring Company” logo

FHBHLEEA R Social Welfare Department
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Bronze Award for Volunteer Service 2016

RIR{EEE Green Council
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Hong Kong Green Awards 2017 — Bronze Award for
Environmental, Health and Safety Award

(Large Corporation)

International ARC Awards
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Honours Award — “Traditional Annual Report —
Chemicals” category
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/B A # Mainland China
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China Association of

Enterprises with Foreign Investment
FENERECEBITHEETESEA -
Excellent CSR Practices of Foreign-invested
Enterprises in China — Employee Caring Award
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China Finance Summit
2017FEhEM SR T
Best CSR 2017
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Best Brand Image 2017

SEFREEREERE
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Mr. Tony Ip, Chairman of the Group,
was named 2017 People of the Year

Ink World
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Ranked 13th among The Top 20
International Ink Companies 2017

Coatings World

2017t B K 590

Ranked 59th among the International Coatings
Companies 2017
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China Coatings News
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The 8th Golden Paint Award —
Outstanding Wood Coatings Brand 2016
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Shanghai Corporate Credibility
Promotion Activity and Shanghai
Chemical Industry Association
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Three-star Trustworthy Enterprise
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With the vision of “A Century of Revered Leadership”, the Group
is determined in creating long-term values for its stakeholders
and embraces “undertaking corporate social responsibility (CSR)”
as one of the seven driving forces in the corporate vision. In light
of the increasing stringent environmental regulatory trend, the
Group put great emphasis in the compliance of relevant laws and
implemented effective policies. The Group has been advocating
the philosophy of clean production, and has extended this
concept to develop environmentally friendly products to bring

green living to our end-users.

The Group recognizes the importance of open communications
with stakeholders, and has issued an Environmental, Social and
Governance (ESG) Report in accordance to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange ESG Reporting Guide since 2016. Such an effort allows
a systematic approach in demonstrating our related performance
which our stakeholders are interested in, including progress of
clean production, community investment and health and safety
initiatives for employees and customers. To demonstrate its
commitment towards sustainable development, the Group will,
for the first time, issue its Environmental, Social and Governance
Report independently for 2017 as a way to strengthen
communication on these issues with stakeholders.
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Human Resources

As of 31 December 2017, the Group has total number of 3,505
employees. 72 employees are from Hong Kong while 3,433 are
from different provinces in China.

The Group places great emphasis on the management and
development of human capital. The employees are encouraged
to strive for improvement through internal and external
training program, on-the-job training and participation in the
Group's educational subsidies, allowing for self-development
in knowledge and skills and to maximize their potential in
their work. We offer suitable platform for development of
highly committed and capable employees, regardless of their
background, geographical region or educational levels. Through
versatile experience in challenging roles, the current management
team of the Group has come through the ranks to advance
to positions of management. Besides the focus of developing
employees internally, the Group seeks not only to attract talent
from outside but also to recruit top graduates from the best
tertiary institutions in Hong Kong, Mainland China, and abroad
as well as to provide them with training and development
opportunities. The Management Trainee Program has been
implementing for a number of years. Some of the management
trainees have demonstrated their excellent capabilities and been
advanced to positions of leadership within the Group.

The Group offers a challenging work environment, sets up
different programs for motivating employees to strive for
improvement and to upgrade their skills in order to sustain the
development of business. From time to time, the Group will
make reference to market trends for the review of remuneration
and reward policy so as to ensure reasonable and competitive
compensation and benefits. These include basic salary and results
and individual performance-based bonus to attract and retain
talents.
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Mr. Ip Chi Shing

e
_ g
ErHEE
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin

Chairman and Non-executive Director
Mr. Ip Chi Shing, aged 70, is the Chairman and the Co-founder
of the Group and Mr. Ip was re-designated as the Chairman of
the Group and a Non-executive Director of the Company in 2012.
Mr. Ip focuses on the leading of the Board, the Group’s long-
term development strategy and the planning and inheritability of
human resources of the Group. He is the brother of Mr. Yip Tsz
Hin, the Deputy Chairman of the Group, a Co-Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, an Executive Director of the Company as
well as a member of the Senior Leadership Team and the father
of Mr. Ip Kwan, the Chief Corporate Development Officer of the
Group and a member of the Senior Leadership Team. In 2006,
Mr. Ip established “lp Chi Shing Charitable Foundation Limited”
with the current objectives of carrying out charity activities in
China and Hong Kong include fostering education in China and
providing care for the underprivileged groups in Hong Kong and
making contributions to society.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, aged 59, joined the Group in 1977. Mr. Yip
is the Deputy Chairman of the Group, a Co-Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, an Executive Director of the Company and
a member of Senior Leadership Team. Mr. Yip has over 40 years
of experience in the manufacture of and trading in petrochemical
products. He is the brother of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, the Chairman of
the Group and a Non-executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. Ho Sai Hou

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wong Yuk, aged 54, joined the Group in 2015. Mr. Wong
is a Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Group, an Executive
Director of the Company and a member of the Senior Leadership
Team. Mr. Wong obtained a Bachelor of Science in Mechanical
Engineering from The University of Hong Kong and completed
a Master in Business Administration with The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1992. Before he joined the Group, he was the
Managing Director — China Strategy and Investment of Methanex,
a global market leader in methanol. He had also worked with
Shell for over 26 years and was its General Manager — Shell
Specialities China/Hong Kong and China Local Senior Downstream
Representative. Mr. Wong has more than 30 years of extensive
experience in the petrochemical industry.

Mr. Ho Sai Hou, aged 51, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Ho is
the Chief Financial Officer of the Group, an Executive Director of
the Company, a member of the Senior Leadership Team and the
Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Ho obtained a Bachelor
of Social Sciences Degree in Accounting from The University of
Hong Kong and completed his EMBA with The China Europe
International Business School in 2007. Previously, Mr. Ho had
worked for several listed companies in Hong Kong as their
chief financial officer, executive director and company secretary.
He is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 20
years of experience in accounting, finance, taxation and company
secretarial work.
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Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Non-executive Director

Mr. Tong Wui Tung, aged 68, was elected as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in 1993 and was
re-designated as a Non-Executive Director of the Company in
2004. Mr. Tong is a partner of the law firm, Messrs. Cheung Tong
& Rosa Solicitors, legal advisers of the Group on Hong Kong Law
which receives usual professional fees in connection with services
rendered to the Group. Mr. Tong has been practising as a solicitor
in Hong Kong for over 30 years and is also an independent
non-executive director of Country Garden Holdings Company
Limited, a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kong Chi, aged 60, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 1993. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong retired in 1993
after working in the merchant banking industry for over 10
years. Mr. Wong does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies.
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Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Independent Non-executive Directors

(Continued)

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun, aged 66, has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Ku
graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and began his career at Shell
Chemicals. Mr. Ku has extensive managerial experience in the
oil & petrochemical industries in the Greater China region. He
was a Director of Shell Hong Kong Limited, a Board Director of
the Business Environment Council and the Chairman of Tianjin
International Petroleum Storage and Transportation Company
Limited. Mr. Ku does not hold any directorship in other listed
companies.

Mr. Ng Siu Ping, aged 59, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 1992.
Mr. Ng retired in 2011 and was thereafter re-designated as a
Non-executive Director of the Company. He was re-designated
as an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
in 2014. Mr. Ng obtained a Higher Diploma in Accountancy
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University) and a Master Degree of Science in
Corporate Governance and Directorship from the Hong Kong
Baptist University. He is a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and a certified public accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Ng has over 30 years of experience in the field of auditing
and accounting. Mr. Ng does not hold any directorship in other
listed companies.
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Management Executives

Mr. Ip Kwan, aged 35, joined the Group as an assistant to Director
of the Group in 2007. Mr. Ip is currently the Chief Corporate
Development Officer of the Group and a member of the Senior
Leadership Team. He was previously a Co-President of the Bauhinia
Coatings Group and the General Manager of the Bauhinia Coatings
Group Limited. He is the son of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, the Chairman
of the Group and a Non-executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from the London School of Economics with a Bachelor’s
degree in Government and Economics. Before joining the Group,
he had worked in the investment banking industry for three years.

Ms. Tse Yik Chu, aged 41, joined the Group in 2009. Ms. Tse
is currently the Director of Group Human Resources and a
member of the Senior Leadership Team. She was previously
the Investor Relations and Corporate Communications Director
of the Group. Ms. Tse obtained a Bachelor of Communication
from the Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master of Science
in Finance from the National University of Ireland. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Tse engaged in corporate affairs in an
international oil company. Ms. Tse also actively involves in public
service and she is currently committee members of Rehabilitation
Advisory Committee and its sub-committee on Public Education
on Rehabilitation. She is also an executive member of a
non-government organization called Support the Employment of
People with Disabilities (SEPD).

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu, aged 53, joined the Group in 1987.
Mr. Kwong is the General Manager of the Inks Group. Mr. Kwong
was previously an Executive Director of the Company and a
member of the Senior Leadership Team. He obtained a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration from The Open University of
Hong Kong and has over 20 years of experience in the field of
marketing and management of petrochemical industry.

Mr. Fung Ping Kwong, aged 54, joined the Group in 2010.
Mr. Fung is a Co-President of the Bauhinia Coatings Group. He was
a member of the Senior Leadership Team as well as the Head and
Senior Leader of Group Human Resources. He obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in Science (Economics) from The University of London, a
Master’'s Degree in Business Administration from The University of
Warwick and a Diploma in Training Management jointly conferred
by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and The Institute of
Personnel and Development, United Kingdom. Mr. Fung has
extensive experience in different human resources areas including
organisational development, management development, talents
management and employee relations. He worked in a number
of multi-national companies from insurance, petrochemical and
pharmaceutical industries. Before he joined the Group, he was the
Group Human Resources Director of a Hong Kong listed company.
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Directors’ and Management Executives’ Profiles

Management Executives (continued)

Ms. Yau Ching Man, aged 34, joined the Group as Executive
Management Trainee in 2005. Ms. Yau is currently a Co-President
of the Bauhinia Coatings Group. She was a member of the
Senior Leadership Team, the Head of Operations and the General
Manager of Best Lubricant Blending Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. Ms. Yau holds a Bachelor Degree in
Computer Engineering from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Zhao Chu Bang, aged 56, is an experienced engineer.
Mr. Zhao joined the Group in 1993 and has been the Managing
Director of the Jiangmen Handsome Chemical Development
Limited since 2005. He graduated from The South China
University of Technology. Mr. Zhao has over 30 years of
experience in the chemical industry and has extensive experience
in management.

Mr. Chen Zhen Xin, aged 37, joined the Group in 2015.
Mr. Chen is the General Manager of Lubricant Group. Mr. Chen
graduated from Remin University of China, School of International
Studies. Prior to joining the Group, he has various experience
in lubricating procurement, logistics, project management,
enterprise resource planning systems, manufacturing, business
development, sales and retail gas station networking. Mr. Chan
has over 15 years of experience in oil-chemical industry.

Dr. Kang Ning, aged 48, joined the Group in 2016. Dr. Kang
is the Chief Technology Officer of the Group. Dr. Kang got his
PhD from Institute of Chemistry, Chinese Academy of Sciences
and completed postdoctoral research at McGill University and
the University of Montreal. Before he joined the Group, he was a
manager of biomaterials division at Polymer Source Inc. (Canada),
professor (PhD supervisor) and team leader at Qingdao Institute
of Bioenergy and Bioprocess Technology at Chinese Academy
of Sciences, technical leader of Formulation Science in The
Dow Chemical Company, Asia Pacific Technical Director of PPG
Packaging Coatings, President of Jiangsu Changshun Group Co.,
Ltd. Research Institute, etc. Dr. Kang has over 25-year experience
in chemical area.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2017.

Principal Activities and Business Review
The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading in
solvents, coatings, inks and lubricants. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Details of the activities during the year ended 31 December
2017 as required by Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance
including, a fair review of the business of the Group with
financial performance indicators including revenue, sales volume
and net profit of the Group as well as revenue and operating
profit of its business segments and an indication of likely
future development in the Company’s business are explained
in the Chairman’s Statement and the Report of the Co-Chief
Executive Officers from pages 8 to 17 of this annual report. These
indicators illustrate the performance of the Group as a whole
and of its individual businesses in terms of business development
and profitability in attaining its corporate vision of “Towards a
Century of Revered Leadership”. The past five years’ trend of
these indicators together with other financial ratios of return on
average total assets and return on average shareholders’ funds
are disclosed in pages 28 to 29 of this annual report. Particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year, if any, can be found in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements. The Group’s liquidity
and financial resources are discussed in pages 32 to 34. Save as
the above sections, details of the other activities required to be
disclosed are explained as follows:
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Directors’ Report

Principal Activities and Business Review
(Continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s businesses and prospects as well as financial
conditions and results of operations will be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties including business risks, operational
risks and financial risks. For business risks, all the Group's
businesses are mainly carried out in the mainland so it will be
subject to the economic and political development and market
situation of the PRC. For operational risks, the Group is engaged
in manufacturing of chemical products and it is thus exposed
to various environmental, health and safety risks in running its
operations. For financial risks, the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities will have market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk associated therewith.
Details of the policies on how to mitigate these financial risks are
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

The relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Company include, among others, the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622), the Cayman Islands
Company Law and the regulations in relation to its business
including health, safety and environmental protection, workplace
conditions and employment. In addition, the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
apply to the Company.

The Company seeks to ensure compliance with these
requirements through various measures such as internal control,
risk management and trainings.

Environment Policies

The discussions on the Group’s environmental policies are
contained in Corporate Sustainability section on page 36 of this
annual report.
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Principal Activities and Business Review
(Continued)

Relationship with Customers, Suppliers, Employees
and other Stakeholders

The Group maintains a large number of customers and suppliers,
which spread across diverse industries and geographical areas.
The Group has good relationship with its customers and suppliers.
As the top 5 largest customers of the Group accounted for
less than 5% of the Groups' total revenue, the directors of
the Company considered that the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of counterparties and customers. Further details of the
credit control system and credit terms granted to customers are
shown in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group's relationship with its employees and with investors and
shareholders are shown in page 37 under the heading of Human
Resources and in pages 79 to 80 of the Corporate Governance
Report, respectively.

Emolument Policy and Long-term

Incentive Plan
The general description of remuneration policy of the Group is
shown in page 37 of the section headed “Human Resources”.

Long-term incentive plan primarily consists of Share Option
Schemes. Please refer to pages 53 to 54 of this report and note
32 to the consolidated financial statements for the details of the
Share Option Schemes.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 89 and note 11 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. An interim dividend of HK5 cents per share was paid
to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) during
the year. The Directors propose the distribution of a final dividend
of HK10 cents per share totalling not less than HK$56,389,000 to
Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members at
the close of business on 15 June 2018 and the retention of the
remaining profit in reserves.
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Number of Issued Shares

Details of movements in the number of issued shares of
the Company during the year are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The shares are issued pursuant to the exercise of the share
options under the Share Option Schemes (as defined in the
section headed “Share Options”).

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 93 of the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution of the final
dividend represent the share premium, special reserve and
retained profits. Under Chapter 22 of the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the share premium of the Company is available
for distribution of or paying dividends to Shareholders subject to
the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of dividend,
the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In accordance with the Company’s
Articles of Association, dividends can be distributed out of the
share premium and retained profits of the Company, which
amounted to HK$967,602,000 as at 31 December 2017 (2016:
HK$917,386,000).

Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Properties

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in notes 13 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors and Service Contracts
The Directors during the year and as at the date of this report
were:

Chairman and Non-executive Director:
Mr. Ip Chi Shing

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (Deputy Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Yuk (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Ho Sai Hou (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu
(resigned from the duty with effect from 1 January 2018)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun

Mr. Ng Siu Ping
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Directors’ Report

Directors and Service Contracts (continued)

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ip Chi Shing, a Non-executive Director and the
Chairman, Mr. Wong Kong Chi and Mr. Ku Yuen Fun, being
Independent Non-executive Directors, will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to
be held on 5 June 2018 ("AGM") and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming AGM.
Mr. Tong Wui Tung, a Non-executive Director, is also subject
to retirement by rotation at the forthcoming AGM. However,
Mr. Tong has informed the Company that he will not offer
himself for re-election at the AGM and will therefore retire at the
conclusion of the AGM. All remaining Directors will continue in
office. Each of the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors were appointed for a specific term until the closing of
the next annual general meeting at which he is being re-elected
by the Shareholders.

No Director being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The fees of the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors are determined by the Board.

The emolument payable to the Directors is determined with
reference to their qualification and experience, responsibilities
undertaken, contribution to the Company and the prevailing
market level of remuneration of similar position.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in

Securities

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, at 31 December 2017,
the interests of the Directors and their respective associates in
the shares of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which are required
(a) to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of the Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken under
such provision of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

RAESF R AR B R B FT e RE a0 Issuers to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
R were as follows:

"R Long positions

FEEERORAEROHA RZF-1%

Number of Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares held tZR=t -8

ERAFARES

BRERR RxzBAL

hfES hfER R &S Interests in Percentage of the

Interests in Interests in Interests in Share Issued Share

Shares Shares Shares Options' Capital of the

A 4 e A B8  Companyas at

Esfe Name of Directors Personal Family Corporate Personal Total 31.12.2017

ZERAE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 155,042,532 8,802,000 (a) 24,380,000 (b) - 188,224,532 33.38%

21854 Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 28,540,248 14,000,000 (¢) - - 42,540,248 7.54%

InEE Mr. Wong Yuk - - - - - -

At zEsE Mr. Ho Sai Hou - - - 200,000 200,000 0.04%

BARLAE Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu? - - - 200,000 200,000 0.04%

EEREE Mr. Tong Wi Tung - 700,000 (d) - - 700,000 0.12%

EESRE Mr. Wong Kong Chi - 100,000 (e) - - 100,000 0.02%

ARARE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 20,680 14,000 () - - 34,680 0.01%

RATEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 2,532,000 50,000 () - - 2,582,000 0.46%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in
Securities (Continued)

Long positions (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(0

(d)

(e)

®

(9)

Out of these shares, 6,796,000 shares are jointly held with Madam
Liang Bih Yu, the wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing and 2,006,000 shares are
held by his wife.

These shares are held respectively by Ip Chi Shing Charitable
Foundation Limited, a charitable organisation (20,300,000 shares)
and Yip's Care Extension Foundation Limited, a limited company,
(4,080,000 shares). Mr. Ip Chi Shing controls 50% (together with his
wife control 100%) and 60% (together with his younger sister and
brother control 100%) of the voting power at the general meetings
of Ip Chi Shing Charitable Foundation Limited and Yip's Care
Extension Foundation Limited respectively. He is therefore deemed to

be interested in these shares held by these two corporations.

These shares are held by Madam Yip Tso Ka Lai, Brenda, the wife of

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin.

These shares are held by Madam Lau Mui Sum, the wife of Mr. Tong
Wui Tung.

These shares are held by Madam Jim Siu Wai, the wife of Mr. Wong
Kong Chi.

These shares are held by Madam So Yim Ha, the wife of Mr. Ku Yuen

Fun.

These shares are held by Madam Siu Oi Li, Maicy, the wife of Mr. Ng
Siu Ping.

All the share options are unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu resigned as Executive Director with effect

from 1 January 2018.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in
Securities (Continued)

Long positions (Continued)

Details of the share options held by the Directors under the
Company'’s existing share option scheme (i.e. part of the interests
in the underlying shares) are shown in the next section headed
“Share Options”.

Each of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Madam Liang
Bih Yu, the wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, holds one non-voting
deferred share of Yip's H.C. (Holding) Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company.

Other than as disclosed above and certain nominee shares in
subsidiaries held by Directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, as at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors,
chief executive nor their associates held any interests or short
positions in the securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO.

Share Options

The Shareholders at the AGM held on 25 May 2012 approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) and the termination of the old share option
scheme which was adopted by the Company on 3 September
2002 (the “Old Share Option Scheme”, together with the “New
Share Option Scheme”, collectively known as “Share Option
Schemes”). The New Share Option Scheme will expire on 24
May 2022. Options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme
prior to its termination will continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the rules thereof. The main purpose of the
New Share Option Scheme is to recognise and motivate the
contribution of eligible participants, to provide incentives to
them, to help the Company retain eligible participants and recruit
additional employees and to provide them with a direct economic
interest in attaining the long term business objectives of the
Company. Particulars of the New Share Option Scheme are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Share Options (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, movements in the
number of options which had been granted to certain Directors
and employees under the Company’s Share Option Schemes are

as follows
BREZA
Number of Share Options
RoB-t# RZB-t#
-B-8 rEE XEE  tZAZt-R
TRE BRETES WARTE Bt BAN/HH B
B AH Exercise  Exercise period Outstanding Exercised Lapsed/Cancelled Outstanding
Date of grant price  of share options asat 1.1.2017  during the year  during the year  as at 31.12.2017
B
HKS
Ez
Directors
FtEREE ZZ-Z5-f1-A 5942 ZEZ-R5-A+-R% 200,000 - - 200,000
Mr. Ho Sai Hou “Z-=5-A+H
11 January 2013 11 January 2015 to
10 January 2023
BEREL ZZ-=F-A+-H 594 ZE-R¥-A+-HE 200,000 - - 200,000
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu'’ ZTZ=F-A1H
11 January 2013 11 January 2015 to
10 January 2023
400,000 - - 400,000
ATAL
Eligible Persons
“RZ+FMAZA 4050 ZZTLEMAZHE 152,000 - (152,000 -
“Z-tF¥MAZA
3 April 2007 3 April 2007 to
2 April 2017
ZEENETAZ+-A 1950 ZEEAFTA=+-HE 220,000 (78,000) (2,000 140,000
“Z-N\FTA=TH
31 October 2008 31 October 2008 to
30 October 2018
—ZENET AR 453%  ZEENE+ARAZE 710,000 - (70,000) 640,000
“E-NFTAMA
5 October 2009 5 October 2009 to
4 October 2019
“2-=f-At-H 50  ZZ-RE-At+-HZ 4,740,000 - (510,000 4,230,000
ZZZZE-ATH
11 January 2013 11 January 2015 to
10 January 2023
5,822,000 (78,000) (734,000) 5,010,000
6,222,000 (78,000) (734,000) 5,410,000

! BMEREER T N\F— A Bi#

ERITEE

! Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu resigned as Executive Director with effect

from 1 January 2018.
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Share Options (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no option was
granted to Directors or employees. In respect of the options
exercised during the year, weighted average closing price of the
shares of the Company immediately before the dates on which
the options were exercised was HK$3.237.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

Substantial Shareholders

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as at 31 December
2017, the following shareholders (other than the Directors or
chief executives of the Company disclosed above) had interest in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company:

HE Long positions
R-ZE—+tF
+=A=+-8
HARXFE BT
BARZEBSL
Percentage of
the issued share
FTERRERE FERGEE capital of the
Name of Substantial g% B 5 Number of Company as at
Shareholder Capacity Note shares held 31.12.2017
ERBL L BEmfEAA 1 47,547,913 8.43%

Ms. Ip Fung Kuen Beneficial Owner
FMR LLC NElER 2 39,640,000 7.03%
Corporate Interest

FIDELTY PURITAN TRUST BEmfEAA 3 28,220,000 5.00%

Beneficial Owner

ERCIEEERRAF « T LFEFR
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BAERMEBZFAERNONELLRE
BERBEKRIBESAERARAFTE &
1TIMD 2 HE 5 B47,592,00008% ¢ (i) E &
TR T -ZFRXABEESS5 913K
MRINELETR -_TE—AF=-ALE
1,000,0000% §& 15 °

FMR LLC#E#BFMR Co., Inc.f#EZEH A
39,640,0000% 78 2 & f% 1  FMR Co.,
Inc. AFMR LLCZ & & I /B 2 &lFidelity
Management & Research Company® &
BH - AAREBAN L BFMR Co.,
Inc.# 4 239,640,000/ & 2 & I {3
&1 3,710,000 A 2 A B 3 A FMR LLC
2B ¥ A ZFidelity Management Trust
Company#% A * M17,536,000/% & 2 7
Bt BFMR LLCHE T B K R & 48
F Z Fidelity Investments Canada ULC
BEH-ZZEFMR LLCEERBREES
Fidelity Canada Investors LLC 2 100% %
# + MFidelity Canada Investors LLCHE
H483A Bay Street Holdings LPZ64%
% #E - 483A Bay Street Holdings LP¥#
HBluelay Lux 1 S.a.r12Z100%M% # -
ifBluelay Lux 1 S.a.r.##AFIC Holdings
ULCZ100% & # - # M FIC Holdings
ULCHE AFidelity Investments Canada
ULC.Z100% & 1 -

Fidelity Puritan TrustE# & A
28,220,000 R A A AR D AN A B ES
MR D18 BFMR LLCE T Z i 2s -

EEEREE

Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders (continvea)
Long positions (Continued)

Note:

3.

The calculation of the number of shares held takes into account (i)
the interests of Ms. Ip in the issued share capital of the Company
disclosed under the SFO (i.e. 47,592,000); (ii) the acquisition of
955,913 shares by Ms. Ip in June 2012 and (iii) the disposal of
1,000,000 shares by Ms. Ip in March 2015.

FMR LLC held 39,640,000 shares of the Company indirectly through
FMR Co., Inc. FMR Co., Inc. is wholly owned by Fidelity Management
& Research Company, which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of FMR
LLC. The Company was notified that of the above mentioned
39,640,000 shares of the Company held by FMR Co., Inc., 3,710,000
shares of the Company were held for Fidelity Management Trust
Company, which is wholly-owned by FMR LLC, while 7,536,000
shares of the Company were held for Fidelity Investments Canada
ULC, which is ultimately owned by certain employees and
shareholders of FMR LLC. Those employees and shareholders of
FMR LLC own 100% equity interest in Fidelity Canada Investors LLC,
which owns 64% equity interest in 483A Bay Street Holdings LP.
483A Bay Street Holdings LP owns 100% equity interest in Bluelay
Lux 1 S.a.r.l., which owns 100% equity interest in FIC Holdings ULC,
which in turn owns 100% equity interest in Fidelity Investments
Canada ULC.

28,220,000 shares of the Company were held directly by Fidelity
Puritan Trust and the Company was notified that such shares are
deemed interest of FMR LLC.
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Substantial Shareholders (continveq)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person,
other than the interests disclosed above in the section “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in Securities”,
had notified the Company of an interest or short position in the
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the

Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2017, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

Major Suppliers and Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group's total revenue.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total
purchases.

As at 31 December 2017, none of the Directors, their associates
or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had
any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers.

Corporate Governance

Report on the Company's corporate governance is set out in
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 61 to 80 of this annual
report.
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Directors’ Report

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017 and at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of
the Company’s total issued shares capital as required under the
Listing Rules.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the New Share Option Scheme and the Old Share
Option Scheme as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Donations
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group made
charitable and other donations amounting to HK$3,513,546.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that each
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director,
Auditor or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given
in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance to cover
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.

Such permitted indemnity provisions have been in force

throughout the year under review and is currently in force at the
time of the approval of this report.
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HERXIRESZSCEHE Connected Transactions and Directors’

i Interests in Contracts

() EHE-_ZT—tF+=-_A=+—H (a) During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group paid
IFFEA - AREE 5 532 14960,000 rent of HK$960,000 (2016: HK$960,000) and HK$600,000
BT (ZET—XF: 960,000/ (2016: HK$600,000) to Goldex Investments Limited and
7) %600,0008 7T (ZF — X5 Galsheer Investments Limited respectively in which Mr. Ip
600,000 7T) 2 e T AEKRES Chi Shing (the controlling shareholder of the Company and
RARRRREEARLAR &% a Director) and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (a Director), have beneficial
BEREE ([RRAaEREELE interests respectively.

FDREFHEE(TEZ]) DRI
REMEAARFAEmES -

(by FA AEBPMEEXNEZSER (b) During the year, the Group received rent and license
ERAFR([E€g)MHE RE fee of HK$400,000 (2016: nil) and service fee income
% /400,000 7T (=T —R4F: of HK$41,000 (2016: nil) from Ip Chi Shing Charitable
) M RIEE WA A41,0008 7T (= Foundation Limited in which Mr. Ip Chi Shing, the controlling
T—RE | EENEEREAR shareholder of the Company and a Director, has controlling
AEREERES UWHBESS interest over it.

(0 FEEBABRARAESERITH (c) The key management personnel are the directors of the
A B o XA 45 A1 0 B BN EF A SR Company and the management executives of the Company.
e BmEMTe - The details of the remuneration paid to them are set out in

note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRIAEFMBEEN REAFEFERES Other than disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which
F A B E I A FEARR A S E A the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
MEBARAMSEARRES HESF a Director, an entity connected with a director, and a controlling
B3 B NITR AR R S H KB A R shareholder of the Company or its subsidiary companies had a
EEREESEEREGIEREN- material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the

end of the year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report

Discloseable Transaction

Acquisition of property

On 10 November 2016, Atlantic Treasure Limited, Midland
Realty (Comm.) Ltd. and Radiant New Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a provisional agreement
for the sale and purchase of 27th Floor and Space Nos. 3 and
4 on 1st Floor, Fortis Bank Tower, Nos. 77, 78-79 Gloucester
Road, Hong Kong (the “Property”). The sale and purchase of
the Property was completed on 18 January 2017. The said Space
No. 4 of the carpark space was rented to an independent third
party at a monthly rental of HK$4,400 until 28 February 2017.
The Property is currently held by Radiant New Limited as self-
use office and as long-term investment property for rental. The
Property is held on long lease.

Acquisition of assets and business

On 2 January 2018, Yip's Camel (Hong Kong) Limited (formerly
known as “Yip's Coatings (Hong Kong) Limited”) and 18 &% %!
(EF5)BBR2AA (Hang Cheung Coatings (Hui Yang) Limited*)
(collectively the "Purchasers”), both wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, entered into an agreement for sale of assets
("Agreement”) with the DGL Camel International Limited,
DGL Camel (Hong Kong) Limited, =X EAGEEE R (R=) B
R A& (DGL Camel Coatings (Dongguan) Limited*), % &A
ez R (E8)BR AR (DGL Camel Coatings (Shanghai)
Limited*) (collectively the “Vendors”) as well as DuluxGroup
(Investments) Pty Limited and The National Lacquer and Paint
Products Company Limited, being the Vendors’ guarantors. Under
the Agreement, the Purchasers, agreed to purchase and the
Vendors agreed to sell the Assets and the Business (as defined
in the published announcement dated 2 January 2018). The said
acquisition of assets and business was completed on 1 February
2018.

# For identification purposes only
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Contracts Concerning Management and

Administration

Save for employment contracts with directors and full time
employees of the Company, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any principal
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during
the year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 have been audited by the Company’s auditors,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who shall retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
IP CHI SHING
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 21 March 2018
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Corporate Governance Report

Statement of Compliance

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance so as to achieve the Group’s objectives
of maximizing values for its employees, customers, suppliers,
business partners and shareholders, and safeguarding the
interests of them. The Company has complied with all code
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report” (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2017 except that the Company does not have a
nomination committee on the ground as stated under the section
headed "“Composition of the Board” (CG Code provisions A.5.1
to A.5.4).

provisions of the

Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “"Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiries, all Directors have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board

The Board’s principal duties are setting policies, monitoring
the execution of such policies, and providing supervision and
assistance to the overall management of the Group.

Composition of the Board

As of the date of this annual report, the Board is chaired by
Mr. Ip Chi Shing and comprised a total of eight Directors,
namely, three Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The number of
Independent Non-executive Directors represents more than one-
third of the Board which fulfill the requirement under Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules. Each of the Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-executive Directors is appointed for a specific
term until the closing of the relevant annual general meeting
at which he is being re-elected by the Shareholders. The list
of Directors with their roles and functions is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

With effect from 1 January 2018, Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu resigned
as an Executive Director of the Company and remains as the
General Manager of the Inks Group.

Biographic details of the Directors are set out in the section of
Directors” and Management Executives’ Profiles on pages 38 to
41. Mr. Ip Chi Shing, the Chairman, is the brother of Mr. Yip Tsz
Hin who is a Co-Chief Executive Officer (“Co-CEQ") of the Group.
Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not otherwise related to
each other.

The Company has received annual confirmations from all
three Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
still considers the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent. Two of the Independent Non-executive Directors
possess the appropriate professional accounting qualifications and
related financial management experience.

The Board regularly reviews its composition and membership to
ensure that it has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Group's
business to discharge its responsibilities effectively. Currently,
the Board is responsible for the nomination and appointment
of new directors. The Company considers it is more beneficial
and efficient for the full Board to perform the functions of the
nomination committee.
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The Board (Continued)

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”) which
sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Policy
is summarized as follows:

e  the selection of candidates of the Board will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board

e the Board will report on the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Policy

e the Board will review the Policy at appropriate times so as to
ensure its effectiveness

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board reviewed
the procedures for the Directors to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company's expenses.

Directors and officers liability and company reimbursement
insurance coverage has also been arranged.
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The Board (Continued)
Operation of the Board

During the year ended 31 December 2017, five regular Board
meetings, eleven other Board meetings and one Non-executive
Directors meeting were held. The attendance of each Director at

EROREFRNEHEERE LR REE these meetings is shown in the table below:
P

ESEERGELUES ESSHMERLES
Regular Board Other Board
BITES: Executive Directors: Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
HrEEsE Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 4/5 10/11
F B %A Mr. Wong Yuk 5/5 10/11
GRS Mr. Ho Sai Hou 5/5 11/11
B0 B B o AR Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu’ 5/5 5/11
ESgER FBTES ExgHM
gRLEE e RS eBHER
Regular Board Non-executive Other Board
Meetings Directors Meeting Meetings
FHITES: Non-executive Directors: Attendance Attendance Attendance
RAERKE(ER) M Ip Chi Shing (Chairman) 5/5 ”n 211
FERTE Mr. Tong Wui Tung 5/5 n 1711
ESgER kBTES ExgHM
gRLEE BHELER BRLEE
Regular Board Non-executive Other Board
Independent Non-executive Meetings Directors Meeting Meetings
BYFHTES: Directors: Attendance Attendance Attendance
BERESRE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 4/5 ” 2/11
nHESRAE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 4/5 ” 2/11
REBTFRAE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 4/5 11 1711

! BEREER-_FT-NF—A—BiE !

ERITEE

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu resigned as Executive Director on 1 January

2018.

HE-_Z—+H+-_A=+—BILFHE
N BETTREREFEEHREE HRE
SEEUARIGHEREB2E KR
TEEREREH EFaR_T—*
FENERATHREFSHMLER
MHERESEHRTREFSERTM
BREBIBZEE -BEFETREEY
TTRBYIFRITESEITT —RALEH
TERELFENEH-

During the year ended 31 December 2017, five regular Board
meetings were held, which involved the active participation in
person by all the attending Directors. Besides these regular Board
meetings, eleven other Board meetings were convened during
2017 to approve routine business or discuss any matters that
required the Board’s timely attention. The Chairman of the Board
held a meeting with all Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors without the presence of Executive
Directors.
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The Board (Continued)
Operation of the Board (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the role of the
company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”)
included, amongst others, ensuring that the Directors have
access to all necessary information and that all Board procedures
were followed. The Company Secretary was also responsible for
offering opportunities of continuing professional development to
all Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
help ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Directors were also provided with monthly updates
on the Company's performance, financial position and prospects
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge
their duties. The Company Secretary, Mr. Ho Sai Hou, is a full time
employee of the Company. Mr. Ho confirmed that he fulfilled
the requirement of taking no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year under review.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The Company, from time to time, provides in-house trainings for
the Directors in the form of seminars, workshops and reading
materials on the latest development of applicable laws, rules and
regulations, management, financial and business issues to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the Board reviewed the policy for directors’
induction and professional development.
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The Board (Continued)
Directors’ Training and Professional Development

(Continued)
B AR FHEEFTLEBBREE In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in various
B g RRE - RBEESRHED professional development seminars and courses. A summary of
R HET—tFT+ZA=1+—H training received by Directors during the year ended 31 December
ITFEEEEMEINBIBMENT 2017 according to the records provided by the Directors is as
follows:
E &R

Type of Trainings

BER/REE
kS REM B R
Seminars and/or prey
A EE 3 conferences and/ Reading and
= Directors: In-house training of forums on-line studying
EEKLLE(EFE)  Mr Ip Chi Shing (Chairman) v v
EEREE Mr. Tong Wui Tung v v
BrEksE Mr. Yip Tsz Hin v v
F B A& Mr. Wong Yuk v v
e[t 5 58 4 Mr. Ho Sai Hou v v v
0 (2] R 2 A Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu’ v v
BEEERE Mr. Wong Kong Chi v v
HERAEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun v

RIBFEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping v
! BEBEER_—_Z— N\F— A —HiEE i Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu resigned as Executive Director on 1 January

THITES 2018.
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The Board (Continued)
Delegation by the Board

The Board, as the highest governing body, is collectively
responsible for leading, planning and controlling the businesses
of the Group, and also for performing the corporate governance
duties and functions as more specifically set out in the list
of matters reserved for the Board. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the position of the Chairman of the Board was
held by Mr. Ip Chi Shing, and the positions of Co-CEOs were held
by Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Mr. Wong Yuk. With effect from 1 January
2018, Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu resigned as an Executive Director.
As disclosed in the section below, the Company established the
Senior Leadership Team (“SLT”). Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Mr. Wong
Yuk, the Co-CEOs, currently oversee the work of SLT and other
senior management of the Group. The above structure is to
ensure a clear distinction between Chairman’s duty to manage
the Board and the management’'s duty to oversee the overall
internal operation of the Group.

The Board has delegated to SLT with broad management
responsibilities including, but not limited to, formulating
and implementing policies and business strategies, as well as
supervising the performance of the Group’s different business
segments. SLT currently comprises a total of five members, three
of which are Executive Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Yip
Tsz Hin, Mr. Wong Yuk and Mr. Ho Sai Hou. Three members of SLT
resigned from the SLT with effect from 1 January 2018, namely
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu, Mr. Fung Ping Kwong and Ms. Yau Ching
Man. Such changes will ease these senior management from their
duties regarding the Group'’s overall strategy and development
and allow them to focus on frontline operation and business
development of their respective subgroups.
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The Board (Continued)
Delegation by the Board (Continued)

A formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board is maintained
and is subject to regular review. The more important matters

include:

setting long term objectives and strategies

approving preliminary results announcements

approving annual budgets

approving major capital expenditure, acquisitions and
disposals

establishing risk management policies

approving notifiable transactions and connected transactions
declaring and recommending the payment of dividends
appointing new directors

establishing Board committees

reviewing and monitoring of internal control and risk
management

reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirement and
practices on corporate governance and compliance with CG
Code

approving major policies and guidelines

Senior Leadership Team

SLT members

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin

Mr. Wong Yuk

Mr. Ho Sai Hou

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu

(resigned from the duty with effect
from 1 January 2018)

Mr. Ip Kwan

Mr. Fung Ping Kwong

(resigned from the duty with effect
from 1 January 2018)

Ms. Yau Ching Man

(resigned from the duty with effect
from 1 January 2018)

Ms. Tse Yik Chu

(appointed with effect from 1 January 2017)
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The Board (Continued)
Duties and responsibilities of SLT

e Assist the Board in setting the policies and strategies
o Execute the policies and strategic plans set by the Board

o Supervise the businesses of the subsidiaries
. Assist and co-ordinate the operations of subsidiaries, and
maximize the benefits for the Group

Currently, there are three committees, namely the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Health, Safety and Environment
Committee. All the Board committees are empowered by the
Board under their own terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee and
Remuneration of Directors and Senior

Management

The Remuneration Committee was formed in June 2005. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration Committee
consisted of one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Mr. Ng Siu Ping was the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. Major roles and functions of the
Remuneration Committee include:

o establishing a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy

o making recommendation to the Board on the Group's policy
and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management

o determining the remuneration packages of all individual
Executive Directors and senior management

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is
available on the Company’s website, Stock Exchange’s website
and from the Company Secretary upon request.
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The Remuneration Committee and
Remuneration of Directors and Senior

Management (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings and the attendance of each

BREBEHEERZHEREHINNOT member at these meeting is shown in the table below:
HEE
RE Member Attendance
RIBFEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 2/2
EERR T A Mr. Tong Wui Tung 2/2
mEELEE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 2/2
mESEA Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 2/2

o HEWITEREZRA
s FTHEIMNEERTEENSMR

AEZE—+tHFNAFEE
° BRI TN E = &Efi}\gﬁﬁﬂ
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—NEFEENEB R
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BRABEERS
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In these meetings, the Remuneration Committee:

e Assessed the performance of Executive Directors

o Reviewed and determined the salary adjustment for
Executive Directors and senior management in 2017

e reviewed the effectiveness of the reward scheme for senior
management in 2016 and discuss the reward scheme in
2017 and 2018

Directors’ emoluments consisted of payments to Directors in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The fees paid to each Director and senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed in November 1998. During the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Audit Committee comprised
one Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-executive
Directors and was chaired by Mr. Wong Kong Chi. Major duties of
the Audit Committee include:

e reviewing financial information of the Group

° overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system,
management and internal control procedures

° monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its
external auditors

risk

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on
the Company's website, Stock Exchange’s website and from the
Company Secretary upon request.
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EZZEEREBE-_Z—tH+=A The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended
ST-HBUEFEETTOAESR &K 31 December 2017 and the attendance of each member at these
BREHEERZHEREHINNOT : meetings is shown in the table below:

HEE
24=} Member Attendance
RBFERE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 4/4
mREELE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 4/4
HRFNE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 4/4
FEEMR & Mr. Tong Wui Tung 4/4
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In these meetings, the Audit Committee:

o reviewed the 2016 annual and 2017 interim results before
submitting to the Board for approval and in doing so, the
committee focused on material deviations of the Group’s
performance from past year's results, major areas of
judgment, selection and application of accounting policies
and compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

o received reports from the internal audit department,
discussed material findings with the head of internal audit,
reviewed the adequacy of resources of the internal audit
department and effectiveness of the internal audit function
and approved the internal audit plan

e reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems in accordance with established
guidelines and procedures

o discussed the audit plan with the Group's external auditors
and assessed its independence with reference to its policies
for maintaining independence and reviewed the extent of
non-audit services provided

e considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
function

e approved the audit fees paid to the Group's external
auditors

An Audit Committee meeting was held on 16 March 2018 to
review the Group's audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Health, Safety and Environment

Committee

The Health, Safety and Environment (“HSE") Committee
was established on 1 January 2012 in order to enhance the
importance of the health, safety and environmental protection
works to the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the HSE Committee comprised three Independent Non-executive
Directors members and was chaired by Mr. Ku Yuen Fun. Major
duties of the HSE Committee include:

e  the adoption and renewal of the Group’s health, safety and
environment policies

e the determining of the Group’s appetite for health, safety
and environment risk

° managing the Group’s monitoring environment for health,
safety and environment matters, including organization

structure, reward and punishment systems, resource inputs,

operation culture, etc.

The terms of reference of the HSE Committee is available on
the Company’s website and from the Company Secretary upon
request.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the HSE Committee
held three meetings and the attendance of each member at these
meetings is shown in the table below:

HE=R

KB Member Attendance
mES LA Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 3/3
BEELERE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 3/3
B EAE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 3/3

B4
w
48
8
ik

o REE

ERLETAEELZEHRAR
ZEENRERE

e BFEEFTEERBRRENERE
BE SEEFABLEENR 5
BUR

s EHHMEERER
F & E

s EERELZERABERNEERH
FEEHZ2KE

ERE B H) FE M

In these meetings, the HSE Committee:

° reviewed and amended the HSE policy as well as the terms
of reference of the HSE Committee of the Group

e reviewed and revised the Group’s HSE accident management
policy, senior management’s inspection of operation sites
requirements and training policies

° approved an annual schedule and plan for inspection of
operation sites drafted by the HSE department

o supervised the implementation of HSE policies as well as
attended safety inspection of an operating site
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Accountability and Audit
Directors’ and Auditors’ responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Group and their announcements
to shareholders and commit to the presentation of a balanced,
clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group's performance,
position and prospects. The Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Auditors’ reporting responsibilities are stated in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 81 to 88.

Risk Management and Internal Control
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group. The
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

Furthermore, the Board oversees the Group's risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis through the
following structures and processes:

e  Various Board sub-committees are set up with clear terms
of reference to monitor risks and controls of key business
activities. These Board sub-committees engage directly with
senior management of the Group regularly and report to the
Board on material findings and make recommendations to
improve the effectiveness of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems.

e Whilst the Board delegates wide powers to the management
to conduct business activities, it also promulgates Group
Polices (GPs) and establishes Group Authorization Limits
(GAs) to ensure that such activities are conducted prudently
and that proper balance is maintained between risks and
rewards. Under these GPs and GAs, management is required
to report to the Board regularly on major operational
risks and to seek Board’s specific approval on material
transactions.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

(Continued)
Annually, the Board:

o Receives annual reports from each of its sub-committees
which summarize the businesses covered during the past
year and major work focus for the following year.

e  Conducts an annual review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
regarding:

e significant risks and their changes;

e  financial reporting procedures;

. listing rule compliance;

e significant control failings and weaknesses; and

e adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training and budget of the Group's
financial and internal audit functions

The Board adopted “the Group Information Policy and Guidelines
for Handling Inside Information” in 2013 and revised the
aforesaid policy and guidelines on 1 December 2016. The Group
formed a team to manage and control the inside information (the
"IS Team”). The IS Team members include any Board members,
the Chief Financial Officer, a representative from the Company
Secretarial Department and any authorised persons. The IS Team
members review and monitor the Group’s activities to identity
if there is any inside information and to make accurate and
adequate disclosure timely.

The Company has an internal audit function. The internal audit
department was set up in 1997 to monitor independently the
implementation of the internal control procedures, compliance
with group policies and to make recommendations on the
effectiveness of the internal control systems. The head of internal
audit reports jointly to Mr. Ho Sai Hou (the Chief Financial Officer
of the Group, an Executive Director and the Company Secretary of
the Company and a member of SLT) and to the Audit Committee.
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BEE 2 & Auditor’s Remuneration
HE_ZT—tF+-A=+—HBL#F For the year ended 31 December 2017, the fee paid/payable to
BN T AT AR B SMNE i B AR the Group's external auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is
=Y BERA ST ZERNT set out as follows:
/BN E
Fee paid/payable
FH&IT
FriR fit 2 BR % Services rendered HK$'000
EZ R Audit services 3,830
EEZRE Non-audit services
P HRE Interim review 720
BEZAES Audit of provident fund 4
IR RAE = Shareholders’ Rights
ARTRAE—EER A - FRBRG The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the
RN EERBEESERARKRE R same voting rights and are entitled to all dividends declared. The
RiEw (BREMBIEIN) BIIEHRALQF rights of the shareholders are set out in, amongst others, the
MEHEMERME ([EHEIZMA]) restated articles of association of the Company (the “Restated
LRSS RRIE- Articles”) and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

BRRBEBRRASHEF Rights and Procedures for Shareholders

B 7 to convene a General Meeting

RIFEHNZRMAF681F RERESH Pursuant to Article 68 of the Restated Articles, a general meeting
JERRBIMBHAERF 2EB®E KM shall be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
B - BEAEREBEBREARAREEZ shareholders deposited at the principal place of business of the
FTELEEMEY (KWARATTHRE L Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
mEEEE - Al AR ER) & to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
ARG FEFRFTATHB LA the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
HFE MZEFBERAREREERZAA provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit
BAEARATIRTD 2 —MEREKR of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
ARRAEREEZHBRRA - of the Company which carries the rights of voting at the general

meeting.

MR K& IR A EAR N B — B AR (1% A general meeting may also be convened on the written
R—RARAUEER (HEREBA))ZE requisition of any one shareholder which is a recognized
HEXMABH AHEERAXRERQT clearing house (or its nominee) deposited at the principal place
REBZ X EZEEWE (HMARFT of business of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
BRELAFEL U B AT M Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
BR) EFIRARSZFEFTAREIATL office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
HBERAZZE BZARARREZX requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
ZHEABBEARETNLR Y2 —H % of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
RARBIRRAGIREEZHRKRA up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at the

general meeting of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders

to convene a General Meeting (Continued)

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 28 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 116 of the restated Articles, no person other
than a retiring Director shall, unless recommended by the Board,
be eligible for election to the officer of Director at any general
meeting unless, during the period, which shall be at least 7 days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing by a
member of the Company (not being the person to be proposed),
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given, of his intention to propose such person for election and
also notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected.

Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meeting

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the head office
and Hong Kong principal place of business of the Company, and
may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one
or more requisitionists.

Right to put enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their written enquiries to the Company by
post to the head office and Hong Kong principal place of business
of the Company or via e-mail through the Company’s website
(please refer to “Contact Us” at www.yipschemical.com).
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BR ABLEARTERBEFRERE R
HMREREHEBRREER R -
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Shareholders’ Meetings

The Board strives to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meeting to
communicate with Shareholders directly.

The 2017 AGM was held on 6 June 2017. The attendance of each
Director at this meeting is shown in the table below:

BREAFAEHER
HITES: Executive Directors: AGM Attendance
BEFerkas Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 1/
F 1B 5% A& Mr. Wong Yuk 1/1
IR Mr. Ho Sai Hou 11
0 B AR 4 A Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu’ 1/1

BEREEN —T—\F— - HLE

1 Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu resigned as Executive Director with effect

FRTES from 1 January 2018.

BRRBEREHER

FHITES: Non-executive Directors: AGM Attendance
EEXTE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 1/1
FEEMR ST & Mr. Tong Wui Tung 1/1
BRRBEAREHER

BYFHTES: Independent Non-executive Directors: AGM Attendance
=EELERE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 1/1
mEF LA Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 1/1
REBIFFEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 1/1
(R E—tF T+ A=+ —HBIF During the year ended 31 December 2017, there is no change

B

'$Aﬂﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁX#Iﬁ§ﬁﬁ
B ESAMERMAE AR EH

PR R) R Bt 22 P A8 vh A - 36 AT (A A A
WMEZREHER -
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in the Company’s constitutional documents. The latest version
of the Restated Articles of the Company is available on the
Company's website, Stock Exchange’s website and from the
Company Secretary upon request.
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Corporate Governance Report

Investor Relations and Communication

with Shareholders

The Group strives to maintain a high level of corporate
governance in every facet of its business; provide investors and
shareholders with accurate, transparent and timely information;
and seek good two-way communication with stakeholders.

The Group fully understands the importance of maintaining
timely communication with investors and shareholders. In
this regard, the Group's Investor Relations and Corporate
Communications Department regularly holds meetings with
investors and shareholders so as to build a good long-term
relationship through continuing dialogues. Immediately after
the announcement of interim and annual results every year,
the Group will hold an investor briefing or audio conference.
A webcast or recorded audio conference will also be hosted
subsequently so that investors and shareholders from Hong
Kong, the mainland or the overseas will be able to learn timely
of the Group’s operating performance and major development.
After the results announcements the Group will also take the
initiative to arrange meetings or teleconferences with investors
and shareholders where the management will answer their
guestions to ensure that they have a thorough understanding
of the results and development. In the annual general meeting
of shareholders every year, the Group is able to maintain good
interactive communication with shareholders through direct and
open dialogues.

In 2017, the Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Department arranged around 20 face-to-face meetings or
teleconferences with shareholders, institutional investors, fund
managers and analysts from Hong Kong, the mainland and the
overseas; the department met around 55 investors from Hong
Kong, the mainland and the overseas in the year. In case of need,
it would also arrange visits of the Group's plants for investors
and shareholders so that they can understand the production
process of each of the businesses and gain a better grasp of its
operational situation.
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Investor Relations and Communication

with Shareholders (continveq)

In addition to meeting with institutional investors, the Group
also values its communication with retail investors. Therefore
media briefings and broker presentation were held in the year
to update the media the Group’s latest development and to
raise the Group's profile at the retail investor level. To ensure
the timely and fair announcement of important information
about the Group, the Group is extensively using its corporate
website for uploading interim and annual financial statements,
announcements, press releases and presentation materials.
Investors and shareholders can thus quickly and easily browse
or download the information they need so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the Group. The Group
has also set up Yip’s Chemical Facebook page and WeChat
subscription page for posting the Group’s latest information
regularly. The Group expects to enhance constructive and

engaging conversations with various stakeholders from Hong
Kong, the mainland and the overseas through these social media
platforms.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

=2

To the Shareholders of Yip‘’s Chemical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yip’s
Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages 89 to
212, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code"”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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FRAREZENR

MRBEZERERBEANITHE R
RRHERARGEAWBRER/ER
MEE ZEFREATEREERS
HsmEREARREETRE MA
TTreHZETRREHEBNER -

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

RMNEFZ O E How our audit addressed
BREXEE BEREREKEE Key audit matter the key audit matter
EZ RN I5E Valuation of trade receivables
KITHNEZEKR AT E S EWEK We identified the valuation Our procedures in relation to
ERZEEABME FETHENRER of trade receivables as a valuation of trade receivables
BExEE RAZE B8%F: key audit matter as the included:
R EREEE allowance for doubtful debts
WA at KA EE o THE EEER is based on estimation and e Obtaining an understanding
RoNEERKE H 5 FE AR E) judgement by management. In of the Group's provision
HR - BEESE BERRRER determining the allowance for policy on trade receivables
BB ZEWERL [E %8 5 eI AR doubtful debts, management and management’s
REMEELDH: X2 AT g [0 14 A considers the customers’ credit assessment on the
HEEEX BB B history, settlement patterns, recoverability of trade
B RERER AT subsequent settlements and receivables;

aging analysis of the trade

o M BEEEE receivables. e Evaluating the reasonableness
55 IR U B SR B 8 of the Group’s provision
E2H RGPV ® HBENEE Refer to note 22 to the policy on trade receivables;
HHEE22 - M consolidated financial

82 EX L TEESRAT -

o WMERAESE

statements.

e Testing the aging analysis

W SR BR B of trade receivables, on
T 2 ST FF a sample basis, to the
& supporting documents; and

o WMERAHAESME
WEERE KGR
2 FEX

T FEFR

e Testing the subsequent
settlement of trade
receivables, on a sample
basis, to the supporting
documents.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

KM EZ WA E How our audit addressed
HREZSE BHEEZSE Key audit matter the key audit matter
FEGE Valuation of inventories
KTHNFEERE KRMARFEGHEDN We identified the valuation Our procedures in relation
REREZZE RBFefHE: of inventories as a key audit to valuation of inventories
REZGFEERER matter as the allowance for included:
ERERHRERR inventories is made based on
BEERARTE o TH BES5ER management’s identification e Obtaining an understanding
K2 BLAK om O 14 51 8 FERENRE of aged or obsolete inventories of the Group's provision
EERELHMET B R EIR S and estimation and judgement policy on inventory and
R BT E o iR 3R 5 B # % /a7 on estimating selling prices management’s assessment
EEEHFEER ft of finished goods subsequent on the allowance for

B R E 2 AT
RERMLFFER
SERCRA - R
W Bl AT R E
BRHEER BT
BRI

F2HRAM KR
EHIEE21 o

o My EBESEEH
FERBEBEE
e EE

o MEAIFEFEEN
BRER DT 2 S
X R

o MEBIEEFER
HIZHERER
LB Mo

to the end of reporting
period. Allowance is applied
to inventories based on
assessment of net realisable
value by management, by
considering the estimated costs
of completion, current market
conditions, aging analysis and
subsequent selling prices of the
inventories.

Refer to note 21 to the
consolidated financial
statements.

inventories;

e Evaluating the reasonableness
of the Group's provision
policy on inventories;

e Testing the aging analysis
of inventories, on a sample
basis, to the supporting
documents; and

e Testing the subsequent sales
or usage of inventories,
on a sample basis, to the
supporting documents.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences attributable to
the undistributed profits of subsidiaries in the People’s Republic

of China (the “PRC”)

We identified deferred tax
in respect of temporary
differences attributable to
the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries in the PRC as a key
audit matter, as it involves the
determination by management
on the dividend distribution
plan of these subsidiaries.
Based on the dividend
distribution plan, management
estimates the amount to be
distributed from subsidiaries
in the PRC and recognises the
provision for deferred taxation
accordingly. Any change to the
dividend distribution plan could
potentially have a significant
effect on the withholding tax
payable.

Refer to note 27 to the
consolidated financial

statements.

Our procedures in relation to
Group's estimation of deferred
tax in respect of temporary
differences attributed to
the undistributed profits
of subsidiaries in the PRC
included:

e Understanding from
management the latest
dividend distribution plan
for all subsidiaries in the
PRC and their judgement
and consideration thereon;

e Obtaining the deferred
taxation account movements
prepared by management
and verifying the actual
withholding tax paid by
the subsidiaries in the PRC
during the year; and

e Evaluating the
appropriateness and
reasonableness of the
withholding tax
adopted for deferred tax
calculation and discussing
with management on the
adequacy on the deferred

rate

tax being recognised.
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Tsang Chi Wai.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

21 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-_T—+tF+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

—E—tF —E—RF
2017 2016
B THExT T T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
EER Revenue 5 10,280,001 8,555,646
8 5 B AR Cost of sales (8,739,490) (6,967,660)
EA Gross profit 1,540,511 1,587,986
H Ao g A Other income 55,316 61,234
H b s & B 18 Other gains and losses 7 18,218 (50,004)
HERKIHER Selling and distribution expenses (422,161) (421,390)
— R RITEHE A General and administrative expenses (744,660) (726,439)
B 75 & A Finance costs 8 (56,269) (59,475)
B 5t A1 A Profit before taxation 9 390,955 391,912
G785 Taxation 10 (136,269) (148,744)
ZANES | Profit for the year 254,686 243,168
,Hﬂﬂ’i\ﬁqﬁlﬁ?i (%) Other comprehensive income (expense):
eEHHEE Items that will not be reclassified
TE/\E’JIE B: to profit or loss:
AEE2REE Exchange differences arising on
MELZENEZR translation to presentation
currency 350,697 (259,436)
AR E Y E R Revaluation of property, plant and
EHYE- equipment upon transfer to
% = & 5% & investment property
—EEARK — Surplus on revaluation 31,702 77,487
—EEF IR — Deferred taxation = (29,839)
382,399 (211,788)
Higm g ’@E D% Items that may be reclassified
B=mMIEE subsequently to profit or loss:
fﬁi/}\uéT/Epﬂﬁiﬂth,E\- Fair value change on hedging
NAEE instruments in cash flow hedge
—FERIFEHE D — Interest rate swap contracts (1,379) 14,303
— =54 — Forward contracts 88 (88)
T &/ INERS Exchange differences arising on
MEEZERZ7 translation of foreign operations 24,443 (12,803)
23,152 1,412
AREHEMEE K= Other comprehensive income (expense)
(X)) for the year 405,551 (210,376)
AEEEIRZBE Total comprehensive income for the year 660,237 32,792
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE_Z—+F+-A=+—HIL5E For the year ended 31 December 2017

—E2—+tF —ZE—RK
2017 2016
B 5E FTET FH&IT
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
RNEMMA E(R D HE : Profit for the year attributable to:
ZA/NE 1 Owners of the Company 170,560 169,343
FEE I Non-controlling interests 84,126 73,825
254,686 243,168
AE2EEZE (XH) Total comprehensive income (expense)
MEELDRR: for the year attributable to:
ZiN/NE 1) 3 Owners of the Company 534,100 (11,842)
FEE R Non-controlling interests 126,137 44,634
660,237 32,792
TR EF Earnings per share 12
—HA — Basic HK30.2 centsi#fl  HK30.0 cents/ 1l
—#s — Diluted HK30.2 centsi&fl  HK30.0 cents/ 1l

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZT—tF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2017

—E—+tF AN
2017 2016
B 5 THExT T T
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
RBEE Non-current assets
Y WE R EE Property, plant and equipment 13 1,688,920 1,597,930
AN LA Prepaid lease payments 14 261,017 248,805
wEYE Investment properties 15 332,771 226,330
A EHERE Available-for-sale investment 17 3,992 =
[ Goodwill 18 69,574 69,574
EmREE Intangible assets 19 488 1,217
BEWE KE & Deposits paid for acquisition of
HEEI & property, plant and equipment 31,865 36,089
HM3EmahEE Other non-current asset 20 4,600 4,600
MTESBTE Derivative financial instruments 25 3,449 4,468
2,396,676 2,189,013
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 21 914,032 808,203
Z ZEWGRIE R EWZEDE  Trade and bills receivables 22 3,444,933 2,804,610
Hih U BR A M TE(IFI8  Other debtors and prepayments 22 352,994 353,591
AN TS Prepaid lease payments 14 7,179 6,684
TETBITE Derivative financial instruments 25 3,592 4,152
EHISRITER Short-term bank deposits
—R={EAAEE — with original maturity within
three months 23 57,723 49,175
RITHEBRERS Bank balances and cash 23 888,351 921,928
5,668,804 4,948,343
BEHEZEREHEE Non-current assets held for sale 16 2,666 =
5,671,470 4,948,343
REEE Current liabilities
B BR X X EGT & Creditors and accrued charges 24 1,917,464 1,771,877
FE R K Taxation payables 88,720 72,002
MESBT AR Derivative financial instruments 25 68 311
BEE——F AR5 H Borrowings — amount due within
one year 26 1,208,148 789,848
3,214,400 2,634,038
RBEEFEE Net current assets 2,457,070 2,314,305
BWEERABERE Total assets less current liabilities 4,853,746 4,503,318
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RZZT—+tF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2017

—E2—+F AN
2017 2016
B 7 FExT FAT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
knBEE Non-current liabilities
PTESBMT A Derivative financial instruments 25 2 47
BE ——F &5 5 Borrowings — amount due after
one year 26 1,260,257 1,456,471
RIEFIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 27 42,309 41,812
1,302,568 1,498,330
3,551,178 3,004,988
BARGF#E Capital and reserves
% < Share capital 28 56,389 56,381
B Reserves 2,922,528 2,472,868
AATRREGERS Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 2,978,917 2,529,249
FERER Non-controlling interests 572,261 475,739
3,551,178 3,004,988

sExeeR - N\FE=A-+—8#
ERRETZEE.OB EE212 AWML
BHRE THATEERRES:

EFH IP CHI SHING

= DIRECTOR

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 212 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 21
March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

YIP TSZ HIN
DIRECTOR



FEEDEHR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEZZ—+F+-A=1T—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

SRNAAARTZER
Attributable to owners of the Company
o) 0%
BRiERE ARER EROBRE  EfEEG FRRES
kE  RhEE Share Non-  Hnif  EXRE  iREE Copital ~ Property  REEH Non-
Share Share option distributable  Hedging ~ Translation legal redemption revaluation Retained &t contoling At
capital premium  reseve  resene  resewe feseve fesene  resene fesene profts Total  interests Total
i  TEn  TRr  TEx Tén TR TEr  TEr  TEn TR TEn T Thn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(Hita) (Bitb)
(Note &) (Note b)
R=F-7"5-A-H At 1 January 2016 56,371 504,539 1233 67,666 (5953) 139,188 84,040 5416 38321 1,697,638 2,594,459 449,740 3,044,199
KEEF Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 169,343 169,343 13,825 243,168
RAEHSREEMELL  Exchange differences arising on
ERZEFLEHNSEY trandlation to presentation
Ba currency that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss - - - - - (30281) - - - - (230281) (29155 (259.436)
TREENABIEEN  Bachange difference arsing on
RITERNRBELL translation of foreign operations
ERZE that may be reclassified to
profit or loss - - - - - (12,803) - - - - (12,803) - (12,803)
REFEHARUATE  Fairvalue change on hedging
MEZRL instruments in cash flow hedge - - - - 14251 - - - - - 14 (B6) 14205
REARENZRERENE . Revaluation of property
BERAR plant and equipment upon
ransfer to investment property
-EffBH - Surplus on revaluation - - - - - - - - 71,487 - 77487 - 71487
-BRHE - Deferred taration - - - - - - - - (9839 - (2983%9) - (9839
FERENE (TMH)EE  Total comprehensive income
(expense) for the year - - - - 14,251 (243,084) - - 47,648 169,343 (11,842) 44,634 32,792
gt Sub-total 56,371 504,539 7233 67,666 8298 (103,3%) 84,040 5416 85969 1806981 2,582,617 494374 3,076,991
RERERAR Shares issued at premium upon
AEERTLRR erercse of share options 10 205 (20) - - - - - - - 195 - 195
DHEREREEE Share options cancelled and
RBER transfer to retained profits - - (1,278) - - - - - - 1218 - - -
HHKEAZBE Release upon deregistration
of subsidiaries - - - - - (10,771) (9911) - - 20,682 - - -
L3 Transfer - - - - - - - - (g - - -
BRALAARERE Dividends paic to owners
of the Company - - - - - - - - - (53563)  (53,563) - (53,563)
ERHBAZFERARRE Dividends paid to non-controllng
shareholders of subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - (18635) (18,635
RZE-AETZF=1-H At31 December 2016 56,381 504,744 5,935 67,666 8298 (114667) 118207 5416 85,99 1791300 2,529,249 475739 3,004,988
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FEEREHR

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_Z—+F+-A=+—HIL5E For the year ended 31 December 2017

SENENARE R
Attributable to owners of the Company
7 g4 b
BRERE  AREE BERE  EfER FEREsR
ke RHEE Share Non-  HhW@EE EXHE  EERE Gt Propety REBEA Non-
Share Share option distributable  Hedging  Translation Legal redemption revaluation  Retained A3t controlling &t
capital  premium  reserve  reseve  reseve  reserve  reseve  feseve  reserve profits Total  interests Total
Thrn TEn  TEx  T&r  TEn  TEn TR TRn  TEx TR T TEm TEn
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
(Kita) (Kitb)
(Note a) (Note b)
REER Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 170,560 170,560 84,126 254,686
RAERZAEMMELL  Exchange differences arising on
ERZETEENAEE translation to presentation
Ba curtency that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss - - - - -3 - - - - 308722 0975 350697
HREENARIERY  Bichange difference arising on
RIE AN BESL translation of foreign operations
ExZE that may be reclassified to
profit or loss - - - - - 24,443 - - - - 24,443 - 24,443
bk HHBIA  Fairvalue change on hedging
A instruments in cash flow hedge - - - - (1,327) - - - - - (1321) 36 (1.291)
i) EE[ENZ:  Revaluation of property, plant and
BERZE equipment upon transfer to
investment property
-EffRH - Surplus on revaluation - - - - - - - - 31,02 - 31,702 - 31,702
FERE (X AEEE  Totel comprehensive (expense)
income for the year - - - - (1321) 333165 - - 31,700 170560 534100 126137 660,237
It Sub-total 56,381 504,744 5,935 67,666 6,971 218,498 118,207 5416 17,611 1,961,860 3,063,349 601,876 3,665,225
REREENR Shares ssued at premium upon
fEER TR exercise of share options 8 159 (15) - - - - - - - 152 - 152
ARRREE 20K Cost incurred in connection
with issue of shares - (1) - - - - - - - - (1) - 1)
DERRERSEZRDET Share options cancelled and
transfer to retained profits - - (640) - - - - - - 640 - - -
HENEARZER Release upon deregistration
of a subsidiary - - - - - @m) - - - 2,1 - - -
&k Transfer - - - - - - 36,249 - - (36,249 - - -
BiARARERE Dividends paid to owners
of the Company - - - - = ° = © o (84,583) (84,583 - (84,583)
Bff-RHEBAR Dividends paic to non-controlling
FaRRRRS shareholders of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - (9615 (29,615

RZE—+E+-F=+-R At31 December 2017 56,389 504,902 5,280 67,666 6971 215,787 154,456 5,416 17671 1844379 2978917 572,261 3551178

Fff 5 Notes:

(@) AP IREEFEIE SR B AP A A (@) The non-distributable reserve represents capitalisation of retained
BRBENARERBRERATEE profits of certain subsidiaries established in the PRC for capital re-
ZEL: ()VRmAEFEESENK)EKXR investment in these subsidiaries and funds shall be used to (i) make
HSEEE- up prior year losses or (ii) expand production operations.

(b) PADERZEERERBBUINEAR (b) The legal reserve is non-distributable and represents the transfer

AREEBEMLR AT ERBEAZ

AF

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

of profits of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong pursuant to the legal

requirements in the relevant place of registration.



FEBERER

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-_T—+tF+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

—E—+tF AN
2017 2016
THExT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEXBZHER Cash flows from operating activities
B 350 A i A Profit before taxation 390,955 391,912
LA T % - Adjustments for:
& Amortisation of intangible assets 740 1,203
TR & 3 78 & 8 85 Release of prepaid lease payments 6,903 5,718
M- BE R Depreciation of property,
RE2TE plant and equipment 198,615 136,946
KREMERNE Gain on fair value change of investment
i 2 Wz properties (44,079) (5,125)
MESBITA Fair value gain on derivative financial
AREZ WS instruments = (9,686)
Mg A Finance costs 56,269 59,475
FEMA Interest income (9,478) (18,511)
HE Net loss on disposals/written-off of property,
W E Rk &E R plant and equipment and land use rights
THbE R
&85 5 8,487 20,364
AHHEREZ Impairment loss on available-for-sale
BEBE investment 1,971 =
RIZEREE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 18,305 21,718
HIETFEEEE Allowance for slow moving inventories 11,061 12,934
e B ERKREHR 2 Amount recovered from doubtful debts
I (709) (5,017)
BEARARBRFE&R  Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on
ZENEFE intra-group balances (15,267) 24,067
Krt&BELEBAI 2  Operating cash flows before movements
KE TR © in working capital 623,773 635,998
FE M Increase in inventories (50,833) (125,277)
=Y A5 Increase in trade and bills receivables
A ES7 Sl (433,534) (252,864)
H i FE R R R Decrease (increase) in other debtors and
TE FRIER A (1E0) prepayments 28,882 (94,397)
FES BR R K Increase in creditors and accrued charges
J& 5T & FA 3 N 20,321 322,590
EEMEAZE® Cash generated from operations 188,609 486,050
TR BMEFTSH Enterprise Income Tax in the PRC paid (123,026) (109,250)
REEBREEZ Net cash from operating activities
BHSE 65,583 376,800
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HE_Z—+F+-A=+—HIL5E For the year ended 31 December 2017

—E—tfF —E-REF
2017 2016
FTET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REXBFAZESEM Cash flows used in investing activities
BEWE M= &ZME  Purchase of property, plant and equipment (145,383) (42,005)
BEWE KE R Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
w2 E® plant and equipment (35,522) (55,192)
BEREME Purchase of investment properties (17,961) =
BEAHEERE Purchase of available-for-sale investment (5,753) =
2 F 2 Interest received 9,478 18,511
HEWME ME R Proceeds from disposal of property,
XA R b plant and equipment and land use rights
15 PR AT U 2 IR 1,003 3,229
FAZR =@ A% Placement of short-term bank deposits with
B H 2 s BRI E 3K original maturity more than three months = (100,000)
REEZR={8A#% Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits with
BB 2 58 BRER AT 17 R original maturity more than three months - 124,363
TEREGEAZ Net cash used in investing activities
FRE (194,138) (51,094)
MEEKESE (FTA)Z Cash flows from (used in) financing activities
BHER
BEBE Repayment of borrowings (1,158,102) (2,749,751)
SRR Interest paid (56,269) (59,475)
XA E Dividends paid (84,583) (53,563)
X T8 A Al Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
FERE R AR R AR R of subsidiaries (29,615) (18,635)
TR BT A Share issue cost paid (1) =
MEEE Borrowings raised 1,380,188 2,220,907
BT FT 1S RUR Proceeds from issue of shares 152 195
BB EEFTEE Net cash from (used in) financing activities
(A ZERE 51,770 (660,322)
BE& RIBEEF R Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (76,785) (334,616)
REPNREZ2HEE R Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
4 L4 971,103 1,349,905
MERSEFTEEZFE  Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 51,756 (44,186)
AERR2HEER Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year
Re L 946,074 971,103
Re MRS EREEHR DI Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents
RITEBRERE Bank balances and cash 888,351 921,928
R=EEHREEZ Short-term bank deposits with original maturity
R EIRTTF R within three months 57,723 49,175
946,074 971,103
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZT—tF+t=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars while the functional currency of the Company
is Renminbi (“RMB"). The reason for selecting Hong Kong
dollars as its presentation currency is because the Company
is a public company with the shares listed on the Stock
Exchange, where most of its investors are located in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading
in solvents, inks, coatings and lubricants.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs")

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"”) for the first time in the current
year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle
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SFEMBRENE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z—+F+-A=+—HIL5E For the year ended 31 December 2017

I REIETE BB
WREER ([BEBHMK
HEA)WER @

AN 5 2 08 1l A Y A4S
AERMBREEA =)

BRIz RAFERBE
B BREEN B BAKE
REAFERBEFEZMBRIAR
MBRRAR, RERZEGEUB
BENZHBELBEATE -

BB LA LTH 2 5
GAE T HE

AEEBERAFEEREAZE
Al e RIERTERERIEHIRE - UE
MBmERNOERE A FEREED
FralBmaEes alRe i
R8N ZETNREL &
EREENASRECKLRERK
RenERait ARERDNES
RER BRAREAHSBMEE
By B E) o

LB S R ERRETIE
H(RERSHENED ()
CELE PNGEE e et
B2 RARE : (INEEEE D
VEE (WARBEHED RV
f2H -

A}

ZERBZFNRFEREHZEZ
BRI 3R M- BZEFT 28
BARARTT AR AL BT FE E—
FRZUEBRER B E31H 258
SMREESN ERAZET L EH AR
AZEEMBRRELTE -

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current
year (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group's financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 “Disclosure
Initiative”

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time
in the current year. The amendments require an entity to
provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In
addition, the amendments also require disclosures on
changes in financial assets if cash flows from those financial
assets were, or future cash flows will be, included in cash
flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (ii) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries
or other businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign
exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other
changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of these items is provided in note 31. Consistent with the
transition provisions of the amendments, the Company
has not disclosed comparative information for the prior
year. Apart from the additional disclosure in note 31, the
application of these amendments has had no impact on the
Company's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ—+F+ A =1—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective.

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts with Customers and
the related Amendments'
Leases?

Insurance Contracts*

Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture?
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continuea)

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

Amendments to HKFRS

2018

2019

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures?

As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle'

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE=-T—tF+=HA=1+—HILE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities,
general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for
financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair values
at subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"), HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liabilities" credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss.

for non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities
that do not result in derecognition, the carrying
amount of the relevant financial liabilities will be
calculated at the present value of the modified
contractual cash flows and discounted at the financial
liabilities” original effective interest rate. Transaction
costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the carrying
amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment
to the carrying amount of the financial liability is
recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.
Currently, the Group revises the effective interest rates
for non-substantial modification of financial liabilities
with no gain/loss being recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZT—tF+t=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39.
The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other
words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

the new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the retrospective quantitative
effectiveness test has been removed. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about the Group’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Based on the Group's financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the directors
of the Company anticipate the following potential impact on
initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

Loans and receivables carried at amortised cost as
disclosed in notes 22 and 23: these are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
Accordingly, these financial assets will continue to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost upon the
application of HKFRS 9.

Equity securities classified as available-for-sale
investment carried at cost less impairment as disclosed
in note 17: these securities qualified for designation
as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9 and the Group
will measure these securities at fair value at the end
of subsequent reporting periods with fair value gains
or losses to be recognised as other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve.

All other financial assets and financial liabilities will
continue to be measured on the same bases as are
currently measured under HKAS 39.
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised costs and other items that are subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the
Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company,
if the expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, the application of the expected credit loss model will
not have a material impact on the financial assets measured
at amortised cost upon the application of HKFRS 9.

Hedge accounting

As the new hedge accounting requirements will align
more closely with the Group’s risk management policies,
with generally more qualifying hedging instruments and
hedged items, an assessment of the Group’s current
hedging relationships indicates that they will qualify as
continuing hedging relationships upon application of HKFRS
9. Accordingly, the directors of the Company anticipate
that the application of the new hedging requirements may
not have a material impact on the Group’s current hedge
designation and hedge accounting.
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2.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation



I RBIETE BB
WREER ([BEBHMK
HEA)WER @

BB B REERE1555
EEEHNWE #)

BB SRS ERNE155% &
—EEBRITEAEBFRERI
m ERERAOEFHBE MK
RIGE (6| R ERTFPK &
BB REEAFISHEANEMAE
BRBHIESIAREBRERINER-
oI+ B A B 7S = 25 2E Bl 581 555 I8

BREZHORE -

R-ZZB—RE BESMAEHR
FREMBRE LR FE 155 F R H A
BHORE ZRABRENZER
A E eS| B BB EE

ARAREZFHRRERBTEMB

SEAUFISHEREEHESH
AT ARREFZRHEREE
I ELERNFNSR A2 HNZ]R
SRRk cRERERESL
BEXTE-

BRMBREERE 165
HE

FEMBRE LN L1695 RHH H
HMAREABANEER KGR
B A—EAZEEEN - BEYH R
SFEANF1ERE R EREMAEE
SEERF 170 [HE] RERR
-

FEMBRE LR E 165 RITATH
NEERTHEPEHRIBER
REEH - KEHEEREERE
BEN REMENEREHEENZE
2B A AR IE B R LA
EHAERAEHERREREE
EREEABOEARK-

FEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZT—tF+t=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures
are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations,
principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing
application guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact
on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the
respective reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by
a customer. Distinctions of operating leases and finance
leases are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability have to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except
for short-term leases and leases of low value assets.
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2.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands and those classified as
investment properties while other operating lease payments
are presented as operating cash flows. Upon application of
HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion which will
be presented as operating cash flows by the Group.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17, and continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either
as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$84,694,000 as
disclosed in note 34. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("H KFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of HK$2,032,000 and refundable rental
deposits received of HK$2,656,000 as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right to use the underlying
assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments
are considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be included in
the carrying amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits received would be considered as
advance lease payments.

In addition, the application of new requirements may result
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs and
Interpretations will have no material impact on the results
and the financial position of the Group in the future.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CQO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties that are measured at
fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based payment,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T—+tF+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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(Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values,
except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy on share-based payment
transactions); and



FESTEBEE 2

3 S =Y 2 D)

o WREFBMBHREERF5HR
[BIFHENFRBEERD
RIEREXT | DBERFEH
ENEE (HHEAR)RE

2RISR -

BEEAMEEZNRE BWEES
EREZERER SRR RWEETT A
EFRFEZRRBTREZ ARE
(oA ) 2 4N - 8% B Y 2 7T 8l
BEMMAEZBERRER
FEK BHZZBEE ML
Efh1& - PR 2 Al BRI & E A
AEEREREBRM RSN
ERE RN T
TAEEBARKBEDAERA
WEBTRE 2 A E (NF) &
MoRIZBEAENERANERRH
(EL

FERER s (B B AT A i
SERNETERERETERFEAR
LBl G B RN B A R & EFE
M) H) 20 4% JF 458 AR 28 1 10 BB
SHREBEEFECEASRELL
Pl AR B E - FFEREETIIZE
P32 Z 3 BL o B b 3R Bl &) I 1 A
RDRERRES -

e MR EME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T—+tF+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Business combinations (continved)

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are
measured at their fair values.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of business
(see the accounting policy on business combinations) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit (or group of
cash-generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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HE-T—+tF+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) and freehold land held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below) are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
(including the relevant prepaid lease payments) at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT + YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

115



Bt#§$R 4 Financial Statements

GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZT—+F+=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

3. FESTEE @ 3. Significant Accounting Policies

116

ME- -BERKRE 2

W BERRFERBENHERK
BRBERAZAERSTEELAMR
A] 2R 2R AR 78 ) 2 By R B AR - Rl T
EHBEVE BELRREEEM
EEZEMENHEE (HZEE
ZHEMGRARERERZZHE

| At kY = Nz 7
FTE)RIERER

BHRPLUEREEETA A
ZEF

ERTFILAEZERBRETAHEENX
THAR ENLHES 2 #ER
BEHAIAEREZTETRA
Z— Wy EEPEFEREARME
M2 ZABERBEIEK ST
HERK (AEEFERERAEL
oUW NAGREAEEEBTEZT
ANEE) RIFARITE-

REWE

REVMEEFERDES R
EERBEZME -REVERRE
FEREERKRAEZ T M
THEGREREENEERE-

KREMEIRERA (BREEAE
KSR ZRX) A E - -RUHHER
B -BREMEDRREZ RAER
B UKEHERAURBES
ERERRBEZAKEMEMERE
S RRENERRABARER
AFE-REVELAEBEDHEL
ZW s BRI N EEHRE AR

FE )
g

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future
owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties include
land held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as
held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at their fair values. All of the Group’s property interests
held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the asset is available
for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset and its sale is highly probable. Management must be
committed to a plan for the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one
year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment, in
an associate or joint venture, the investment or the portion
of the investment that will be disposed of is classified as held
for sale when the criteria described above are met, and the
Group discontinues the use of the equity method in relation
to the portion that is classified as held for sale from the
time when the investment (or a portion of the investment) is
classified as held for sale.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are measured at

the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair values
less costs to sell.
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(Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment on
tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3. FESTEE @ 3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
E@MIA» Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are mainly loans and
receivables and available-for-sale (“AFS") financial assets.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as available-for-sale or not classified as (a) loans
and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c)
financial assets at FVTPL.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at
the end of each reporting period (see accounting policy in
respect of impairment of financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and bills receivables, other
debtors, short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT + YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

121



Bt#§$R 4 Financial Statements

GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE_Z—+F+-A=+—HIL5 For the year ended 31 December 2017

122

BREMEBMEEMS RMEMNFTE
BIEAERE:

o  BITARRZYHAHHIREKNE
R £ 3k

e BERAHN WHERIEHNZN
MEBHARE

o fEFRATE T REH HR AR E S B 7S
=H-

RAREERTREMS BHFA
FLE AR R 2 B R E A AN 48
RBEZEBER-

RETHINEREE (W TES
EHREFENE 5 EYKIE) M
5 g HHERSRIERE - B
FASHBRBENEEEEAUER
BAEEBENRFER AerE
HiiER B T 95 E HI30 R E90RHE
REE LT ERg RS EAARR
HIR AR B B BUE WARRAEE

HECBERAENESREEM
FOREBRSBNAEENKEE
HEGFARKRASRENRE (A2
BEENRBERNXITR)FHH
ERMER -

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

3. FESTBE @ 3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
ol =N Financial instruments (continved)
EREE (&) Financial assets (Continued)
EMEERME (&) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contracts, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For AFS equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debtors that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
ranging from 30 to 90 days, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade or other
debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an
increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the
impairment loss.
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3. FESTEE @ 3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
LRI A @ Financial instruments (continued)
cTHEERERTA Financial liabilities and equity instruments
REEBRRIETCEHREERT R Debts and equity instruments issued by a group entity
DIRBENRECEEEcREE are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
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in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of
which the interest expense is included in net gains or losses.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL of the Group are mainly
derivative financial instruments.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of an
identified financial instrument that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors and other
payables and borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair values at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair values at the end of
the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is
designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which
event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends
on the nature of the hedging relationship.
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3. FESTBE @ 3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)
E@MIA» Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the
cash flow of floating-rate bank borrowings (i.e. interest rate
swap contracts).

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and hedged item, along with its risk management objectives
and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in cash
flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of hedging reserve. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit
or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised
in profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged
item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial
liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow
hedging reserve are transferred from the cash flow hedging
reserve and included in the initial measurement of the cost
of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Cash flow hedges (Continuead)

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes
the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, exercised, or when it no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain
or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for the amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. FESTEE @ 3. Significant Accounting Policies
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(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating lease, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.



FESTEBEER 2

HE »

HELHREF (2)
HEHSEMAEDER  REE
HOARZAE L ESNERS M
BARRKRFIN A AN LHES ]
WIRBEAEEEE R - 28
EREEER T RET RN ET
SRR BEEE-—RKAIER
RBEMEE -

Wy 35 2 FE R

Weshme MR EZARE
& WEEEFTEFRE - B
R E At KB AU 45 F 0B

BRESEA A EHEE AR
AP R Al BE R AR &£ [B B K AR
SEEXBORERER T
RUES ©

EmZHERENEERER LT
KRB TIAER -

MBRAREARERAS LERE
BRAERUREEEGE FAMNX
DG ERRERFNEREE
TEH 4 BB RERL 3R R V1R e SR O R%
BERMZFEZNE-

AEBEBRERLLEROWEOE T
BRENLEXHEZEHBEK -

FEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T—+tF+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-
line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the entire
lease is generally classified as a finance lease.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group's activities.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue

from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing above.
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—+F+=A=+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise, except for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive income
and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group’s interests.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of
a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 April 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on acquisition of foreign operations before
1 April 2005 are treated as non-monetary foreign currency
items of the acquirer and reported using the historical cost
prevailing at the date of the acquisition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income because of items of
income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.
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(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date
when the share options granted vest immediately, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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BEZZT—tF+t=-A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Critical Accounting Judgement
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumption
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

(i) Critical judgement in applying
accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the
directors have made in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Deferred tax in respect of temporary
differences attributable to the
undistributed profits of subsidiaries in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")

The directors of the Company has reviewed the
calculation of deferred tax in respect of the temporary
differences attributable to the undistributed profits of
subsidiaries in the PRC, and determined the dividend
distribution plan of the subsidiaries in the PRC. In
making the judgement, the directors of the Company
considered the overall needs of operating cash of the
Group.
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4. Critical Accounting Judgement
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation

uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying amount of goodwill was HK$69,574,000
(2016: HK$69,574,000). Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in note 18.

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The Group makes allowance for doubtful debts
based on assessment on the recoverability of trade
receivables. In determining whether an allowance
for doubtful debts is required, the Group takes
into consideration of the customers’ credit history,
settlement patterns, subsequent settlements and aged
analysis of the trade receivables. Where the expectation
of the recoverability of trade receivables is different
from the original estimate, such difference will impact
the carrying value of trade receivables and allowance
for doubtful debts in the period in which such estimate
has changed. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is HK$1,786,024,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$73,564,000)
(2016: carrying amount of HK$1,671,012,000 (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$68,075,000)).
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Uncertai nty (Continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation
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uncertainty (continuea)

Estimated allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aged
analysis at the end of each reporting period, and makes
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items identified that are no longer suitable for use
in operation. Estimation of net realisable value are
based on the latest invoice prices and current market
condition. Where the net realisable value is less than
the carrying amount, impairment loss may arise. As at
31 December 2017, the carrying amount of inventories
is approximately HK$914,032,000 (net of allowance for
slowing moving inventories of HK$21,684,000) (2016:
HK$808,203,000 (net of allowance for slowing moving
inventories of HK$21,388,000)).

Useful lives and impairment assessment of
property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful
lives, the residual values and the depreciation method
in determining the related depreciation charges for
its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is
based on the historical experience of the actual useful
lives of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. In addition, management
assesses impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of
an asset may not be recoverable. The management of
the Group will increase the depreciation charge where
useful lives are expected to be shorter than expected.
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment is HK$1,688,920,000
(2016: HK$1,597,930,000).
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4. Critical Accounting Judgement
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (Continued)

(ii) Key sources of estimation

uncertainty (continuea)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The
management of the Group is responsible to determine
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair
value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation. The management of the Group works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to
the model, and will report the valuation findings to
the board of directors of the Company to explain the
cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and
liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include
inputs that are not based on observable market
data to estimate the fair value of certain types of
financial instruments. Notes 15 and 30 provide detail
information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination of the fair
value of various assets and liabilities.
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Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue

Revenue represents the amount received and receivable for
goods sold to customers during the year, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group’s reportable operating
segments under HKFRS 8 included four business divisions,
namely (i) solvents, (ii) coatings, (iii) inks, and (iv) lubricants.

Principal activities of the Group's reportable segments are as

follows:

Solvents - manufacture of and trading in raw solvents
and related products

Coatings — manufacture of and trading in coatings and

related products
Inks — manufacture of and trading in inks and
related products

Lubricants manufacture of and trading in lubricants

products

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at
the reporting segments of the Group.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment profit or loss represents the profit earned or loss
incurred for the year by each segment without allocation
of interest income, fair value change on derivative financial
instruments, fair value change of investment properties, gain
or loss on disposal of corporate assets, central administration
costs and finance costs. This is the information reported
to the Co-Chief Executive Officers of the Company, the
Group's chief operating decision makers, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment.
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5.

HE_Z—+F+-A=+—HIL5 For the year ended 31 December 2017

Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)

Segment information (continued)

(a) Segment revenue and results

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by
reportable and operating segments for the year under

e review is as follows:
23
Wi b
Reportable
BH 28 ik BRE  segment  RHEH &8
Solvents ~ Coatings Inks ~ Lubricants total  Elimination  Consolidated
TEx TEn TEx Txn TR Txn TR
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BE-E-tF Year ended 31 December 2017
tZAZt-ALEE
AR Segment revenue
HoHE External sales 6,935,222 1,642,351 1,409,261 293,167 10,280,001 - 10,280,001
NEREE Inter-segment sales 111,656 1215 477 60 119468 (119,468) -
% Total 7,046,878 1,649,626 1,409,738 293227 10,399,469 (119,468) 10,280,001
E Resuls
LES Segment results 393,338 8,291 54,984 (8,405) 448,208 (197) 448,011
REMELLES,  Gainon fair value change of
W (BriE7) investment properties (note 7) 44,079
AATMA Unallocated income 0,974
AORER Unallocated expenses (67,840)
HHRER Finance costs (56,269)
B AR Profit before taxation 390,955

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR
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Revenue and Segment Information

(Continued)
TEER @ Segment information (continued)
() PEEXBREE (&) (a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
25
AR
Reportable
AH 2 ik by seqment X B4 G
Solvents Coatings Inks ~ Lubricants total  Elimination ~ Consolidated
Thn ThAL ThL ThAn ThL Thn ThAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE-Z-nF Year ended 31 December 2016
tZA=t-ALEE
AEERR Seqment revenue
e External sales 5007750 169019 1429793 327907 8555646 - 8555646
AEREE Inter-seqment sales 117,565 5,884 2076 50 125575 (125,575 -
a5 Total 5,225,315 1,696,080 1,431,869 327,957 8,681,221 (125575 8,555,646
£ Results
NELE Segment results 339,892 26,666 100,380 1,677 468,615 (99) 468,516
NERTERELL Fichange loss arising from a
EEE (i) foreign currency bank loan (note 7) (10,583)
fTESBIANREZ  Fairvalue change on derivative
- {ACiE) financial instruments (note 7) 9,686
REMELLES(Z  Gainon fair value change of
Y (HiE7) investment properties (note 7) 5,125
AT Unallocated income 26,143
AARER Unallocated expenses (47,500)
HHER Finance costs (59475)
AR Profit before taxation 391912
7 $AE 85 6 B ¥ N & B IR 3X Inter-segment sales are charged at the similar terms as
ZiEH external sales.
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THEER (#)
(b) EER

REEDBBREXDREER

(Continued)

Segment information (continued)

(b) Other information

Amounts included in the measurement of segment

5. Revenue and Segment Information

BRI : profit or loss or segment assets:
25
AEE
Reportable LEER
BH 2H HE hyep: segment  Corporate 54
Solvents Coatings Inks  Lubricants total level  Consolidated
TER TR TR TR THER TER TEn
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HE-E2-tf Year ended 31 December 2017
TZAZt-BLFE
FRBEERE (M)  Additions to non-current assets (note) 30,835 16,439 22,140 1,74 71,155 133,464 204,619
nE BEREEZNE  Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 112,837 36,700 34,531 6,396 190,464 8,151 198,615
A thELEE Release of prepaid lease payments 1,428 3,032 915 188 5,563 1,340 6,903
BYEECEH Amortisation of intangible assets 501 - 27 - 728 12 740
REREBTE Allowance for bad and
doubtful debt, net 3,611 10,662 3,883 (560) 17,596 - 17,596
BHEEERE Allowance for slow moving inventories 5,421 351 2,782 2,507 11,061 - 11,061
HE/HHENE BER  Loss on disposaliwritten-off of
RERTHEREL property, plant and equipment
BE and land use rights 2,602 2,990 2,386 497 8,475 12 8,487
HEERE 2 HERR  Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investment - - - - - 1,971 1,97
REMEDAERILZ  Gain on fair value change of
& investment properties - - - - - (44,079) (44,019)
BE-Z-—1F Year ended 31 December 2016
TZA=T-HIEFRE
FREBEERE (fisF)  Additions to non-current assets (note) 30,158 9,831 27,033 1,024 68,246 28,951 97,197
0% BEREEZNE  Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 51,066 37,271 33,277 7,326 128,946 8,000 136,946
BTt H Release of prepaid lease payments 1,452 3,041 929 187 5,609 109 5,718
BRAEZEH Amortisation of intangible assets 886 - 294 - 1,180 23 1,203
AERABTE Allowance for bad and
doubtful debt, net (177) 9,521 5,428 1,929 16,701 - 16,701
BHEEERE Allowance for slow moving
inventories 7,342 (288) 3,707 2,173 12,934 - 12,934
HE/FEME BER  Loss on disposaliwritten-off of
SERLHFEREL property, plant and equipment
BB and land use rights 2,485 5,379 7917 4,367 20,148 216 20,364
REMERLES{Z  Gainon fair value change of
iz investment properties - - - - - (5,125) (5,125)

fiis: FRBDEETEEESET
Ao
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Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.
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5. EXBERIEER 5. Revenue and Segment Information
(Continued)
TEER @ Segment information (continued)
() XEER2IRLESHE (c) An analysis of the Group’s segment assets
NoBEERSEAESD and segment liabilities by reportable and
W operating segments is as follows:
3 2R HE BRR me
Solvents Coatings Inks  Lubricants  Consolidated

TiEx TER TER TiEx TiEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R=B-t& At 31 December 2017
+=A=t-H
BE Assets
2P BEE Reportable segment assets 3,221,620 1,367,446 1,670,853 248,703 6,508,622
kPR EE Other unallocated assets 1,559,524
GRBAE Consolidated total assets 8,068,146
8% Liabilities
2HEERE Reportable segment liabilities 1,003,468 432,111 403,786 51,893 1,891,918
e Taxation payables 88,720
ERFEERE Deferred tax liabilities 42,309
HASRERE Other unallocated liabilities 2,494,021
GRBAE Consolidated total liabilities 4,516,968
RIE—1NF At 31 December 2016
Si-E=1~F
EE Assets
2INEEE Reportable segment assets 2,588,632 1,388,783 1,574,947 246,124 5,798,486
L AN EE Other unallocated assets 1,338,870
GRBAE Consolidated total assets 7,137,356
afE Liabilities
2L EER Reportable segment liabilities 842,168 460,880 429,451 51,845 1,784,344
R Taxation payables 72,002
ERHBARE Deferred tax liabilities 41,812
L RAEERE Other unallocated liabilities 2,234,210

GeBaRE Consolidated total liabilities 4,132,368
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5. EXBERTEER @

5. Revenue and Segment Information

THEER (#)

(d) REZESBERRARIERE
BRT&08E:

o BREBMRTER RITE
BERe REWE K
IFRBEE ITEER
TA AHEERE &
FHEZERBEERL K
DEBEIN MEEED
ETEEEIE &

s BREMBR ETEHRER
B TESRITA (B8
MADEABIN FTER

ENRTREEDER-

= & B

HE-_FT—+tF+=-A=+—H
EFEE AEBHINTFEZEE
B XERETFENERS (B E
X EBERAMERLT)ESE
7%9,201,039,000/8 7t (=& — /<
%:8,016,141,000/8 7T) - AN&EE
ABDERBDEE (TRETES
BMITE)HNRFE (FEZEE
ZEBRRMERS) HeEA
2,009,148,000/ L (=& — /<& :
1,980,744,000 7T ) °

TEEF

BATE & 4R - A% B2 A AR
P HEEERAREELENE
Hzt
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(Continued)

Segment information (continued)

(d) For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources
between segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than short-term bank deposits, bank
balances and cash, investment properties, other
non-current asset, derivative financial instruments,
available-for-sale investment, non-current assets
held for sale and the unallocated assets; and

o all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payables, deferred tax
liabilities, derivative financial instruments,
borrowings and the unallocated liabilities.

Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was substantially generated
from customers located in the PRC (place of domicile
of the group entities that derive revenue) amounting
to HK$9,201,039,000 (2016: HK$8,016,141,000).
Substantially all of the Group’s non-current assets excluding
derivative financial instruments were also located in the
PRC (place of domicile of the group entities that hold
such assets) amounting to HK$2,009,148,000 (2016:
HK$1,980,744,000).

Major customers

No individual customer of the Group has contributed over
10% of the revenue of the Group for both reporting periods.
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6. Directors’ Remuneration and

Employees’ Emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2016: 10)

BIEFZMem T directors were as follows:
#iEs b £ BUF4TES
Executive directors Non-executive directors  Independent non-executive directors
g8 e Aty BER  EEA BER RAY ERE .t EREER
Yip Wong Ho  Kwong Ip Tong Ng Wong Ku 3 Management
Tsz Hin Yok SaiHou KwokChiu* ChiShing  WuiTung  SiuPing  KongChi  YuenFun Total  executives
T#L T#7 T#n T#n THn T#n T#n THL T#7 T#n T#L
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
(Kt (Kike)
(Note)  (Note)
BEZ3-tE Year ended 31 December 2017
tZRZt-RLEE
EEES Fees 400 400 400 400 - 30 200 500 300 2920 -
Efthie Other emoluments
FEREMRR (Waa)  Saleries and other benefits (Note ) 328 2,546 1883 1531 1432 - - - - 10,586 10,714
JEERRANELZIED  Discretionary bonus (Note b)
(Hit) - - n - - - - - - n 1819
FIREHG AR Retirement henefitscheme
contributions 0 9 170 140 - - - - - 633 634
Heus Total emoluments 3852 3,083 2484 2079 1432 0 200 500 300 14210 13,167
383 FAES BUFifiES
Evecutive directors Non-executive directors Independent non-executive directors
£15 EhfEe e mtx AR EN EER RET ERE HER RRERE
Yip Wong Wong Ho Kwong Ip Tong Ng Wong Ku A5 Management
TzHin  Kam Yim® Yok SaiHou Kok Chiv*  ChiShing ~ WuiTong  SuPing  KongChi  Yuenfun Total  erecutives
Thr TR ThL T Thr ThL T Thr ThT ThL Thr TR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKF'000  HKS'000  HKY000  HKE'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
(Hito) (M)
(Note ) Note ¢)
BEZ%-RE Year ended 31 December 2016
tZRZt-RLEE
EEES Fees 400 = 400 40 400 = B} 200 500 300 2920 -
Efthie Other emoluments
FEREMIER (Wika)  Seleres and other benefits (Note o) 30 SO (R R ¥ ) 1442 - - - - e
JEERRANELZED  Discretionary bonus (Note b)
(i) 952 = 824 693 830 = = = - - 3299 313
RiEHGEER Retirement henefitscheme
contributions 213 - 90 160 134 - - - - - 597 3
Hetg Total emoluments 4667 = 3704 2983 2814 1442 0 200 500 300 16,930 12,687

A EFBAITESR ZH M 26t
WEHARBARAEEERERR
W2 RG - A EPTEIFRITEE
BUFRTES 2 HMER I ER
SERERARIEZZRH -

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.
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6. EEMEREENE 6.

(#)
o

(a) HEZZT—+tF+-A=+—8H1t (a)
FE FAEFEZHe REMBER
BIR & AT £1,560,0007% T
(=ZZ—75% :1,560,000%7T) °

(b) ZERFBIMERBF DA ZIELTIZ (b)
TEEZREEE AARARA
Loz T35 e At BUR R E ©

(0 EFHEERFRELEREARR (0
ZEEEITIRAAE A P ER S 2
& 23 R EERTTHRAH

PRt 2 AR 75 -

# R-E-—RF-—A - HEZER #
RARBMITES-

e R-ZE-—RF-—H-AREIE e
ERRBRITES-

* O RZE-N\F-R-HBEAR *
ABMITES-

REBES SRS A BRI RA
REEE (ZF—RF41) - EB
EFBER LM E - Efu (= F
—ARENMD)EEZMEWT

Directors’ Remuneration and
Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

Notes:

The directors’ salaries and other benefits above included
operating leases rentals of HK$1,560,000 (2016:
HK$1,560,000) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The discretionary bonus is determined with reference to the
operating results, individual performance and comparable

market statistics during the year.

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Mr. Wong Yuk were the Co-Chief Executive
Officers of the Company, and their emoluments disclosed
above included those for services rendered by them as the

Chief Executive.

Appointed as an executive director of the Company on 1

January 2016.

Retired and resigned as an executive director of the Company

on 1 January 2016.

Resigned as an executive director of the Company on 1

January 2018.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2016: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments of
the remaining one (2016: one) individual were as follows:

—E—tE —E—RE

2017 2016

FERT FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

e REMER Salaries and other benefits 2,298 2,025
FE 58 Hl R A F 5 B 2 Discretionary bonus

TE4T 1,819 =

4,117 2,025

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR




EEMEREENE

(&)

FEVA | PR (B ¥R 5 B - AN &= 5L &
SHZIAB (BRHES) WREHK
BIRAR S B NA S E B INARE
B 2 2 Sk BRBRAR (E - MbSh R E
5= 10 A 8 R B P 9 DEE A ]

HMUEE 2 HEHEN T :

6.

FEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_T—+tF+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

Directors’ Remuneration and
Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

During both reporting periods, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including
directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. In addition,
no director waived any emoluments during both reporting
periods.

The emoluments of the remaining one individual were within
the following bands:

—E-tF ZTRF

2017 2016

EEAH BB AR

No. of No. of

employees employees

2,000,001/ £ £2,500,000%7c  HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 - 1
4,000,001 7c £4,500,000% 7T HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1 -
1 1

EHERERBEZHME (TEEAR
REIEF)RELT:

The emoluments of the management executives (excluding
the directors of the Company) were within the following
bands:

—E—tF —E-RF

2017 2016

EEAH BE AE

No. of No. of

employees employees

Z %L £1,000,0007%8 7T HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 - 1
1,000,001/ 7c £ 1,500,000 7  HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 4 6
1,500,001/ 7c 22,000,000/ 7t  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1 1
2,000,001/8 7L £2,500,000/8 7t HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 1
4,000,001/ 7c £4,500,0007% 7t HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 1 -
7 9
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7. Hivlh &= KR8 7. Other Gains and Losses
REBEMYE (BE)2E: The Group's other gains (losses) comprise of:
—E—+tF —T—RF
2017 2016
FET FiB T
HK$'000 HK$’000
ONEESRITE SRE A 2 TE X 18 Exchange loss arising from a foreign
(H 5 () R Bt 3E5) currency bank loan
(Note (i) and note 5) - (10,583)
B E A L) K& Fair value gain on derivative financial
SMNEEBE R instruments of a cross currency
MEEBIAEZ swap contract and foreign
ArEME (MFEG &M EES5)  exchange forward contracts
(Note (i) and note 5) - 9,686
AN Sub-total = (897)
HEMINERERR R GEEZ Net exchange gain (loss) arising from
FIEH e (B1E) other foreign currency balances and
transactions 2,193 (17,167)
RIBRREMAE (HEEG)) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
(Note (ii)) (18,305) (21,718)
WEBEERKEHE 2 Amount recovered from doubtful debts
KIA (PRFRE()) (Note (ii) 709 5,017
AHEERE 2 REEE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investment (1,971) -
e EEYE BE R Net loss on disposal/written off of
B P kL v property, plant and equipment and
FEE land use rights (8,487) (20,364)
BEMEAAREE LY Gain on fair value change of
s (MI7ES) investment properties (note 5) 44,079 5,125

18,218 (50,004)
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RZZTE—=FMA 4A%H
EE—ZRT([B])ERMT
& 324,800,000 T (HZER
198,648,000/ 7T ) ° & 1% 4N # &
BEERE AEEFZEKE
HA KB SRz N SR 1T
BER-REBE=-ZT—X"F+=A
=T HAIEFERN  AEERSE
BZRITBTER  MEBRHAE
HEFNH - FRABEREHENZA
B Z F B SR M 25 ©

RRAREEZFHTHEZBUR
B2 BRI - WS RBBR R
BEEFER R ERIER MR
R -
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FEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE=-T—tF+=-HA=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2017

7. Other Gains and Losses (continved)

Notes:

()

(i)

In April 2013, the Group raised a bank loan in Australian dollar
(“AUD") of AUD24,800,000 (equivalent to HK$198,648,000).
In order to minimise the exposure to foreign currency risk, the
Group entered into a cross currency swap contract to hedge
economically against the foreign currency bank loan. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the bank loan in AUD was
fully repaid and the cross currency swap contract was expired.
Details of the fair value of the cross currency swap contract is

set out in note 25.

The directors of the Company assess the recoverability of
the trade receivables on a regular basis and determine the
allowance for bad and doubtful debts after taking into
accounts of the repayment history and settlement situation of

the relevant debts.

8. Finance Costs

—E—t#F ZT—RF

2017 2016

FTER FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

RITEENF L Interest on bank borrowings 49,843 47,712
FRISHIETE AFEEHK 2 Interest arising on interest rate swaps
ReERELH FMELEZFE  designated as cash flow hedges of

floating rate debts 6,426 11,763

56,269 59,475
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9. BRLATER

9. Profit Before Taxation

—E—+tF —E—R
2017 2016
FTET T T
HK$'000 HK$°000
BRAEATE A2 B T4 IE:  Profit before taxation has been arrived
at after charging:
EmEEEH Amortisation of intangible assets 740 1,203
% SR B & Auditor’s remuneration 3,830 4,250
T BB Allowance for slow moving inventories 11,061 12,934
ERAXHZEEKR Cost of inventories recognised
as an expense 8,739,490 6,967,660
M BERREITE Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 198,615 136,946
B REFEFRERL Less: capitalised in inventories (100,215) (94,789)
98,400 42,157
MEMEZKEHNES Operating lease payments in respect of
rented premises 19,881 22,030
TEf = 70 5 2 55 Release of prepaid lease payments 6,903 5,718
BIRA BEEEFMHE Staff costs, including directors’
(FfF3Ee6) remuneration (note 6) 629,518 667,897
B RTFEFREARL Less: capitalised in inventories (214,530) (215,267)
414,988 452,630
WEBEFA (FEAEMUA) ©  and after crediting (included in other
income):
FEWA Interest income 9,478 18,511
EERZBNHE® Government grants recognised 15,794 20,802
e A Rental income 13,867 4,829
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HE-T—+tF+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

10.Taxation
—g—t&  —T-AF
2017 2016
FE T FET
HK$'000 HK$'000

WITRHRIB Current tax — PRC

N 108,724 106,469
AL Withholding tax 29,273 36,616
137,997 143,085

EERE (M 3E27) Deferred taxation (note 27)
BB (1,060) 575
A E (668) 5,084
(1,728) 5,659
136,269 148,744

B 7S F 1S B 1L M 4F 17 51 B B om 7
16.5%5T & o

RIFPEARAMBEEEMAEHE
(TREMBHE]) REEMERZE
B TEMBARZHRER
—EENF—A—HER25% °

AEBETRHEKE ZWNEAR
HRBERESBHRMERARE
TEANEROBREREE
BREZB15%ZETHE B R
EMEHERFARSERBESRR
TEH B -

TEINFEREPEAR LR D
FIT 15 B 0% & bE A& B 4 & T = B B
BRARAE-_ZZN\F—A—HE
B BREAY & A AR o R B R B RERR
ZHBE PFEARENBECENE
i % B i & 0 48 T A BE AR 3R 0 7
DR B ZB 155 % = 10% 1§ = 4 44
MR - FAN AEBERIBEDSEMN
JBUER10% 2 Bl =gt — [z
AR E 2 M B A Rz RS R IEN
118,625,000/ L (ZF — /" F :
M) o

AN

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in
the PRC is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Certain of the Group's subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
either be eligible as High and New Technology Enterprise
or operating in encouraged industries in Western Region
of China, and are entitled to an income tax rate of 15%.
EIT of the PRC has been provided for after taking these tax
incentives into account.

The withholding tax represented taxation recognised in
respect of the dividends to be distributed from profits
earned by certain subsidiaries in the PRC starting from 1
January 2008 under the Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law of the PRC that requires withholding tax with tax
rate ranging from 5% to 10% upon the distribution of
such profits to the shareholders. During the year, the Group
recognised the withholding tax amounting HK$18,625,000
(2016: nil) in respect of the gain on transfer of a subsidiary
in the PRC with tax rate of 10% under the EIT Law.
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10. B8 (#)

Hip B AR 2 RAEDIREHADE

e BERBRFE-

—+F+=A=+—HBIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

10. Taxation (Continued)

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

B2 HERRAT A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:
—E—tF ZT—RF
2017 2016
THERT T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B A A1 5 A Profit before taxation 390,955 391,912
R TS B R E25% Tax charge at the domestic income tax
FPHEZ HIA T H rate of 25% (2016: 25%)
(ZZ—7"F :25%) 97,739 97,978
TR BT YRS 2F2E  Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes 29,263 27,167
ETURORALEHEZFE  Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purposes (12,213) (2,676)
R AR IEE B Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Mz 8 61,599 44,359
FEAZAAERNIEREY Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
%FM“ZZE/’ previously not recognised (11,934) (7,920)
DHIBATZEEBEY  Effect of income tax on concessionary
Fﬁ{?fﬁz% 2 rates for certain subsidiaries (57,751) (53,242)
HARPERH 2B 2 F2E  Effect of withholding tax on
undistributed profits 10,345 42,033
HE B AR W2  Effect of withholding tax on gain on
M2 transfer of a subsidiary 18,625
HAt Others 596 1,045
REERIE Taxation for the year 136,269 148,744

AP A B 2R T A A SR LK AP

S EWBFHE A ARE 2 Bl % -

T FEFR

The domestic income tax rate is a tax rate in the jurisdiction

where the operation of the Group is substantially based.
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11.8 2 11.Dividends
—E—+tfF ZE—RF
2017 2016
TERT FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
RE AR R E RS Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
—E—tFHRHRE: Interim dividend for 2017 of HK5.0
FR5.08 (= —RF: cents (2016: HK5.0 cents) per share
G RR5.0781(L) 28,194 28,191
“ERFHRRE Final dividend for 2016 of HK10.0
FH10.078 1l cents per share 56,389 =
ZE-RERAIRE: Special dividend for 2015 of HK4.5
B4 57581 cents per share = 25,372
84,583 53,563
EFRZRBEFHEBEE T —+ A dividend equivalent to HK10.0 cents per share totalling
F+-_A=+—HLEEFERKRE not less than HK$56,389,000, in respect of the year ended
fR10.08 L - BT LR 31 December 2017 has been proposed by the directors and
56,389,000/ 7T+ I 1 % B 7 Bl 1% is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
BITZRRBFERG LK annual general meeting.
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122.85REF

ARBRREEERERREEER
ENTIRIE N BIRAE

12.Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

—Z—+tF ZT—RF
2017 2016
FTET FH&TT
HK$’000 HK$'000
NERRNBRREMEFE  Profit for the year attributable to
FEERERREHE owners of the Company and
Bz &8 F earnings for the purposes of
calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 170,560 169,343
g EC|
Number of shares
T8 F A&
‘000 ‘000
FAEESRERERNZ Weighted average number of shares
hnfE 39 AR 2 for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share 563,874 563,810
AR EBmREE Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
BETE: shares:
=i Share options 59 50
AREEREERANZ Weighted average number of shares
DN S 35 AR BX for the purpose of calculating
diluted earnings per share 563,933 563,860

FTEEREE R RBREARD A
2 BB % #24.050/8 I ~ 4.53678
T R5.942B T 2 TEEBITE R
AE—ZT—t&ER_FT X F&ZE
BREZTEERRRD 2 FHEm
{go

The computation of diluted earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s options of exercise
prices of HK$4.050, HK$4.536 and HK$5.942 because
the exercise prices of those options were higher than the
average market price for shares for both 2017 and 2016.
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13.M%¥ BERRZE 13.Property, Plant and Equipment
G- £ER
HETHR  HAERK
BT Furniture,
ERIE Leasehold fixtures fE BERMS
Construction land and and office Motor Plant and fit
in progress buildings ~ equipment vehicles  machinery Total
T Thr T T i AL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Hz)
(Note)
AR AT COST
RZE-7"E-A-H At 1 January 2016 75,309 876,541 165,398 0m 1,272,055 2431575
NELEZE Currency realignment (5173) (48,212) (7,758) (2,629) (77,035) (140,806)
EEigk Reclassifications (38.243) 28,820 1,696 - 772 -
RE Additions 14,763 80,874 17,007 1,665 55,904 170,233
HE /5 Disposals/written off = (503) (7,616) (4517) (23,952) (36,589)
BARENZELY Surplus on revaluation arising from
EERH transfer to investment properties - 50,627 - = = 50,627
EA\RENE Transfer to investment properties - (115,180) (9,439) - - (124,619)
RZB-7RETZF=F-H At31 December 2016 46,65 872,967 159,308 36,792 1234699 2350422
NELEZE Currency realignment 3,62 68,990 10,107 2,776 104,094 189,589
RE Additions 264 115,826 25,817 1,752 39,041 182,700
HE /i Disposalswritten off (2,008) (1,363) (2,003) (2,704) (20,780) (28,968)
BARENZEEY Surplus on revaluation arising from
R transfer to investment properties = 31,702 = = = 31,702
E\RENE Transfer to investment properties - (38,333) - - - (38,333)
ENSBABELE Reclassified as held for sale - 4,263) - - - (4.263)
RZZ—£E+ZF=F-H At31 December 2017 48444 1,045,526 193,209 38,616 1357,054 2,682,849
FERAE DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
RZS-~E-f-A At 1 January 2016 - 195,220 99,127 29,456 384,412 708,215
NELEZE Currency realignment - (17,599) (470) (2,262) (31,008) (51,339)
ERfE Depreciation for the year - 29,915 17,874 3460 85,697 136,946
HE/EHRE Eliminated on disposalsiwritten off - (334) (4927) (2,663) (5,652) (13,576)
EARENEREH Elimination on transfer to investment
properties - (23,573) (4,181) - - (27,754)
RZE-7RET-AZT—H At31 December 2016 - 183,629 107423 27,991 433449 752,492
NELEZE Currency realignment - 13,366 6,150 2,360 45,754 67,630
ERfTE Depreciation for the year - 32,906 18,160 2,848 144701 198,615
HE/HRE Eliminated on disposalshwritten off = (1,014) (1,737) 2.112) (14,615) (19.478)
E\RENEREH Elimination on transfer to
investment properties - (3733) - - = (3,733)
ENNBARELE Reclassified as held for sale - (1,597) - - - (1,597)
RZE—tE+-F=+—H At31December 2017 - 203,557 129,99 31,087 609,289 993,929
REE CARRYING VALUES
RZE—tE+=F=F—H At31 December 2017 48,444 821,969 63,213 7,529 741,765 1,688,920
RZB-7RE+ZF=F-H At31 December 2016 46,65 689,338 51,885 8801 801,250 1,597,930
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1B.YVE - BERRE»

EXFRR 2 B R EEE
(TREERTRE) DB RERN
TERYE -

HELT A E 2 i8R 3

EF LARE 2 M FH
2.5% @ AE4E
HFTE

R -EER 45%F25%

RN

RE 9%ZE25%

MER#EE 5%ZE20%

Miz: REBEE-T—t&+=-A=1+—
BIEFER  AARIEEEMSE
TR R 2E 2 (it el 2 A &
- R B S RS I B R AN
Z T A A F A ER114F
BE#ROF-AFE ZERE
Rz matrlE A FHZ &
b2 &8I ATIE & A BRI R
7 58 5N & £ 4959,030,000

13.Property, Plant and Equipment

(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land

Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

Over the remaining term of the
lease

Over the shorter of the remaining
term of the lease or 2.5%

4.5% to 25%

9% to 25%
5% to 20%

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, the directors of the

Company reviewed the estimated useful life of certain plant

and machinery and considered the average original estimated

useful life of these plant and machinery have been changed

from 11 years to 6 years. The effect of change in estimated

useful life of these plant and machinery are accounted for on

a prospective basis and is recognised as additional depreciation

expense of approximately HK$59,030,000 in the current year.

BT e

14.78F L&

14.Prepaid Lease Payments

—E—+tfF ZT—RF
2017 2016
FTET FHEIT
HK$'000 HK$'000

REBBEN LB BIE: The Group's prepaid lease payments

comprise:

BERENINLRRFE 2 Leasehold land outside Hong Kong

HE LT 268,196 255,489
DITERE RS Analysed for reporting purposes as:

EMEEE Non-current assets 261,017 248,805
mENE B Current assets 7.179 6,684
268,196 255,489

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR
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15.Investment Properties

FHETT
HK$'000
2 RE FAIR VALUE
RZFE—R"E—H—H At 1 January 2016 93,200
HINGE 4L H = B8 Currency realignment (3,780)
BYE BEMEEEA (M) Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note) 96,865
BiEM LA SEA (&) Transfer from prepaid lease payment (Note) 34,920
RN EE N Increase in fair value 5,125
RZZE—RE+-H=+—H At31 December 2016 226,330
INEREE ZF Currency realignment 6,142
INE Additions 21,620
B BE R&HEZE A () Transfer from property, plant and equipment (Note) 34,600
N BN Increase in fair value 44,079
RZT—tF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 332,771

AEBEREMENR_T—LF+=
H=t—RBZzRARENZEREE
WEBEZ B A ERERMEER
RBERRET2HEEE -

BEDERERLBUEERE YR
RELYMEHRSRAEMM S LA
HEBRHEERXSBRERN TRE
HE  KERREZREE At RE
RMERYEREszTSES kit
EABEEERRAELES B -
BEEREBUEREZENBLUE 2
PUHEARATSABRERS KRE
EREERBEOUGE Z B EED
HmS A SRAS WA - R EFHD
EZAnER NEZERLEE
P& B Al & o

AEBNURBERPENKRENE
WMARESERAALEBERINE=
Mo FRAREEARBHE=R-

The fair values of the Group's investment properties as at
31 December 2017 have been arrived at on the basis of
valuations carried out at the end of the reporting period by
an independent qualified professional valuer, which is not
connected with the Group.

The valuation was arrived at by using direct comparison
approach assuming sale of the properties in their existing
states with the benefit of vacant possession and by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as available in
the relevant market, or by using investment approach taking
into account the current market rent passing of the property
interest with due provision for any reversionary income
potential. The direct comparison approach is based on
market observable recent transactions of similar properties
in similar location. The investment approach is based on
market observable recent rental income of similar properties
in similar properties in similar locations. In estimating the
fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of the
properties is their current use.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties situated
in Hong Kong and in the PRC is classified as Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers into or out of
Level 3 during the year.
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15. 8 EWE »)

Mis: REBE=Z—t&+=-A=+—
HEFEAN AEEZFHED
AYHE - BEREHE(ZZE—X
F ME - BREREEARE
Nt L) ARG WKEE
EFBILE=HUNERES IR
AN BAREBEMER 2T
8715 48 & ik W 2z 4931,702,000
BT (ZF — 734 177,487,000
BIL) c Z T — XN F KA
BECHEBEENSEL
29,839,000 mE @ EMEE
W st A E Sk -

TREIR=ZZE—EFER=ZT—
Ft+-A=t+t—BHEBEUNREBEEZ
EXRBEYWEZLARE(LEZME
RABEERTEREAZSIER) - UEA
REFTERRBAALEBETENH AR
BRABRIEEETHENAARE
FRIHE R -

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

15.Investment Properties (continued)

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group changed
the use of certain of its property, plant and equipment (2016:
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments)
and had leased them out to independent third parties for
rental income. Upon the transfer to investment properties,
these properties were revalued with a gain on revaluation
of approximately HK$31,702,000 (2016: HK$77,487,000).
This amount net of the corresponding deferred tax liability
of approximately HK$29,839,000 in 2016 has been credited
to property revaluation reserve through other comprehensive

income.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties as at 31 December
2017 and 2016 are determined (in particular, the valuation
techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair value
hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.
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15.Investment Properties (continued)

BEEFBAYER
DNREZRE

properties held by the Group AAEHRE [HEFEZRTEZBAUE BAEEBEEGAUE Relationship of
in the consolidated statement Fair value  Valuation technique(s)  Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to
of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) fair value
R=B-t&+=A=+-H
At 31 December 2017
EEERLCIAERREE F=R REEGTRENERYNE STHRTSEENF13.208L2 iiﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁ
FA4EEEEELR BazmnslEe REE  1510BTRERELE36% K BABRSRANLE
MEFLAFE AL MEEESWAELEE BTRERALREE Wit kit
218,000,000 7¢ B R EAMEREE (flA) -2
FRiEBE BRE)
The whole of Yip's Chemical Level 3 Investment approach Market rent per square feet, using A slight increase in the

Building together with 4 lorry
parking spaces and 4 private
car parking spaces in

Hong Kong

HK$218,000,000

EAERAEVEETHS FZ&
21,647,000 70

A certain portions of the Level 3
27th Floor of Fortis Tower in
Hong Kong

HK$21,647,000

REELEEERRNIE
F%ER
93,124,000 7T

F=R&

An industrial development in Level 3
Qingpu District, Shanghai,
the PRC

HK$93,124,000

taking into account
the current market
rent passing of the
property interest with
due provision for any
reversionary income
potential.

BEREBEARRAERN T H
EREZRBBHS L
HERZ AL RHER
5o

Direct comparison method
assuming sale in their
existing states and by
reference to comparable
sales transactions as
available in the relevant
market.

E%mﬁi]mEﬁRT%
RE2RAERTS LA
MﬁﬁZTﬁmf%D
5o

Direct comparison method
assuming sale in their
existing states and by
reference to comparable
sales transactions as
available in the relevant
market.

2017 ANNUAL REPORT -

market direct comparables and
taking into account of location
and other individual factors such
as size, building facilities, levels,
age of building, etc., which is
ranging from HK$13.20/sq.ft to
HK$15.10/5q.ft and capitalisation
rate is 3.6%.

BIRREBNT18810ETE
22,9007 RATSEZALR
BB - WAt Ron B R A ERIE R
(BlIAN - BFRIE BE B
%)

Price per square feet, using market
direct comparables and taking
into account of location and
other individual factors such as
size, building facilities, levels,
age of building, etc., which is
ranging from HK$18,810/sq.ft to
HK$22,900/sq.t.

BYAARBRNFAREKL000LE
AR#4,8307 RATSERT
LB BUE - Wt R it B K At 1
RIEZE (FlamK ) BFRiE 2
E Bk%)

Price per square meter, using
market direct comparables and
taking into account of location
and other individual factors such
as size, building facilities, levels,
age of building, etc., which is
ranging from RMB4,000/sg.m. to
RMB4,830/sg.m.

market rent per square
feet will increase
significantly the fair
value.

¥ REBHBIT
RABEREASLE.

A'slight increase in the
price per square feet will
increase significantly the
fair value.

¥ RERITT
BAERS A

L\
JL,

A slight increase in the
price per square meter
will increase significantly
the fair value.
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15.Investment Properties (continued)

BEEFRBAYER
DNEZRE

properties held by the Group AAERE JHEFEZRTEZBAUE BAEEBEEGAUE Relationship of

in the consolidated statement Fair value  Valuation technique(s)  Significant unobservable unobservable inputs to

of financial position hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) fair value

RZE-R"E+ZA=1+—H

At 31 December 2016

ERAERMCIAEME 123 E=& E&mﬁi”“&ﬁﬂT% BIHRERNT2,8008TE BYHRERMA
R4 (T REAENERRE RESREATS LA 33008 HEMSEHETLER HABRSANE.
#E) RIELAFELK3ME MﬁﬁZTémf%%x SR - et R R E A AR A =
SEEEN 5o (BlmAN - BFRIE BE B
151,100,000/ 70 %)

Ground, 1st, 2nd, 3rd and 4th  Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square feet, using market A slight increase in the
Floor excluding the computer assuming sale in their direct comparables and taking price per square feet will
server room on 4th Floor and existing states and by into account of location and increase significantly the
1 private carparking space reference to comparable  other individual factors such as fair value.
and 3 lorry carparking spaces sales transactions as size, building facilities, levels,
of Yip's Chemical Building in available in the relevant age of building, etc., which is
Hong Kong market. ranging from HK$2,800/sq.ft to
HK$151,100,000 HK$3,300/sq.ft.

RSB EER F=R EE%@&?“E%&T% BYFREBNTFARE3S0TE &FFRERIMA
TXA%ER REZREMMS L]  ARE3650m RRMEEERRN HBABRAEAAE
75,230,000 7T Mﬁ%ZTﬁ&F%%X SCREE - Wk R B R E At

e RIREE (FlmA N BFRiE 12
B BRE)
An industrial development in ~ Level 3 Direct comparison method  Price per square meter, using A slight increase in the

Qingpu District, Shanghai,
the PRC
HK$75,230,000

BYGERBERMBEMARANZE
KIETREMGERMBEERLR
EBERREE RETDBREE
ERTRERE /THIRE L R&
BrERRNAHEENEMGE-

NELEHOBAURDESHER
BAREZAKRBEMANEERS
RAAAREERAGE RoBL5
REEME-

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

assuming sale in their
existing states and by
reference to comparable
sales transactions as
available in the relevant
market.

market direct comparables and
taking into account of location
and other individual factors such
as size, building facilities, levels,
age of building, etc., which is
ranging from RMB3,550/5¢.m. to
RMB3,650/sq.m.

price per square meter
will increase significantly
the fair value.

The valuation technique of Yip's Chemical Building adopted
by the independent qualified professional valuer changed
from direct comparison method to investment approach

because of the whole of Yip’s Chemical Building rent out in
the current period and investment approach is appropriate to
value a tenanted property.

All the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are

measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.
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17.

RFEHEZFRBEE

R—ZEBE—+&F+_A+=H AR
Alz—HBARE -—RBEIE=
FEINBEREERZE  LWEEMR
FEZ —ERAEME -AQAE
EENEEENEABM B HmESE
A E55 [FREHERERBEE
RERIERE K] FE 2 FED
EIZE Lt K(a)Z 2 M B % a B
REHEEEZEE  kb)HERF
s HESUERBEEARFTA
B HEEER_Z—N\F—A
TR EREEAYMER=ZZT—tF
T A=+ —H# A BEAFEL
E-THHLEMGRIBEFREKBA
Y2 BREE - At BHERRRE
fE18

FEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T—+tF+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

16.Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

On 13 December 2017, a subsidiary of the Company has
entered into a provisional agreement for sale and purchase
with an independent third party to dispose of an office
premise located in the PRC. The directors of the Company
assessed whether the held-for-sale criteria set out in HKFRS
5 “Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are met. Taking into account (a) the fact that
the subject property is immediately available for sale, and (b)
the conditions to be met to complete the disposal as set out
in the terms of the agreement, the disposal was completed
subsequently in January 2018 and accordingly the relevant
property was classified as held for sale as at 31 December
2017. The net proceeds of the disposal are expected to
exceed the carrying amount of the property and accordingly,
no impairment loss has been recognised.

AHEERE 17.Available-For-Sale Investment
—Z—-t#F
2017
FET
HK$’'000
AHEERERE: Available-for-sale investment comprises:
IE E MR A E F - 1R AR Unlisted equity securities, at cost less
BRERRESE impairment loss recognised 3,992

RI|EBR - FFLTRAEFIZK
FRBEFE RERAEARLE
A EENLERARRARIES

RRRENBERFEE

REBEE_ZT—+tF+=-A=+—H
FEFERN AEEHE-—ZBE=
FEIMEE e BRI
EBEREBBEAERAR (—HRF
Bl S 2 A R]) 23.33% % HE -
RLREAEARES,000,0007T (48
& 75,753,000/ L) i B H 2
FEEBAREZARBERRER
7}9}0

The unlisted equity securities are measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period because the
ranges of reasonable fair value estimates are so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
the fair values cannot be measured reliably.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to acquire 3.33% equity interest in
the registered capital of R FHEEMLE LI ER AT, a
company incorporated in the PRC, for a cash consideration
of RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$5,753,000). The
principal activity of the investee is providing indoor
renovation and maintenance services.
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RER G FFIE 2 8 DR EEER
TEEBHBRZEFTAHFTR
BeReELABEN([REELS
fz]) BB ZEEEEDRET:

1.8 18.Goodwill
FH&TT
HK$'000
R AT COST
RZFE—R"E—H—8" At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016
—F—R"Ft+-_A=+—HK and 31 December 2017
—E—+tF+=-A=+—H 71,462
w1 IMPAIRMENT
RZE—R"E—A—8" At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016
—E—XR"F+=-HA=+—HK and 31 December 2017
—E—+tF+-_A=+—H 1,888
RREE CARRYING VALUES
RZZE—tFR_F—RF At 31 December 2017 and 2016
+=A=+—8~ 69,574

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGU"s) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

—E-—tER
—E-REF
2017 & 2016
Fox
HK$'000

SUER BEAH

REeELBMZ A WE S EIRE
FEREEMEE FEEREER
RAZERBRRIREBEFAZHR
R REXLAMHEEBERERK
AZBBHMEE - EEE AT RKR
BRMGAAEERERZRSE
A B8 P TED 349 5 E L B oz A5 R L SR
HERIRE SRR K TIENE R
ZERBEAMEL - HEBRER
RS 2 B 8 R AR 158 18 Il & FB 1
BEmH 2B EMETE -

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

Manufacture of and trading in solvents 59,479
Manufacture of and trading in coatings 10,095

69,574

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs during the year. Management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry
growth forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs
are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market.
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19.

B @)

BREFHZEN AEEIRRE
EEEBMAEZSBRCEAENM
CRIOEMBEBESHZAKRAF
—E-RF-RF)ReREA
I R BT 45 3R B 3 B R (E
WG RBESEEENMEA R
TR 2B ERIE1% (ZF—K
F:4.73% ) HEEEITRER -
RIBEAEBATEEEIEDN  F
EEERNF0%E10% G5H)
R6%E24% (B8) (ZF— R
F:5%%E14% OB H) R6%E8%
(2R)) - BE-_FE—+tE+_-A8
=t HEFE AEBTERER

ERE RS

BVEE

FEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T—+tF+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

18.Goodwill (Continued)

For impairment assessment purpose, the Group performed
impairment review for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts
derived from the most recent financial budgets for the next
five years (2016: five years) for each CGUs approved by
management using a discount rate 4.61% (2016: 4.73%)
which reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth
rates per annum range from 0% to 10% for solvents and
6% to 24% for coatings (2016: 5% to 14% for solvents
and 6% to 8% for coatings) in light of the Group’s industry
growth forecasts. No impairment loss has been recognised
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

19.Intangible Assets

R
R-2-A%F—A-8
HNERELE

R-E—R¥t-A=t—H

NEHEER

RZZ—tF+t-A=+—-H

BHETAE

R=E-—"E—H—H
NELEESE
FRRE

RZZE-—R"Ft-A=+—-H

NEHEER
FREE

R-E—tH+t-A=t—H

REE

RZZT—+t&+=ZA=1+—H
RZE—R"F+_A=1+—H

AT COST
At 1 January 2016
Currency realignment

At 31 December 2016
Currency realignment
At 31 December 2017
AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT

At 1 January 2016
Currency realignment
Provided for the year

At 31 December 2016
Currency realignment
Provided for the year

At 31 December 2017
CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

THE 0= BERm R

Bl A& Non- Trademarks
Technical competition and Bt
knowhow covenants  patent brands Total
TER TET TEL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,498 18,261 1,952 25,711
(81) (934) - (1,015)
5417 17,327 1,952 24,696
105 1,205 = 1,310
5,522 18,532 1,952 26,006
5,331 16,846 1,073 23,250
(78) (896) - (974)
122 886 195 1,203
5,375 16,836 1,268 23,479
104 1,195 - 1,299
43 501 196 740
5,522 18,532 1,464 25,518
- - 488 488
42 491 684 1,217
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19.8FEEE o 19.

tREVEEERFRER %F
BREETRAERER TFH

5

il 0
555 1 ok

715 M am &

5— 104
104
104

RMTAMBRRABLE =T REX
BBGER MENGHEEMNE
FE P N a8 B F 1T

PEFHBERRNKB QAR R
HIEERHE T KRBT 05
ZHEFHA AR ERFRER -

[ERESETNEER Sl i
FEmENTISANERER A KA

HE o

20 HMERBEE 20.

HEBENEASERBEMESRZ
B B R ¥R & BRI A AR R ET R

Intang ible Assets (Continued)

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the following periods:

Technical knowhow 5-10 years
Non-competition covenants 10 years
Trademarks and patent brands 10 years

Technical knowhow represents technical knowledge and
techniques acquired from independent third parties to
manufacture certain insulating varnish, ink and screening
products.

Non-competition covenants represent the right to restrict
the vendors of assets or acquirees, after acquisition of the
entities, to carry on the same business for specific periods
for 10 years.

Trademarks and patent brands represent the brand names

acquired which have high recognition and awareness in the
market.

Other Non-Current Asset

The amount represents the cost of club debenture held
by the Group and is measured at cost less accumulated

BEER(ME)TE- impairment losses, if any, at the end of the reporting period.
21. 78 21.Inventories

—E—+tF —E—RF

2017 2016

FTHERT FH&TT

HK$'000 HK$'000

R Raw materials 540,567 472,595

&M@ Work in progress 22,636 23,964

BUAK M Finished goods 350,829 311,644

914,032 808,203

164 HERCIEBEHRAF -

T FEFR
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22.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other
Debtors and Prepayments

—E—tF —E—RF

2017 2016

FExT FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

B 5 e GRIA Trade receivables 1,859,588 1,739,087
B REREE A Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (73,564) (68,075)
1,786,024 1,671,012

U 5 Bills receivables 1,658,909 1,133,598
3,444,933 2,804,610

B 2 BWRE

RBEHREEZAR 2 E SRR
FRIARRE 2T (AR RERB ) 40
T

Trade receivables

An aged analysis of trade receivables, net of allowance for
doubtful debts, presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

—E—tE —E—RF

2017 2016

FExT FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

TE=1A 0 - 3 months 1,479,359 1,374,642
Mz {E A 4 — 6 months 241,779 226,663
7NE A LA £ Over 6 months 64,886 69,707
1,786,024 1,671,012

AEBARFRAERETPREMH30K
EORTEZEEH - AEERE
AN REHERFZRBFARRRE
FRFRENEES-

EEMNETAHEFA ARE R
EEEFREZGENHEETPZE
EEx EFecHanEEEAR
REFEEEERBREESE-
BEFZBRBEGEHREN KHN78%

ZE—RF 73%) 2B FRKR
BERRRBHTERE ERAS
REASEMERAZEEZREH R
B REEHREGRET BRI
B

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90
days to its trade customers. A longer credit period may be
granted to large or long established customers with good
payment history.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit control system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the board of directors
has delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for
customers. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Approximately 78% (2016: 73%) of the trade
receivables are neither past due nor impaired as they were
assessed to be of good credit rating attributable under the
credit control system used by the Group.
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2.BE5BRWRIERERE

B HtEWERFKE
TRIE (=)

BESEWFEIE w)

AEBEE S EYGRIBERER B ER
FEUBR X - 48RRI {E A£393,080,000
BT (ZZF—7RF: 459,336,000
PEIL) © i B e HA R IRBR U A
PERVREBTERARKESE
2R NEBWERZE
RIBIEL RERBEE - AL B
REERUEFEEMERR -

RBERREBHERBREZES
JE U AR FIR 3 32 B 2R 2 BR iR o AT 4R
T

22.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Trade receivables (continuea)

Included in the Group's trade receivables are past due
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$393,080,000
(2016: HK$459,336,000). These past due debtors are
all closely monitored and by past experience, they will
eventually settle their debts, so the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, which
are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting
period based on the invoice date:

—E—tE —E—RF

2017 2016

FExT FET

HK$'000 HK$'000

T =@ A 0 - 3 months 220,332 240,726
mENEA 4 — 6 months 130,561 148,903
NE A A E Over 6 months 42,187 69,707
393,080 459,336

EEEE S RWERR A fE T
B BEFHREEEEEREA
B AEBERESEREERER
BEZEFAEH ARAEER
R AEHEITEEREFEFEER
b BHERBRBREXZHREERP

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

In determining the recoverability of the trade debtors, the
Group monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade
debtors since the credit was granted and up to the reporting
date. The directors of the Company considered that the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
customers.
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22.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Trade receivables (continueq)

AR Allowance for doubtful debts:
—E2—+tF —E—RF
2017 2016
FHET FH& T
HK$'000 HK$'000
F19) At beginning of the year 68,075 110,716
HNPE 5 = 5 Currency realignment 5,907 (4,498)
R 2R EEE Impairment losses recognised 18,305 21,718
RAFEEWE 2 KB Amounts recovered during the year (709) (5,017)
TSN R Uk | 2 FRIA Amounts written off as uncollectible (18,014) (54,844)
FR At end of the year 73,564 68,075

HENERABAMEREZES
FEWBR R AE R (E - AR BBL A F
R EFEEAERS-

R E

JEUZE I ARITA N ES - Bl
NERITAEA N RIERMRZ T HE
Z- AEEZARNBREZEE MU
AERITHN 2 RITE A IEREE
B S ERRE -

HEEITHEE T AKBRRITA
HEZBERNZHTHHRRAEBEER
TZEARBE - RITALERH
TEAPEBEBRITHEERRITRN
ZERTALEZDH A AT

Impairment is made for trade debtors that have been placed
under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Bills receivables

Bills receivables represent #R 174 i [ % (“banker’s
acceptances”), i.e. time drafts accepted and guaranteed
for payment by the PRC banks. The Group accepts the
settlement of trade receivables by customers using banker’s
acceptances accepted by the PRC banks on a case by case
basis.

These banker's acceptances are issued to or endorsed to
the Group and with maturity date in general not longer
than twelve months from the date of issuance. The banker’s
acceptances will be settled by the banks, which are state-
owned banks or commercial banks in the PRC, on the
maturity date of such banker’s acceptances.
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NEN IE ()

EWEE »

R_E—t&F+-_A=+—
$%Fﬂ1§$&*)\%%%% Y=
793,511,000 L (=& — /X F:

639,079,000/ 7T ) W) & T &R 17 &
HEZ UAEENFESENESE
HoBAW AEEEEEZEES
EZRITALEZ2E AR
ZEWHEREMNERAZEBRR
B HEEEERITARLIEZSE 2 5| H
Elo

AT AEBNEKRRETEBES
HERESETHER BARAR
B EEEZFRERRNEAR
B N 00 R - EL A A S B R R W
R Z BRTENE ° 5% 35 FE MR SR 8
AR AR R B 7 & B TS ARR R ©

HEZZT—+F+=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

22.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Bills receivables (continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group endorsed certain banker’s
acceptances with an amount of HK$793,511,000 (2016:
HK$639,079,000) to creditors to settle the trade payables
to them. Accordingly, the Group continued to include the
full amount of these endorsed banker’s acceptances under
bills receivables and recognised the relevant payable to
creditors until the maturity date of the endorsed banker’s
acceptances.

Transfer of financial assets

The following were the Group’s bills receivables that were
endorsed to suppliers with full recourse. As the Group has
not transferred the significant risks and rewards relating to
these receivables, it continues to recognise the full carrying
amount of the receivables. These receivables are carried at
amortised cost in the Group's consolidated statement of
financial position.

EXHEREEET
HEBHNERERE
Bills receivables
endorsed to suppliers
with full recourse

—EB—t& —T—RE

2017 2016

FHET F& T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEEEAECRAE Carrying amount of transferred assets 793,511 639,079
FRaEZEREE Carrying amount of associated liabilities (793,511) (639,079)

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR
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BEZZ—+F+ A =1—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

22.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other
Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Other debtors and prepayments

Other debtors and prepayments mainly consist of payments
in advance to suppliers, commission receivable from
suppliers and value-added tax recoverable.

Included in trade receivables and bill receivables and
other debtors are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the group
entities to which they relate:

—E—+tF —E—REF

2017 2016

TER F& T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT Hong Kong dollars 2,298 3,363
E([%=7xl) United States dollars (“USD") 33,247 28,138
HE([BE]) Japanese Yen (“YEN") = 625

23. 5 HIRITER  RITHE
BREE

RARTERRBITERLRAESE
ETOLIEAB RSB AR ZIRE

23.Short-Term Bank Deposits, Bank
Balances and Cash

Included in short-term bank deposits and bank balances and
cash are the following amounts denominated in currencies

B EMERE: other than the functional currencies of the group entities to
which they relate:

—E—+tF —E—RF

2017 2016

TER FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

eV usD 152,734 214,447

BT Hong Kong dollars 5,333 9,586

AR RMB 889 49,876

FrERITERRBITEBETSE
FMZEANTF0.001%%E6% (ZF—N
F:0.001%E6% ) ~NHt 8-

All bank deposits and bank balances were carrying interest
at market rates ranging from 0.001% to 6% (2016: 0.001%
to 6%) per annum.
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20 EHERARESTE A

R & AR - FE S BR B FE BT
ERAABRPEREIENER
1,483,112,000% 70 (=T — /<& :
1,362,338,000/8 ) - % BEE B
REFPEMNZ ENEIFEKE
F -HERES ENERREES-

RBERRZERARZEZEN

24.Creditors and Accrued Charges

At the end of the reporting period, the balance of
creditors and accrued charges included trade creditors of
HK$1,483,112,000 (2016: HK$1,362,338,000). Remaining
balances mainly consist of receipts in advance from
customers, payables of staff salaries and benefits, sales
commission, payable of storage and transportation, etc.

An aged analysis of trade creditors at the end of the

BRARERRTAT reporting period based on the invoice date is as follows:
—Z—+tF ZT—RF
2017 2016
THERT FH&TT
HK$000 HK$'000
TE=1@A 0 - 3 months 1,171,286 1,139,905
N D3] 4 — 6 months 295,793 218,760
7~MEA A E Over 6 months 16,033 3,673
1,483,112 1,362,338
JEfTRR R BHE N HINE3ELA R R S & Included in creditors are the following amounts denominated

REIZWEEBEEBZHE:

in currency other than the functional currency of the group

entities to which they relate:

—E—tF —ZT—RF

2017 2016

FET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

S5O, usD 77,984 123,583

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR
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25.Derivative Financial Instruments

mE FRE
Current Non-current

—E-tF — NG ZB-tF T RF

2017 2016 2017 2016
THT FTHEL THER TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
UHHEHEREZ Derivatives financial assets
ESHEE under hedge accounting
FIEEHEH Interest rate swap contracts 3,592 4,075 3,449 4,468
SNERBEN Foreign exchange
forward contracts - 77 - -
3,592 4,152 3,449 4,468
NHHEHEREZ Derivatives financial liabilities
fiEemas under hedge accounting
FI=E B4 Interest rate swap contracts 68 146 2 47
INERBED Foreign exchange
forward contracts - 165 - -
68 311 2 47

LR ERELH 2 FRiE
Han

AEBERZEARRITEILZ AT
REHAH BERFHNXRE R
REERE  RIT2E THETE
BRITEEZRESNERDERE
ERE-ZERHZIERERERR
HEEHRTEEZ G K (@
BRRTEEZAEH BERF
RIRER) - EFZRA/NEERHS
WESREHRTE WREEH DS
EEEZSETARRSREL T
TH-

REAFAEREH 2 RS RERARM
= HHAAREER -BHE-T—+
E+-_fA=+—HLEEFE RER
EWHEAY R TAE 2 AR EE
FE18/51,379,0008 7T ( —F—X
1 U3514,303,000/8 70 ) EREAM
PEHREERRZTRERAN-E
EEHIAAMBRREPREEE
REHAEIE A TR B PR ERRA
E\-Eo

Interest rate swap contracts under cash
flow hedges

The Group entered into a number of interest rate swap
contracts with the commercial banks to minimise its
exposure to cash flow changes of its floating-rate Hong
Kong dollars bank loans from banks by swapping floating
interest rates to fixed interest rates. The terms of these
contracts were negotiated to match with those of the
hedged bank loans with the same notional amounts to
principal amounts of bank loans, currency and interest rate
index. The directors consider that the interest rate swap
contracts are highly effective hedging instruments and have
designated them as cash flow hedging instruments for
hedge accounting purpose.

The hedges were highly effective in hedging cash flow
exposure to interest rate movements. Fair value change
on hedging instruments in cash flow hedge of loss of
HK$1,379,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
gain of HK$14,303,000) have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity. The
directors expected the accumulated sum is to be released to
profit or loss at various dates in the coming maturity periods
after the reporting period.
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5.0TE€®mI A 2

LHREREBH 2 FRE
HELN )

R E BBR - MO sE26FT #2582 $R1T
EEREREREBL HAEZ TIRIT
B 31,108,971,000% 7T (== — <
£ :1,354,319,0008 7T ) * M &
NBReREH R 2 XRFPELH 2

25.Derivative Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash
ﬂOW hedges (Continued)

Included in borrowings as disclosed in note 26 were bank
loans of HK$1,108,971,000 (2016: HK$1,354,319,000)
which were under cash flow hedges and the major terms of
the interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

EBHERWT :

HE 3HA g 5= 3\ THES
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
R=E-tE+=-A=+-H

At 31 December 2017

22,300,000/ 7T “Z-\fHA=-1=H BIL—ERZRITRAERE 2.54
HK$22,300,000 23.5.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR* 2.54%
90,000,000/ 1T —T-N\E~A+=H BIL—ERAZRITRAERE 3.2
HK$90,000,000 13.6.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.22%
128,571,000 7T “Z-AFERA=1H BL—EARAZRITRAERE 3.05
HK$128,571,000 30.5.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.05%
55,600,0007% 7T —Z-AE=A=1—H BIL—ERZRITRAERE 2.22F
HK$55,600,000 31.3.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.22%
50,000,0005% 7T —T-hNFE+A=tAA BLT—EAZBITRERE 3.208
HK$50,000,000 29.10.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.20%
62,500,000/ 1 —T-N¥—A=H BIL—EARZRITRAERE 2.85
HK$62,500,000 2.1.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.85%
250,000,000/ 7T “Z-_THNA—H BL—ERZRITRAERE 2.82F
HK$250,000,000 1.4.2020 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.82%
200,000,000/ 7T —Z-ZE=A=+—H BL—EAZRITRAERE 1.94JE
HK$200,000,000 31.3.2020 HK$1-month HIBOR 1.94%
250,000,000 7T “T-—FWmAt+AA BL—EAZBITRERE 2442
HK$250,000,000 19.4.2021 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.44%
* HIBORYE & /& R 1T R £ 47 B Al % - @ HIBOR represents Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR
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HE=-T—tF+=-HA=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31 December 2017

25.Derivative Financial Instruments

(Continued)

ﬂOW hedges (Continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash

EfE B A 5= 5\ THES
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
R=ZZ—R"E+=RA=+—H

At 31 December 2016

30,000,000 7T —Z—+F&7\A+EA BT=EAZBIRERS 2.61E
HK$30,000,000 14.8.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.61%
13,750,00075 7T —T—+FNA=+—H BIL=@RAZRITRAERE 2.622
HK$13,750,000 21.8.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
11,250,000/ 7T “Z—t+F¥NA+=H BT=EAZBTRERE 2.622
HK$ 11,250,000 13.9.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
23,333,000/ 7T —E—+F+HATNH BIL=@RAZRITRAERE 2.67E
HK$23,333,000 19.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.67%
20,000,000/ 7T “E—+F+A=+—8 BT=EAZBTRERE 2.682
HK$20,000,000 31.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.68%
214,286,000/ 7T “T-NFRA=TH BIL—ERZRITRAERE 3.052
HK$214,286,000 30.5.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.05%
66,700,000 7T —Z-\FRA-1+=A BT EAZBTRERE 2.548
HK$66,700,000 23.5.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.54%
150,000,0007% 7T —Z-\E~R+=H BL—ERZRITRAERE 3.2
HK$150,000,000 13.6.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.22%
100,000,00078 7T —Z-AF=A=1+-H BT EAZBETRERE 2,228
HK$100,000,000 31.3.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.22%
75,000,000 7 —Z-NFE+A=tANA BL—ERZRITRAERE 3.20E
HK$75,000,000 29.10.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.20%
100,000,00078 7T —T-NE—A=H BT EAZBTRERE 2.852
HK$100,000,000 2.1.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.85%
350,000,000/ 7T —Z-ZFMA—H BIL—ERAZRITRAERE 2.82E
HK$350,000,000 1.4.2020 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.82%
200,000,000/ & —“Z-ZHE=A=+-H BT EAZBTRERE 1.942
HK$200,000,000 31.3.2020 HK$1-month HIBOR 1.94%
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25

TTEERmIA 2

MEEHEN

R-_ZB—+FE+-_A=+—"8 %
LA ARER SRS U 2588,000
BIL (=T — /8 F : [F51888,000%5
TOREMEERENER KRG
R R ZSEANBRID B
RWEBHEH -AEETLHEA
Y FHAENEEESBEREEA
HAOZETRBEY AEERE
BiErz —H5 EEMRBEEER
HINEMIEBMZEBE - AEEET
Bl ETERSEHEEET
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6 2 5 & B B 52 5 8 B SN E 3= B
BHETHETRESEE NS E
B BZERFNEERRE ARSI
D GHENBELTHEE  REEET
NETFHINERPELN R=Z2F—+
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25.Derivative Financial Instruments

(Continued)

Foreign exchange forward contracts

As at 31 December 2017, the change in fair value of these
contracts recorded a gain of HK$88,000 (2016: a loss of
HK$88,000) and was recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in hedging reserve. The majority
of these contracts were deliverable forward contracts.
Such contracts were entered into as part of the Group's
treasury operation for the purpose of capturing the price
differential between the spot and forward foreign currency
exchange markets by entering into purchase contracts
that were denominated in USD with the similar amounts
and maturity dates on a one by one basis. Each of these
arrangements, when contracted by the Group, will lock USD/
RMB exchanges rate. Accordingly, although the valuation
of each of these foreign exchange forward contracts might
give rise to a gain or loss at a particular date within the term
of the respective contract, such gain or loss will eventually
be substantially offset by each of these arrangements. The
Group entered into a number of foreign exchange forward
contracts and those foreign exchange contracts were all
expired as at 31 December 2017. The directors consider
that the forward contracts are highly effective hedging
instruments and have designated them as cash flow hedging
instruments for hedge accounting purpose for the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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BEZZT—tF+t=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

(Continued)

25.Derivative Financial Instruments

Foreign exchange forward contracts

(Continued)

The ranges of the notional amounts of the major
outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts to which

the Group is committed at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

E#A
Maturity

=

Exchange rates

RZZE—R"F+=—A=+—H
At 31 December 2016

E 704,007 7T
Buy USD704,007

E 820,368 7T
Buy USD820,368

51,080,648 T
Buy USD1,080,648

E890,9023 7T
Buy USD890,902

§978,483% T
Buy USD978,483

51,034,884% 7T
Buy USD1,034,884

—E—+F—H+<H

16.1.2017

—E—+F—-A+N\H

18.1.2017

—F—t&-A=+=H

23.1.2017
—F—+t¥-A=H
3.2.2017
—F—t¥_-_HtH
7.2.2017

—E—tF-At+t=H

13.2.2017
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5. 0TS/ T H &) 25.Derivative Financial Instruments
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(Continued)

Cross currency swap contract

Cross Currency Swap

The Group entered into a cross currency swap contract as
part of the Group's treasury operation for the purpose of
minimising the exposure to foreign currency risk and to
hedge economically against the foreign currency bank loan
by swapping floating interest rates in AUD to fixed interest
rate in HK$. Accordingly, although the valuation of the
Cross currency swap contract might give rise to a gain or
loss at a particular date within the term of the contract, the
management of the Group expected that such gain or loss
will eventually be substantially offset with the exchange gain
or loss arising from the foreign currency bank loan at the
end of the contract. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the bank loan in AUD was fully repaid and the cross
currency swap contract was expired. As at 31 December
2016, the change in fair value of the contract recorded a
gain of HK$10,661,000 (2017: nil) which was recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group did not designate any hedging relationship on
the cross currency swap contract for the purpose of hedge
accounting.

The above derivatives are measured at fair value. The
classification of the measurement of the above derivatives at
31 December 2017 is Level 2 under the fair value hierarchy
(see note 30 for details).



HE-ZT—+EF+=A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

26.6 & 26.Borrowings
—E—tF —E-RF
2017 2016
TERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BERRERITENR: Borrowings included bank loans:
RITER Bank loans 2,468,405 2,246,319
i Unsecured 2,468,405 2,246,319
BITERFTRATFEEBEE*: The bank loans are repayable as
follows*:
—FN Within one year 1,208,148 789,848
—FIEEMFNA More than one year but not
exceeding two years 668,357 772,214
MEEERAFA More than two years but not
more than five years 591,900 684,257
2,468,405 2,246,319
W BR—FRBELFENA  Less: Borrowings due within one year
mEBBECEER shown under current liabilities (1,208,148) (789,848)
BRIERBAECZEE Borrowings shown under non-current
liabilities 1,260,257 1,456,471
* M EERE R BEPHI A *  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set
ZIEEA ,Hﬂﬁfié ° out in the borrowing agreements.
REEBRITERZFENERASBHBR The Group's bank loans carry annual interests at the range
TR ZEHF & buo 50% E BB IRITH of HIBOR plus 0.50% to HIBOR plus 2.05% (2016: HIBOR
%?FF E8N2.05% (ZZFE—X~"F: & plus 1.125% to HIBOR plus 2.05%) and at the quoted
BRITEZEREIM A25%EEFH lending rate of People’s Bank of China minus a fixed margin
ff%ﬂﬂ%ﬁ B.h02.05% ) ' AR&ER (2016: nil). Interest is repriced in the period from two weeks
AR B A RIBITEREER R up to one month (2016: two weeks up to six months).

—FEEEEE(ZT—ARF: &)
MNE—MREMAZE—@EAR(=ZZF
—ANF EMAZNEA)EFE—

R e
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26.6 8 (&) 26.Borrowings (continued)
N —E-AE
2017 2016
B = Effective interest rates
ESEE Fixed-rate borrowings 2.03%%4.35% 1.45%%2.79%

2.03% to 4.35% 1.45% t0 2.79%

FEEE Variable-rate borrowings 1.57%%£3.24% 1.87%%2.78%

£ & 8 $5165,934,00008 T (=&
— 75 4F 1 105,000,000 7)) iE B &
B -BBEAOER —FRIIE-

EEEETILIFNEREERR

1.57% to 3.24% 1.87% to 2.78%

Included in borrowings are HK$165,934,000 (2016:
HK$105,000,000) at fixed-rate borrowings with the
contractual maturity dates within 1 year.

Included in borrowings are the following amounts

ZEE B EE 2 HIA denominated in currency other than the functional currency
of the group entities to which they relate:

—E—t#F —E—RF

2017 2016

TET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT Hong Kong dollars 77,900 166,700

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR
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27.Deferred Tax Liabilities

NTRAEEE®R Z EEELEN
HAE (BE) RRAFEREFAZ

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the

EHEH: current and prior years:
AABEF
AN
NERERE Withholding W1 EHffE
Accelerated HEER taxon  Revaluation
tax Tax  undistributed of At st
depreciation losses profits properties Others Total
Thn Thn T T AL ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(H&)
(Note)
RZZ-~E-A-H At 1 January 2016 3,135 (623) 3,006 - 2,224 1,742
R BRI Reversal of withholding tax
upon distribution - - (36,616) - - (36,616)
1k GrA) 28 & Charge (credit) to profit or loss 713 (138) 42,033 - (333) 4,275
NRZEREMEARE  Charge to other comprehensive income
for the year - - - 29,839 - 29,839
NELEEE Currency realignment - - - (1428) - (1428)
RZE—REF-A=T—H At31 December 2016 3,848 (761) 8,423 28,411 1,891 41812
R REEEE Reversal of withholding tax
upon distribution - - (10,648) - - (10,648)
(A NRZER (Credit) charge to profit or loss (254) (806) 10,345 - (365) 8,920
NELEZE Currency realignment = = = 2,205 = 2205
RZZ—+E+-A=+—H At31December 2017 3,594 (1,567) 8,120 30,636 1,526 42,309

B o

HithF 2RRNYEHTE A B

BARERABRKEBEE (A&
BEE A LBe Ry
55 B Rkt ) 2 AR 2 IR FE AR IR

B

Note: Others mainly represent deferred tax liabilities arising from fair

value adjustments on assets acquired (i.e. intangible assets,

prepaid lease payments and property, plant and equipment) on

acquisition of subsidiaries.
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27.

ERCIEEERRAT -

EEHREE 2

RZE—ttF+=ZA=+—80"
ZKK@ﬁfﬁﬁﬁH%m‘%Eﬁ%am
1,074,277,000% 7T ( ZF — /< F -
870, 729 ,0007% 7t ) 7] 4 # 85 oK 2K
wmH R ZE—tF+ZA=1+—
S EﬁE R 7% 589,497,000
TL(ZZF— X% :4,611,000/% 7T )
ABEEFIBEE AR REETEE
ARG RE - WAKBEBHT
1,064,780,000/%8 70 ( =T — /& :
866,118,000/ 7T ) FERIELE R THE
Ee ﬂéfu/umfrﬂféﬂaﬂh979 936,000
BT (ZZF — 734 : 839,409,0007%8
L) ERBAEL BREKR_F
ZF AR

AEEERBERBRCEMSHER
B {6 B 45 78 48 51 R i 48 R B B
BRRAIBZZEZENF—H—HEE
BB R = A R 9 R B AR B 18 Bt B
J& A Bl R 5 B i A W SRR AE A IE o
FRMCEMSHEERELRE
BRAKRERE G DK BEZ%E10%
W RBNTEN - AR EEFRE
7N 6 [ T] 4 B e R R AR
A i E R = 2 A A] T8 R A% 2R AT A
Kﬁﬁ@’ﬁﬁzﬁﬁljﬁﬁ?ﬁq:w

RAIBZZEZENFE—HA—B#
Eﬁﬁlﬂ’\] S T ARE DR RB & F
1,753,566,0007% 7C ( —F — /<& :
1,491,194,0005% 7T ) it 7RI i £
I8 o

T FEFR

27.Deferred Tax Liabilities (continved

At 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$1,074,277,000 (2016: HK$870,729,000)
available to offset against future profits. As at 31 December
2017, a deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of such losses amounted to HK$9,497,000 (2016:
HK$4,611,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining HK$1,064,780,000 (2016:
HK$866,118,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses,
HK$979,936,000 (2016: HK$839,409,000) may be carried
forward indefinitely and the remaining balance will expire at
various dates up to and including 2022.

Deferred taxation on undistributed profits of subsidiaries has
been recognised taking into accounts the dividends to be
distributed from profits earned by certain subsidiaries in the
PRC starting from 1 January 2008 under the Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law of the PRC that requires
withholding tax with tax rate ranging from 5% to 10% upon
the distribution of such profits to the shareholders. Deferred
taxation has not been recognised in respect of certain
undistributed retained profits earned by the subsidiaries
in the PRC starting from 1 January 2008 amounting to
HK$1,753,566,000 (2016: HK$1,491,194,000) as the
directors are of the opinion that the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it
is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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28.Share Capital

EE ERTRAR
Authorised Issued and fully paid
—E—+tF

E=—Z—XRE —E—tF —E—REF
2017 & 2016 2017 2016
FTER FHERT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FIREE0.108 T2 M&1D Shares of HK$0.10 each 80,000 56,389 56,381

ERRAT L BBTRAAEUTE

Movements in the issued share capital of the Company

E during the year are as follows:
BHEE &8
Number
of shares Amount
T % FAT
‘000 HK$'000
RZE-—RF—H—H At 1 January 2016 563,711 56,371
T{E AR E (MiEa) Exercise of share options (Note a) 100 10
RZZE—R"FE+=-A=+—H At31 December 2016 563,811 56,381
TR (M 5EDb) Exercise of share options (Note b) 78 8
RZE—tF+=A=+—H At31 December 2017 563,889 56,389
B 5 Notes:

(b)

REBEEZT—R"F+=-A=+—8H
IEFE A - #£5100,0001) i Bk 4
HAT{E - 5| AR R R ¥ 17100,000
R EREE0N0B T 2D T
EB D B /A1.950/ T ©

REBEE=T—tF+=ZA=1+—
HIEFEA - 578,000 i1
AT BB A A]81778,000/%
FRREEC. 10T 2 M) - BAkE
B Bl A&1.950% 7T °

A ETROBEME L HEEE
BeRERNFARSELS-

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2016, 100,000 share
options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 100,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price of HK$1.950 per

share.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2017, 78,000 share
options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 78,000 shares
of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price of HK$1.950 per

share.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing

shares in issue in all respects.
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2&§¢m@%ﬂagﬁﬁ

AEEEREEERARKRBBEL
B EEE T EABRRFRESE
W} EAEERFREHFELE - K
SERREHREBEFEMER-

REBZEXAGBREER T8
RN 26K E BB RAARIK
REEHEZD (SEBTRARRESR
(BREREBEFN)) -

ARAREEZERERELREE F
REZ D EZHERELRK
AREERBHENAR RESZ
& ARBBA RS BITHK
REBETHEXEBORBEER A
FEAEBEEBENERS-

30.Em T A
SR T REER

29.Capital Risk Management Objectives

and Policies

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
mainly include the borrowings disclosed in note 26, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves including retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and new share issues as well as the issue of new
debts or the redemption of existing debts.

30.Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments

—E—tF —E—REF
2017 2016
FTER F& T
HK$'000 HK$'000
cREE Financial assets
B R EWERH Loans and receivables
BERREWER(B2IEERE K Loans and receivables (including cash
RHeEBEEER) and cash equivalents) 4,432,525 3,820,030
PTESRITA: Derivative financial instruments:
—EERHHAIAE — designated as hedging instruments 7,041 8,620
AR ESHEE Available-for-sale financial asset
A ERE Available-for-sale investment 3,992 =
cREE Financial liabilities
BEH AR Amortised cost 4,056,457 3,719,244
PTESMIA: Derivative financial instruments:
—EEREHAITHA — designated as hedging instruments 70 358
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30.Financial Instruments (continvea)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group's financial instruments include trade and bills
receivables, other debtors, derivative financial instruments,
short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, available-
for-sale investment, creditors and other payables and
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. There has been no significant change
to the Group's exposure to market risk or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risk.

Market risk

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 11% (2016: 6%) of the
Group's sales are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities making
the sale, whilst almost 83% (2016: 83%) of purchases
are denominated in the relevant group entities’ functional
currency.

The carrying amount of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group entered
into certain foreign exchange forward contracts to reduce
its exposure in potential variability of foreign currency risk
arising from changes in foreign exchange exposure in USD
denominated creditors. Such contracts were entered into
as part of the Group's treasury operation for the purpose
of capturing the price differential between the spot and
forward foreign currency exchange markets by entering into
purchase contracts that were denominated in USD with the
similar amounts and maturity dates on a one by one basis.
All the outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts
were settled during the year ended 31 December 2017. The
management continuously monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency risk should the need arise.
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30,E® T B ()

BEREE R EEEEK
(#)

miEE S (#)

SNERE B (2)

BBEIN

AEBEZEHET ARBRE
TLHSNERBR - TRFMAEEA
7] 2 T B8 B ¥ A8 B SN K5 %
(ZZ—RNE 5% )NHEE 5%
(ZE—RE:5%) 5% E LI
[EERTREHIE 2 AR B TER
BRERER -BBESNMERE R
HEE SN ERNEEIEE - Y
ROMNEFEZS% (ZF—75F 5% )
BHERBAR FEEDTEE
FEUR AR Sk M B IR R 4% - SRAT S 4
BRERREE - EFAEBENEBE
T TR ESEDNEEE LIEREE
BHES% (ZF—NF:5% ) K-
BREEmFBMEM MEFEE
MIEF TR BN EE B
BEEKS% (ZZ—RNF:5%)
B S BRBRREFNERSEHERDN

27 48
i

30.Financial Instruments (continvea)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of USD,
RMB and Hong Kong dollars. The following table details
the Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2016: 5%) increase and
decrease in functional currency of respective group entities
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2016: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 5%
(2016: 5%) change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes trade and bills receivables, bank balances,
creditors as well as borrowings. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit after taxation where functional
currency strengthens 5% (2016: 5%) against the relevant
foreign currency for net liability position and vice versa. For
a 5% (2016: 5%) weakening of functional currency against
the relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit after taxation.

—E—+tF —E—REF

2017 2016

FET F& T

HK$'000 HK$'000

=S usD (4,201) (4,970)
ARK RMB (37) (2,082)
BT Hong Kong dollars 2,964 6,474

o EM S FER S B R FFHIE N
FHEEEBARNEEEIE K
SEAMEBLHIINERR - AR
HEBEEERS% (2T — N&E:
5% ) B ZN 58 B BR B 18 U5 A1 A% 38 N
1,388,000 7T (=& —/"F @D
1,051,000 7)) * R 2 Bl B R F 48

By 8B
RE2-

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

The Group is also exposed to currency risk concerning the
amounts due from/to group entities, which are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. When RMB strengthens 5% (2016:
5%) against the relevant foreign currency, profit after
taxation of the Group will increase by HK$1,388,000 (2016:
decrease by HK$1,051,000) and vice versa.
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30.Financial Instruments (continvea)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and bank loans (see note
26 for details of these borrowings). However, since the bank
deposits and the majority of the fixed-rate bank loans will
mature within one year, the management considers the risk
is insignificant to the Group.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank deposits carried interest at prevailing market
deposit rate and floating-rate bank loans (see notes 23 and
26 for details). In order to keep the Group's bank loans at
fixed rates, the Group entered into interest rate swaps to
hedge against its exposures to changes in cash flows of
certain bank loans. The critical terms of these interest rate
swaps are the same to those of hedged bank loans. interest
rate swaps are designated as effective hedging instruments
and hedge accounting is used (see note 25 for details).

The Group cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of interest rates on bank balances
and HIBOR arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
denominated borrowings.

The Group's bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors consider
the Group's exposure of the short-term bank deposits
with original maturity of less than three months and bank
balances to interest rate risk is not significant as interest
bearing bank balances are within short maturity period and
thus it is not included in sensitivity analysis.
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30.Financial Instruments (continvea)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For interest
bearing bank deposits with original maturity of more than
three months and borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole period. A 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used which represents management'’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing borrowings (excluding
bank loans under cash flow hedges of HK$1,108,971,000
(2016: HK$1,154,319,000)) had been 50 basis points (2016:
50 basis points) higher/lower and all of other variables were
held constant, the profit after taxation for the year ended 31
December 2017 would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$3,918,000 (2016: decrease/increase by approximately
HK$2,714,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its interest bearing short-term
bank deposits and variable-rate borrowings which are not
hedged against their exposures to cash flow interest rate risk
at the end of the reporting period.



30,E®M T B ()

B RS E be B IR B A
(%)

miERER (&)

H b {E 45 E B
AEEERETA SR T AMEYEE
M ERER A EE 2 =M ERER

@ E B &P RF R i H R HME R
B

B BUR

BRED
TOIBRRE DT T AR & B RITAE
TAMEARZZEMERERBRERE

o (WFIXRIEHEL ZERBARE £
Ft/ T RE50EES (ZZ2—<
F 50 EE)  MmAA H i
BEAL BB ZEE
Hﬁlﬂfiﬁﬁﬁé,ﬁ@z A E
B 18 06,974,000
JC ( — = — X% :7,330,000/

T e

EERR
RZFE—tF+ZA=+—H'&
SEARZTHERERITE TS
REBER Z P IEBR AT AYE 2
EREERE BEAVBARR
NI EREEREREEZRA
o

REEBREEERR AEEERE
EEmEBAERIERBAEER
B EEEMREMEERF Mﬁ
R BRAE 1T B e 3B HA B 3A -
S ARBBEMARBEMR 2B
18 5l B 5 B8R 5% K EL At 8 e Bl 3 2 7]
Yo Bl & 58 AREGR B] 23 0 Al e |
BEETRZRERBE - RIEIE)
T ARAEERB/AKEZEE
RBREBERD

FEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_T—+tF+=-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

30.Financial Instruments (continvea)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its
derivative financial instruments. The Group’s other price
risk is mainly concentrated on the interest rate swaps and
foreign exchange forward contracts.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to other price risks for derivatives at the end of the
reporting period:

o if the forward interest rate of interest rate swap
contracts had been 50 basis points (2016: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the debit side of hedging reserve
would decrease/increase by HK$6,974,000 (2016:
HK$7,330,000) as a result of fair value change on
interest rate swap contracts.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to perform an obligation by the counterparties
are arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated the responsible personnel for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt and other debt at the end of the reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.
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30,2 T & (») 30.Financial Instruments (continved)
MR EE R ZHEER Financial risk management objectives
(4% and policies (continued)
FEERK &) Credit risk (continued)

In respect of bills receivables, the credit risk is limited as the
Group has procedures and policies in place to ensure they
are from banks or rural cooperative banks with acceptable
credit quality.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are mainly banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit ratings
and bills receivables mainly from banks with good reputation
in the PRC, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk on trade and other debtors.
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers,
which spread across diverse industries and geographical
areas.

Liquidity risk

In management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 December 2017, the Group had
available unutilised bank facilities of approximately
HK$2,949,614,000 (2016: HK$2,427,466,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-
derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. For derivative instruments settled on a
net basis, undiscounted net cash outflows are presented.
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(4% and policies (continued)

RBESEE &)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

30.Financial Instruments (continvea)

Financial risk management objectives

RBESRAERERK Liquidity and interest risk tables
-ENE WEML  AREER
-fig%E  BFEA  [BFER  RiNE
il | BFe8 [k if 4%
SReTiES -E  Morethan  More than Total
Weighted ~ —fAR Tmonth  fyearbut 2yearshut contractual REE
average  Less than to less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month 1 year 2 years Syears  cash flows amount
% TR TEn TEn TEx TEn TEx
% HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
R-g-tEtZA=1-H At31.12.2017
FiiteRaR Non-derivative financial liabilities
ERERRAMERE Creditors and other payables THEANA 625,503 962,549 - - 158805 1,588,052
A Borrowings
—%8 - at variable rate 258 94,703 722,904 674,898 634,311 2126816 2,047411
-%& - at fixed rate 291 108,240 296,211 19,718 - 424,169 420,934
828,446 1,981,664 694,616 634311 4,139,037 4,056,457
fIATR-BELE Derivatives - gross settlement
flEEsaH Interest rate swap contracts
—iA - inflow (467) (3,080) (372) - (3919) (3,877)
e - outflow 418 3139 375 - 3992 3947
" 59 3 - 3 0
RE-RETAZT-H At31.12.2016
FiteRaR Non-derivative financial liabilities
EREFREBERESR Creditors and other payables R NiA 733375 739,550 = - 1T 1472905
i Borrowings
-8 - at variable rate 232 12223 548,154 752,085 107,327 2,079,789 2,004,319
-8 - at fixed rate 2.09 114,199 63,799 47359 19,880 245,231 242,000
919,797 1,351,503 799,444 127,207 3,797,951 3,719,244
fTEIR-BEE Derivatives - net settlement
HEEHERY Foreign exchange forward contracts 4 121 - - 165 165
frEIE-BELE Derivatives - gross settlement
S Interest rate swap contracts
—A - inflow (377) 2,983 (981) - (4,301) (4.233)
il - outflow 394 3,077 1,026 - 4497 4431
17 134 £ - 19 193
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30,E® T B ()
EMIBEZAREFE

30.Financial Instruments (continvea)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

AEENTESMTERNSRE S
REQIAEFE- TREATNAEM
MEETZEEMIENAAE (L
H =2 R A O fh B £ 00 B g A 2R
B) ARanEFERRARER
ENBAREBNAERIEEETY
BOARERRN (F—E2=F)WE

The Group's derivative financial instruments are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair values
of these financial instruments are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the
level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the

o degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements is
observable.
SRIA ARERERMREIEGALE

Financial ARER DRERZE  Fair value valuation techniques
instruments Fair value as at Hierarchy and key input(s)
“E-tF ZE-REF
+T=ZBA=+-H +=A=+—-8
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
RiEeRBRAR  BE (REHH BE (REHT FH ARRERE - RRRERE D RRSH RA
PERITESHR gihE) %) SEZEERR (MER) BERNERR = (1
T AHM == H ~7,041,0003 7t —8,543,000/ 7T RERRNTEZRREZHREH) REHF
L) E(RERBR KR ) Mibst-
B8 (REHH B & (REHH
g5hE) S5E)
—70,000% 7T —193,000/ 1T
Interest rate Assets Assets Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are
swap contracts (under hedge (under hedge estimated based on forward interest rates
classified as accounting) accounting) (from observable yield curves at the end of
derivative - HK$7,041,000 - HK$8,543,000 the reporting period) and contracted interest
financial rates, discounted at an applicable discount
instruments in Liabilities Liabilities rate taking into account the credit risk of
the consolidated (under hedge (under hedge the counter- parties and of the Group as
statement of accounting) accounting) appropriate.
financial position - HK$70,000 - HK$193,000
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30.Financial Instruments (continvea)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

¢RIE ARERERTREIEGAUE
Financial ARER AREHRR  Fair value valuation techniques
instruments Fair value as at Hierarchy and key input(s)
—EB-tF — S
+=ZHA=+-H +ZA=+—H
31.12.2017 31.12.2016
REaHBRAR BE-T BE (BB E_R& BREER -ARRERENRRFHHRAEAE
ARRTESH GE) BrEERR (MER)RERNERRER KM
TEmNERSE EBE-2 —77,0007 7T BAlE (RS ERNARERATHESE)
B4 REQMEER RTSHE (FRERMR RS
a5 (REH B)mhste
SEE)
—165,000/8 1T
Foreign exchange Assets - Nil Assets Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
forward contracts (under hedge are estimated based on forward currency
classified as Liabilities - Nil accounting) exchange rate and market interest rate (from
derivative - HK$77,000 observable yield curves at the end of the
financial reporting period) and contracted foreign
instruments in Liabilities currency exchange rate and market interest
the consolidated (under hedge rate, discounted at an applicable discount
statement of accounting) rate taking into account the credit risk of
financial position - HK$165,000 the counter- parties and of the Group as

HtemEELRERBBZANE
TIRBEERIRRERE DI H—
RAREEBRABE - ARAES
RBRBERAINENZSERE
ERTBRABZEEEREEARE
GEEEK

BRI TR ER
HinERBUGZEN SR
EEREE

AREBERETES R T AT ER
EHRTEERDBE ([BEREHR
TEEmBE ) BiHE LR ITE
TRTAERNSBAIBLTERA
REFAMBRRKREHRE
ARAKELERITER HEME
]38 & M 4 o

appropriate.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with general accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis. The directors
of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of these
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost approximate their fair values.

Financial assets and liabilities subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements

The Group entered into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association (“ISDA") Master Agreements for its derivatives
financial instruments. The amounts recognised for the
derivatives financial instruments do not meet the criteria for
offsetting in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position since there is no cash collateral pledged in respect
of the Group’s derivative transactions.
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31.

METHELECEEY
AR

TEABERASREERERDE

EMREZHFE BRERASRFE

ReBy ARMELDELNAR

BERIERARENGARER

EXRADBABERHELENRS
g

7

= bl

31.Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising
From Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

ERFE AT AR S

BE Interest Dividend @it

Borrowings payable payable Total

TET TET TAT THT

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

RZE—+tF—-A—H At 1 January 2017 2,246,319 - = 2,246,319

BERESTR Financing cash flows 222,086 (56,269) (114,198) 51,619

HBER Finance costs = 56,269 = 56,269

IR E Dividends declared - = 114,198 114,198
RZE—+F At 31 December 2017

+=A=+-H 2,468,405 - = 2,468,405
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R—_E——FRA-_+HH AR
AIRRAERRBAFAS LB HE
TR AT &) ([T AR At
g ARKLERARAR=ZZEZZ
FNA=ZHAE RN EBREE
([EERETE]) - EEBRER
SR IERTH M 2 B IR M S M A AR
I AT AR 35 & B AR A AT & 2 AR Bl 4T
FEoFEREFESIFN =

AAZ+MBEEAEER ETR
BIE17E 2 IR R - TR ERE 2
ERAEERIBSEATELER
B IR LB R BB A R &
EIARARZ RAEHEZRE 3
BREENE 2 RN EERARE
FrEIZIEFRMEL - EEEAREE
BETASEZEEKES B
ARRIHEMNBRARICES K&
B2 xR o B2 REMER R
BHRA EERP KRB R G
FERE AR AR B 2R - R 2
BREZTFEAA D A HETT
AT BEEEeRNERERTT
150 HA P AT 4 77 {55 B PR e B PR 6l
BB 2 B R E B T
ZREBAREBE - BRERD 2RE
BATLRUT=E&mE0)KH
RIFHBBZKHE: (HRHRE
ERHBEAIAER S H 2 FEHK
ME: RGNRH z2EE-AJIFH 2
BREBBAIRNDEE LR TF
BB HEBRETTEIE A AR
RIZBEBITRAI0% 2 EESE -
AT - BATIEFT A 18 AR 1T (52 8 AR
MmETZRNHE B LRAERESH
BIARE TR Z30% « ERE
"ARBZRREEME  EEW
—FR B TEMA T2 BRER
MEE THBRBARATRDZ
TR Z21% °

HEZT—+F+=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

32.Share Option Scheme

On 25 May 2012, the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting approved the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) and
the termination of the old share option scheme (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”) which was adopted by the Company
on 3 September 2002. Options granted under the Old Share
Option Scheme prior to such termination will continue to
be valid and exercisable in accordance with the rules of the
Old Share Option Scheme. The New Share Option Scheme
will expire on 24 May 2022 in order to comply with the
terms of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The purpose of the
New Share Option Scheme is to recognise and motivate the
participants and to provide incentives and a direct economic
interest in attaining the long term business objectives of
the Company. The principal terms of the New Share Option
Scheme are similar to those of the Old Share Option Scheme,
the Board may grant options to any eligible employees
of the Group, including directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries, legal, financial, management and technical
advisers and consultants, major customers and raw material
and machinery suppliers of the Group, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. The exercise period of options
granted shall not be more than ten years from the date of
grant and the Board may impose restrictions on the exercise
of options during the period options may be exercised. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the grant of options. The subscription price of the option
share is not less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing prices of
the shares on the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.
The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted may not exceed in nominal amount of 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of
approval of the New Share Option Scheme. However, the
total maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding shares options must not
exceed 30% of the issued share capital from time to time.
The number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue from
time to time, without prior approval from the Company’s
shareholders.
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32%&%%—-'_%“ (%) 32.Share Optlon Scheme (Continued)

RIBEBRET SR 2 BIRERD
BHEBMSEEEURAIRIEER
Pt Bl 2 AT PAIT(E

RRB BB &2 W RTTERE
Ptz B8 & EARRE 2 i F 15917
EERESERSHBHUINAT

BE-Z—tH&+=-HA=+—HL
FE

The share options granted before under the Old Share
Option Scheme vest immediately and will continue to be
valid and exercisable in accordance with the rules of the Old
Share Option Scheme.

A summary of the movements of the outstanding options
and their related weighted average exercise prices during
each of the reporting periods under the Company's share
option scheme is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BREHE
Number of share options
R-E-t§
RZB-tE tZA
-B-H Er=[

WATE  ERERE  FAEAR  EREEE GESH
£  Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled  Outstanding

RABH Exercise at during during during at
Date of grant price 1.1.2017 the year the year theyear  31.12.2017
Br
HKS
EBREL S “RRLEMAZR
Old Share Option Scheme 3.4.2007 4,050 152,000 - - (152,000) -
ZRE\ETA=1-8
31.10.2008 1.950 220,000 - (78,000) (2,000) 140,000
“ZENFTRER
5.10.2009 4.536 710,000 - - (70,000) 640,000
1,082,000 - (78,000) (224,000) 780,000
HRRErE ZZ-=£-fA+-H
New Share Option Scheme 11.1.2013 5.942 5,140,000 - - (510,000 4,630,000
AR AR BT o o
HK$ HKS HKS HKS HKS
METHERTER
Weighted average exercise price per share 5.504 - 1.950 5.405 5.672
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32.fl R fEstEl () 32.Share Option Scheme (continued)
BE—_ZT— X+ -_A=+—81t For the year ended 31 December 2016
FE
BRESA
Number of share options
RZE-RE
RIT-AF +2A
-A-H =t+-H
WATE  EMERE  FREAE  EMEHE HATTE
B Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled  Qutstanding
RLAH Exercise at during during during at
Date of grant price 1.1.2016 the year the year theyear  31.12.2016
BT
HKS
EBRESE “TRTEMA=H
Old Share Option Scheme 3.4.2007 4.050 478,000 - - (326,000) 152,000
ER\FTAZT-A
31.10.2008 1.950 320,000 - (100,000) - 220,000
ZZENFTREA
5.10.2009 4536 1,050,000 = = (340,000) 710,000
1,848,000 - (100,000) (666,000) 1,082,000
ek 2l ZF-Z§-Rt-H
New Share Option Scheme 11.1.2013 5.942 5,960,000 - - (820,000) 5,140,000
BT B B BT iy
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HKS
WETHERITEE
Weighted average exercise price per share 5.473 - 1.950 5.205 5.59%4
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32%&%%—-#%“ (&) 32.Share Optlon Scheme (Continued)
BREBENEN EENERNESES Details of the options held by the directors included in the
B 2 eI above table are as follows:
BE-Z—tH&+=-H=+—HL For the year ended 31 December 2017
FE

BREZA
Number of share options
R=B-tF
RZB-t# T=A
-A—-H Er=f

HATE FAEHIE FRETE EXCS
fiff8 Outstanding  Reclassified Exercised Outstanding

RdiAH Exercise at during during at
Date of grant price 1.1.2017 the year theyear  31.12.2017
BT
HK$
MERESE Z2-=£-f+-H
New Share Option Scheme 11.1.2013 5.942 400,000 - - 400,000
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32.Share Option Scheme (continved)

HE-ZT-—"F+t-A=+—HL For the year ended 31 December 2016
FE
BREHE
Number of share options
i e
RZE-—RE TZA
—-A-H ==
HATE FREFIE  FRRIER HARTTHR
{78 Outstanding  Reclassified Exercised  Outstanding
gzl Exercise at during during at
Date of grant price 1.1.2016 the year the year ~ 31.12.2016
BT (B&)
HK$ (Note)
ERRELE ZERtEMA=H
0ld Share Option Scheme 3.4.2007 4,050 200,000 (200,000) = =
ZEEN\ETA=T-B
31.10.2008 1.950 100,000 (100,000) = -
“ZENETHAERR
5.10.2009 4536 200,000 (200,000) = -
500,000 (500,000) - -
e E ZF-ZF-At-A
New Share Option Scheme 11.1.2013 5.942 600,000 (200,000) = 400,000
MisE: EeBAEBE-_T—F—A— Note: Mr. Wong Kam Yim has been retired as director since

BERTES RSEnNERE
BEEFORRIFEEERE-

1 January 2016 and his number of share options was

reclassified as share option to non-director.
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32.FERERTE (2

32.Share Option Scheme (continued)

REITERERE B BRI AR AR M
RN H U T B B3.2378 T (=
T—NF 2544 70) cIRFE KM
RITEBIREZ MEFHRBEL
FHARA4S3FE(ZF —~NF:5.37
F) e

RIBEBRESIARENMEBR
EREROBHRIANER TEHAA
B B IR 1 F o IRIB I RE
PRI ABEENE L A HER
FREBAZEEREE T -1
F-—AT—HRE_ZT-_=F—A8

The weighted average closing price of the shares of the
Company immediately before the dates on which the share
options were exercised was HK$3.237 (2016: HK$2.544).
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a
weighted average remaining contract life of 4.53 years
(2016: 5.37 years).

All share options granted under the Old Share Option
Scheme vested immediately at the dates of grant with the
exercisable period of ten years from the dates of grant. The
share options granted under the New Share Option Scheme
were vested over two years from the dates of grant and they
are exercisable commencing from 11 January 2015 to 10

+H1ER] FIT{E January 2023.

33. % 1E 33.Commitments
—ZE—+tF —T—KRF
2017 2016
FTET FH&IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
ERWEDE - BE R Capital expenditure in respect of the
REAR L FE R acquisition of property, plant and
BAREZEETA equipment and land use rights
BEAMBEHREFRARTHEMAE  contracted for but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 42,012 8,189
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34.0Operating Lease Commitments

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
outstanding commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of rented properties which fall due as follows:

—Z—+tF ZT—RF

2017 2016

TR FHTT

HK$°000 HK$'000

—FRN Within one year 16,417 14,056
—EFRF (BRME In the second to fifth year inclusive

BREEA) 50,600 48,393

FF1& After five years 17,677 24,499

84,694 86,948

RBRAEET L2 AL BE K
REHESE-FE-HEFE
AEEEREBEA

RBESHR AEEEABEF TSI
ARZEBRERSRILEH

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease terms
and rentals are fixed from one year to twenty years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments:

—Z—+tfF ZT—RF

2017 2016

TR FH&TT

HK$’000 HK$'000

—F R Within one year 10,466 13,899
—EFRF (BRME In the second to fifth year inclusive

BREEAN) 13,371 21,265

23,837 35,164

HENNERBHTOES £
NE—FERE-

The properties held have committed tenants ranging from
one year to five years.
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35..BEALRS

@ FAR AEHESHD R XM (a)
960,000 L (=& — N F
960,0007% 7T ) %600,000/% 7T
(== — /X% :600,0005 7T)
e FAEREGRAA
([BEDDEZEREARA
AI([Z#R#]) ARAIZES
EEREERETHLEED R
REEREESAERER -

b) FR - AEBEWEEEKE (b)
EESCHABRATNEEL B
P8 & 3 4&400,0000 7T (=&
—RNE: B ERBEEBEA
41,0008 (ZF — R F -
®m) EEREEAREARAE
EWHEBZ A AR

(0 XEEBABRARRZESR ()
RERRZERERE -KE
Bl B E N M a6 -

36. R K& R EHE

A58 B 2 SR IR B SR IR AT 81 15 B
BRZ ERU G B (BRI
g RBERBESHRIN_FTF
FH AR ZRES S (8
EFE)) - ZEFBCEEEAE
BeBEIHABAE BXRAEE
ZIERESHFR BRI E
AL A RABRERAKGTEKE
Z BB REREE 2 BRI
A EEREEFHE AR _F
ZEF+ B — A ARTARBR
SEZEEFLEBRESFE -

35.Related Party Transactions

During the year, the Group paid rent of HK$960,000
(2016: HK$960,000) and HK$600,000 (2016:
HK$600,000) to Goldex Investments Limited (“Goldex")
and Galsheer Investments Limited (“Galsheer”)
respectively in which Mr. Ip Chi Shing and Mr. Yip
Tsz Hin, directors of the Company, have controlling
interests over Goldex and Galsheer respectively.

During the year, the Group received rent and license
fee of HK$400,000 (2016: nil) and service fee income
of HK$41,000 (2016: nil) from Ip Chi Shing Charitable
Foundation Limited in which Mr. Ip Chi Shing, director
of the Company, has controlling interest over it.

The key management personnel are the directors of
the Company and the management executives of the
Company. The details of the remuneration paid to them
are set out in note 6.

36.Retirement Benefit Plan

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
scheme which is registered under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and
a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance
in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. Employees who were members of the
ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF Scheme
were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO Scheme or
switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all new employees
joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are required

to join the MPF Scheme.
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36.Retirement Benefit Plan (continvea)

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of a state-managed retirement benefit plan
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs
to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

The costs charged to profit or loss of HK$47,727,000 (2016:
HK$46,785,000) represent contributions paid or payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the plans in respect of the current accounting period. As at
31 December 2017, contributions of HK$446,000 (2016:
HK$457,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not
been paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid over
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.

37.Principal Subsidiaries

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

T follows:
AEEEA
EEBRARE/
BRARE/HARERZEE AMEREEZED L
R/ R Nominal value of issued Proportion of nominal value of
ARER Place of incorporation/ share capital/registered issued share capital/registered TZ¥H
Name of company registration capital capital held by the Group  Principal activities
ZE-tF ZE0E
2017 2016
EERRBRAT Bk BER-2%n 100% 100% HxRE
(Krita)
Base Rich Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
(Note a)
FHCT (L8 BRAR hE-BENELR ARER - AR %2,000,0007 100% 100% EEZH
Bauhinia Chemical (Shanghai) PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Trading in coatings
Company Limited foreign enterprise - RMB2,000,000
ZHeak (L8)ERAT hE-BENALR EARER 40,800,005 100% 100% BEREEZH
Bauhinia Coatings Manufacturing PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Manufacture of and trading
(Shanghai) Co., Limited foreign enterprise - USD40,800,000 in coatings

2017 ANNUAL REPORT + YIP’S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

201



Bt#§$R 4 Financial Statements

GEMBREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZT—+F+=A=1+—HILFE For the year ended 31 December 2017

37.FENBE AR () 37.Principal Subsidiaries (continved
A5ERE
ELBRARE/
BEARA/EMERZEE AMEREECAY
R/ R Nominal value of issued Proportion of nominal value of
AR Place of incorporation/ share capital/registered issued share capital/registered TZ¥H
Name of company registration capital capital held by the Group  Principal activities
ZE-tE CE8E
2017 2016
Bauhinia Paints Limited ABRAES LER-1,00087 100% 100% REER
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
SHEHR (A BRAT RE-BENELR A1EH 100% 100% HEREEEH
— A& %28,000,0007T
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing (Chengdu)  PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Manufacture of and trading in
Company Limited foreign enterprise - RMB28,000,000 coatings
APRBARAA B ERR-205T 100% 100% &ERR
ERER 600,000 7T (M) (Fitb)
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$20 100% 100%  Investment holding
Deferred - HK$600,000 (Note b) (Note b)
ZiiesAR (L8)BRAA hE-BENALR ARERE-6,100,0005TC 100% 100% WERENRZEREER RN
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing (Shanghai)  PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Property investment and manufacture
Company Limited foreign enterprise - USDe, 100,000 of and trading in lubricants
SHieEAR (RN ERAR hE-BENELR ARER-28,800,000% 100% 100% EBEZH
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing (Shenzhen)  PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Trading in coatings
Company Limited foreign enterprise - HK$28,800,000
FEARE () BRAR hE-BENELR A1EH 100% 100% REREERE
— AR %88,000,0007C
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Chemicals (Hebei) ~ PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Manufacture of and trading in inks
Limited foreign enterprise - RMB88,000,000
FEHRE (N BRAA hE-BENELR EARER-40,000,000% T 100% 100% HERETAE
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Chemicals PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Manufacture of and trading in inks
(Zhejiang) Limited foreign enterprise - USD40,000,000
FEFRE () BRAR hE-BENELR E7RER-180,000,000 7 100% 100% BEREERE
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Chemicals PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Manufacture of and trading in inks
(Zhongshan) Limited foreign enterprise - HK$180,000,000
AEERRERAR Bt BRR-28T 100% 100% KEER
Best Lubricant Blending Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
REREARAA &k LA 10,0007 100% 100% WERE
Big Youth Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
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37.Principal Subsidiaries (continuea)

AEERE
EEBRIRA/
BRARE/EMES2EE AMEREEC AR
R/ Nominal value of issued Proportion of nominal value of
ARER Place of incorporation/ share capital/registered issued share capital/registered TZEH
Name of company registration capital capital held by the Group  Principal activities
ZE-tE CE8E
2017 2016
Brandway limited ABRAES LER-1ET 100% 100% RERR
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Bt TREERAT & ERR-1600005TC 5% 5% RAERREEAH
Concord Chemical Storaging Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$160,000 75% 75%  Investment holding and trading in
solvents
KEw#E (BN ERAR hE-BENALR EARER 24,500,000 100% 100% BEEE
Da Chang Polymers (Huizhou) Limited PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Trading in resins
foreign enterprise - HK$24,500,000
REATHEREEAERAT hE-BENELR ARER 50,000,000 100% 100% SBEREEHER
Dongguan Pacoll Lubricant Company PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Manufacture of and trading in
Limited foreign enterprise - HK$50,000,000 [ubricants
SRERAT B ERk-2ET 100% 100% &ERR
Goldchain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
ERERAT BED EaR-1%7 100% 100%  REER
Great Success Limited Samoa Ordinary - USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
AL ITRREARAT i £ R 6000007 100% 100% RAERREERA
Handsome Chemical Development Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$600,000 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading in
solvents
e IREBRAT B EEH-60,000%7 100% 100% REDERS
Handsome Chemical Services Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$60,000 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services
BEEH (R ERAR hE-BENELR HRER-20,000,000% 7 100% 100% REREEEH
Hang Cheung Coatings (Hui Yang) Limited  PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Manufacture of and trading in
foreign enterprise - USD20,000,000 coatings
Hang Cheung Petrochemical (International) EBRZEE LER-1%7 100% 100% KEER
Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary - USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
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37.FENBE AR () 37.Principal Subsidiaries (continved
A5ERE
ELCRTRE/
BEARA/EMERZEE EMEAEEZ A
R/ R Nominal value of issued Proportion of nominal value of
AR Place of incorporation/ share capital/registered issued share capital/registered TZ¥H
Name of company registration capital capital held by the Group  Principal activities
ZE-tE CE8E
2017 2016
EERRLIARAA &k £ -800,000E T 100% 100% EEZH
Hang Cheung Petrochemical Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$800,000 100% 100%  Trading in coatings
Hang Cheung (W.S.) Limited EED LEk-1%n 100% 100% RELRK
Samoa Ordinary - USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
LR EHERRRAA 0 EAR- 1496655 T 100% 100% &ARR
BRR-33587 (H3th) (Mf3Eb)
Bauhinia Coatings Group Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$149,665 100% 100%  Investment holding
Deferred - HK$335 (Note b) (Note b)
ENEELTARAA hE-BENELR ARER 75% % HEREERH
~ A&%15,000,0007C
Huizhou Shengda Chemical Company PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 75% 75%  Manufacture of and trading in
Limited foreign enterprise - RMB15,000,000 solvents
IARELIRRERAA hE-AERELR E7RE 149,800,000 5% 5% HEREERA
Jiangmen Handsome Chemical Development  PRC - equity joint venture Capital contribution 75% 75%  Manufacture of and trading in
Limited - HK$149,800,000 solvents
IARARYSRERAT hE-BENELE EAER 53,000,000 75% 5% HEREERE
Jiangmen Thansome Solvents Production ~ PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 75% 75%  Manufacture of and trading in
Limited foreign enterprise - HK$53,000,000 solvents
Prophet Investments Limited RERIES LER- 1% 100% 100% RERR
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Radiant New Limited RBRAEE BRR-1%7 100% 100% WERE
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - USD1 100% 100%  Property investment
FESTLEIZARAA hE-BENALR HRE 723,980,000 75% % HEREERH
Taixing Jinjiang Chemical Industry Company  PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 75% 75%  Manufacture of and trading in
Limited foreign enterprise - HK$723,980,000 solvents
TM Holding (Hong Kong) Limited A LRR-28T 100% 100% HEER
Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Holding of trade mark
TM Holding Limited ZERAES LER-1ET 100% 100% HEEE
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$ 1 100% 100%  Holding of trade mark
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37.Principal Subsidiaries (continuea)

AEERE
EEBRIRA/
BRARE/EMES2EE AMEREEC AR
R/ Nominal value of issued Proportion of nominal value of
ARER Place of incorporation/ share capital/registered issued share capital/registered TZEH
Name of company registration capital capital held by the Group  Principal activities
ZE-tE CE8E
2017 2016
Yip's Chemical (BVI) Limited EBRREE EER-500% T 100% 100% REER
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$500 100% 100%  Investment holding
EREIHE (LE)ERAR hE-BENELR ARER-17,000,000% 70 100% 100% HERHAZ
Yip's Chemical Research & Development ~ PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Research and development
(Shanghai) Company Limited foreign enterprise - USD17,000,000
SREH (B)ERAA &k LER-18T 100% - BERH
(ARBERIERRE ()
ERAR])
Yip's Coatings (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$ 1 100% - Trading i coatings
(subsequently changed to "Yip's Camel
(Hong Kong) Limited")
EREE (RR)ERAR & ERH-999,500% T 100% 100% REBRRRERHS
EIER-500E7 (Kith) (Hzb)
Yip's H.C. (Holding) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$999,500 100% 100%  Investment holding and provision of
Deferred - HK§500 (Note b) (Note b) Services
ERIZERARAT &% ERR-10000%7 5% 5% RAERREEAH
Yip's Industrial Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 5% 75%  Investment holding and trading in
solvents
Ens (SB)ARAR & ERE-2ET 100% 100% REABRREERS
Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Group) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading in
inks
EREER(58)ERAT 0 ERH-290,000% 7 100% 100% REERREEEER
Yip's Lubricant Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$290,000 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading in
[ubricants
Yip's Pacific Limited ABRAES LR -36,251,000% 100% 100% REER
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$36,251,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RRHEER(LE)ERAT hE-BENELR EAER-250,000%T 100% 100% EEERR
PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Trading in lubricants
foreign enterprise - USD250,000
BEEVARBREERAA hE-AERELR E#H-9300,000% 60% 60% HEREEHME
PRC - equity joint venture Ordinary - USD9,300,000 60% 60%  Manufacture of and trading in resins
EREEHE (M) ARAA hE-BENELR ARER-ARH1,000,0007 100% 100% RERS
PRC - wholly owned Capital contribution 100% 100%  Provision of services

foreign enterprise

- RMB1,000,000
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37.XEM B AR (@)

GEE

(@) ZMBAREERR-_F—N\F=A
—HEHE - BB 23S -

(b) SERAKEEREZETRGERE
WE AR B SR A 7ﬁx$jiﬁ
ZEEHHEEMZRARER
@ﬁﬁ@ix%“ﬁ?ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ’ﬁ%
BRIEAA(NEAER)EEEH
RERZERNINZERR K
100,000,000,0007% 7t * Bl i % f%
“%ﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ"ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ
EFERERERIRELERN
X2 EAR

E/T‘Yip's Chemical (BVI) Limitedff 7%
RABEEFBEIN FBEEEHRER
A REERE - REABE X
B 2R EER A TSN A E At
BRARIZ EELX M RERE

BT FE R 2t

EXRIARE 2B AR NES
RREFEAEEXENEERA
BEEMBRAR -EFRABIH
HM B AR 2#BERERTRR
o

EMBRARAR-_ZF—t&+_A
=+ — B 3 A fe] B ) 48 AR A )
fEERE3

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

37.Principal Subsidiaries (continuea)

Notes:

(@) The subsidiary is subsequently disposed on 1 March 2018.

Please refer to note 38 for details.

(b)  The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry
no right to dividend or to receive notice of or to attend or
vote at any general meeting of the company. On a winding-
up, the holders of the deferred shares are entitled out of the
surplus assets of the company to a return of capital paid up
on the non-voting deferred shares but only when holders of
ordinary shares, namely, the Group, have received in full the
return of capital paid on them and, in aggregate, a total sum
of HK$100,000,000,000.

Except for Yip's Chemical (BVI) Limited which is held directly
by the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held.
Except for the investment holding companies which have
no specific place of operation, all the above subsidiaries
operate principally in their respective place of incorporation/
registration.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets or liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
31 December 2017 or at any time during the year.
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37.Principal Subsidiaries (continuea)

The table below shown details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

interests:
FERRERA LA
ARG EEEE Y BRERRZELA
Place of Proportion of ownership 2t ERER
incorporation and interests and voting PRFFERES 2R Accumulated
WEARZR principal place of rights held by Profits allocated to non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business non-controlling interests non-controlling interests interests
I2-tF  ZE-F I3t ZE-REF ZB-tf %%
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
TER AR TR ThT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THRECIZRERAAR  # 25% 25% 70,533 63,888 336,728 231,514
ERBAR(NIRREEE))
Jiangmen Handsome Chemical ~ PRC
Development Limited and its
subsidiary (the “Jiangmen
Handsome Group”)
B IRBERARR B 25% 25% 10,365 6,439 212,012 204,959

HWBAR (THNEE])

Concord Chemical Storaging Hong Kong
Limited and its subsidiaries
(the “Concord Group"”)

fizE: FESTEBIZARAAR
—EtHFEABNEEERES
TPIREEE - NEZEAR  JF
ERESFAEZMBRERR
REELLPIG EES  HgE
BEEDREETPFIRESRE -

FRAEEHRAERFERER 2
MERARZHBEN (REFEY
HmEERRE) BEEFIAT » A
THBERBMEZREHEERRS
Al 2 B8R -

Note: Taixing Jinjiang Chemical Industry Company Limited was
transferred from the Concord Group to the Jiangmen
Handsome Group during the year of 2017. There was no
change in proportion of ownership interests and voting rights
held by non-controlling interests before and after the transfer.
This respective operating results are allocated to the Jiangmen

Handsome Group accordingly.

Summarised financial information, which is prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, in respect of the Group's
subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests
is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts before elimination of intragroup
transactions.
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37.Principal Subsidiaries (continuea)

—E—t#F —EZ—RF
2017 2016
TR FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
AMREEE Jiangmen Handsome Group
Yo & Revenue 6,922,068 3,286,423
g Expenses (6,639,935) (3,030,872)
IREFHE Profit for the year 282,133 255,551
ARE2EWRETE Total comprehensive income for
the year 406,230 205,661
ERENE E Non-current assets 564,417 255,092
MEEE Current assets 2,953,283 1,180,828
mBAE Current liabilities (2,167,769) (509,135)
EREEE Non-current liability (3,020) (728)
A Total equity 1,346,911 926,057
REXB 2B ORd) Net cash (outflow) inflow from
mAFEE operating activities (10,191) 189,553
REXEBZH ML FRE Net cash outflow from
investing activities (533,329) (8,626)
MEEK 2R/ ELRA GRE)  Net cash inflow (outflow) from
i financing activities 740,153 (227,447)
WERA CRt) F5E Net cash inflow (outflow) 196,633 (46,520)
XA IR AR E R AR S Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests - (6,778)
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37.Principal Subsidiaries (continuea)

—E—t#F —T—RF
2017 2016
FTER FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
HHMEE Concord Group
Yo & Revenue 250,510 2,037,138
X Expenses (209,047) (2,011,381)
IR HEF Profit for the year 41,463 25,757
AE2EmkE (ZH) 8% Total comprehensive income (expense)
for the year 81,299 (38,491)
ERENE E Non-current assets 21,590 374,771
MEEE Current assets 859,252 1,026,691
mBBE Current liabilities (32,784) (499,280)
FEnBEE Non-current liabilities 9) (2,345)
A Total equity 848,049 899,837
KEXEB2RERNFERE Net cash inflow from operating activities 22,335 97,907
REEHF 2 RERAFHE Net cash inflow from investing activities 516,618 47,931
MEEB 2R ML FRE Net cash outflow from financing
activities (627,918) (159,919)
Ramit #8 Net cash outflow (88,965) (14,081)
AN SRR AR A m AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests (29,615) (11,857)
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3. HEHREIHR 38.Events after the Reporting Period

210

RZZFE—NEFE—A=-B ARAFMW
FEEE2ENBARSEE TE LS
=H (ZEBIFE=THNEBER
B HE DHEREEZER)E]
S AARE111,741,0007T
(#8% 136,813,000/ 7T ) B A B
WEEEB EBBER=_Z—N
FZA—HZEK - -RFIBEARER
H ERFREAGENE TG KE
BEERBENARE

R-_E—NF-_A+=HBH A&£E
BB E=HFILEE
Bl AEEBEEREARR—
ME2EWNBARBEERERA
A([EEHNE2MER BER
B#) /4,911,000 T (HERL
38,305,000 7T) ° BEFAE — &AL
KRBt TEA TS %
REN_ZT—N\F=ZA—HZEK"

ERCIEEERAR - — T LFEFR

On 2 January 2018, two indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company, entered into an agreement with certain
independent third parties, of which principal business
activities are manufacture, sale, distribution and marketing
of coatings, to acquire the business at a cash consideration
of RMB111,741,000 (equivalent to HK$136,813,000). The
acquisition of business was completed on 1 February 2018.
As at the date of issue of this report, the Directors are in
progress of preparing the valuation to determine the fair
value of assets and liabilities being acquired.

On 13 February 2018, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party,
pursuant to which, the Group will dispose the entire
interests in a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Base Rich Development Limited (“Base Rich”), at cash
consideration amounting approximately USD4,911,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$38,305,000). Base Rich
held the prepaid lease payments of a land located in the
PRC. The transaction was completed on 1 March 2018.
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39.Statement of Financial Position of

the Company

—E—t& —E-REF
2017 2016
FHET FH& T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EREEE Non-current assets
RBAR 2R EMEE Unlisted investment in subsidiaries 445,808 412,014
JE U — I BT /88 & Rl 3RIA Amount due from a subsidiary 837,174 753,742
1,282,982 1,165,756
MBEE Current assets
H A FE Y BR AR R TR AN SR IE Other receivables and prepayments 180 145
JE Y — I FfY /B & R RIR Amount due from a subsidiary 12,843 =
RITHEBERS Bank balances and cash 630 522
13,653 667
mBAaE Current liabilities
H Ath fE 7 BR X K B 5B B Other creditors and accrued charges 3,618 3,770
JE A~F — RS B /B A B 3R I8 Amount due to a subsidiary = 10,367
SRPITETAR Derivative financial instruments 6,203 6,715
9,821 20,852
MBEE (AE)FE Net current assets (liabilities) 3,832 (20,185)
BEFE Net assets 1,286,814 1,145,571
—EB—t&F —E—REF
2017 2016
FTHET T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BAR R Capital and reserves
& A Share capital 56,389 56,381
e (MsE) Reserves (Note) 1,230,425 1,089,190
B Total equity 1,286,814 1,145,571
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30. AR A BEMRR T 2

39.Statement of Financial Position of
the Company (continued)

B 5E Note:
BRE EXER
1 1
{3 EE Share  HftRE  ERRE Capital ~ REEF
Share options Other  Translation redemption  Retained -
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earning Total
T THT T TR T T THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i)
(Note)
WZE- %¥—-F—-H At 1 January 2016 504,539 7,233 77,700 143,981 5416 160,949 899,818
RELA Profit for the year - - - - - 303977 303977
AFEZ2HEBMELZ  Exchange difference arising on
EX=R translation to presentation
currency - - - (61,228) - - (61,228)
REREWEE (XE)EE  Total comprehensive (expense) income
for the year - - - (61,228) - 303,977 242,749
RTEEREMMURERT Share issued at premium upon exercise
2k of share options 205 (20) = = = = 185
NEEREREERZE Share options cancelled and transfer to
REBEF retained profits - (1,278) - = - 1,278 =
ERRE Dividends paid - - - - - (53,562)  (53,562)
RZZ—RF At 31 December 2016
+-A=1+-H 504,744 5,935 77,700 82,753 5,416 412,642 1,089,190
RERF] Profit for the year - - - - - 134,001 134,001
AREEZREEMEEL  Exchange difference arising on
EREE translation to presentation currency - - - 91,674 - - 91,674
AERENGES Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - 91,674 - 134,001 225,675
RfTfEEREMINEEZ/T  Share issued at premium upon exercise
b4 i of share options 159 (15) = = = = 144
RETRPMEEZMA  Costincurred in connection with issue
of shares (1) - - - - - (1)
MEBERERBER Share options cancelled and transfer to
REB retained profits - (640) - - - 640 -
ERRE Dividends paid - - - - - (84,583 (84,583)
R-BH At 31 December 2017
+-A=1+—-H 504,902 5,280 77,700 174,427 5,416 462,700 1,230,425

Miar: HEMFEEHREER-AL—F%
EEAMEENFRE-

212 ERCIEBERAT - —T—HFEFR

Note: Other reserve represents the reserve arising from group

reorganisation in 1991.
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